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Board of Directors

First Federal Savings Bank
1430 Madison Street
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040

To the Board:

We hereby submit our independent appraisal of the pro forma market value of the to-be-issued stock
of First Advantage Bancorp (the "Corporation™), which is the company of First Federal Savings
Bank, Clarksville, Tennessee (“First Federal” or the "Bank"). Such stock is to be issued in
connection with the application by the Corporation to complete a stock offering, with the
Corporation to own 100 percent of the stock of the Bank. This appraisal, as of August 15, 2007,
was prepared and provided to the Bank in accordance with the appraisal requirements and
regulations of the Office of Thrift Supervision of the United States Department of the Treasury.

Keller & Company, Inc. is an independent, financial institution consulting firm that serves both
thrift institutions and banks throughout the U.S. The firm is a full-service consulting organization,
as described in more detail in Exhibit A, specializing in business and strategic plans, stock
valuations, conversion and reorganization appraisals, market studies and fairness opinions for thrift
institutions and banks. The firm has affirmed its independence in this transaction with the
preparation of its Affidavit of Independence, a copy of which is included as Exhibit C.

QOur appraisal is based on the assumption that the data provided to us by First Federal and the
material provided by the independent auditors, BKD, LLP, Louisville, Kentucky, are both accurate
and complete. We did not verify the financial statements provided to us, nor did we conduct
independent valuations of the Bank's assets and liabilities. We have also used information from
other public sources, but we cannot assure the accuracy of such matenal.

In the preparation of this appraisal, we held discussions with the management of First Federal, with
the law firm of Muldoon, Murphy & Aguggia LLP, Washington, D.C., thc Bank's conversion
counsel, and with BKD, LLP, the Bank's outside auditor. Further, we viewed the Bank's local
economy and primary market area and also reviewed the Bank's most recent business plan as part
of our review process.
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This valuation must not be considered to be a recommendation as to the purchase of stock in the
Corporation, and we can provide no guarantee or assurance that any person who purchases shares
of the Corporation's stock will be able to later sell such shares at a price equivalent to the price
designated in this appraisal.

Our valuation will be further updated as required and will give tonsideration to any new
developments in First Federal’s operation that have an impact on operations or financial condition.
Further, we will give consideration to any changes in general market conditions and to specific
changes in the market for publicly-traded thrift institutions. Based on the material impact of any
such changes on the pro forma market value of the Corporation as determined by this firm, we will
make necessary adjustments to the Corporation's appraised value in an appraisal update.

It is our opinion that as of August 15, 2007, the pro forma market value or appraised value of the
Corporation was $48,000,000 at the midpoint, with an offering of $48,000,000 or 4,800,000 shares
at $10 per share. The pro forma valuation range of the Corporation is from a minimum of
$40,800,000 to a maximum of $55,200,000, with a maximum, as adjusted, of $63,480,000,
representing 4,080,000 shares, 5,520,000 shares and 6,348,500 shares at $10 per share at the
minimum, maximum, and maximum, as adjusted, respectively.

The pro forma appraised valuc of First Advantage Bancorp as of August 15,2007, was $48,000,000
at the midpoint.

Very truly yours,

KELLER & COMPANY, INC.

K ollen JGV”‘@MH‘Q\L_
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INTRODUCTION

Keller & Company, Inc. (“Keller”) is an independent consulting and appraisal firm for
financial institutions and has prepared this Conversion Valuation Appraisal Report ("Report™)
to provide the pro forma market value of the to-be-issued common stock of First Advantage
Bancorp (the “Corporation”), which will be formed as part of the conversion to own all of the
to-be-issued shares of common stock of First Federal Savings Bank (“First Federal” or the
“Bank), Clarksville, Tennessee. The stock is to be issued in connection with the Bank's
Application for Approval of Conversion from a federal chartered mutual savings bank to a
federal chartered stock savings bank.

The Application for Conversion is being filed with the Office of Thrift Supervision
{"OTS") of the Department of the Treasury and the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC"). We have reviewed such Application for Conversion as well as the Prospectus and
related documents, and have discussed them with the Bank’s management and the Bank’s
conversion counsel, Muldoon, Murphy and Aguggia LLP, Washington, D.C.

This conversion appraisal was prepared based on the guidelines provided by OTS
entitled "Guidelines for Appraisal Reports for the Valuation of Savings Institutions Converting
from the Mutual to Stock Form of Organization", in accordance with the OTS application
requirements of Regulation §563b and the OTS's Revised Guidelines for Appraisal Reports, and
represents a full appraisal report. The Report provides detailed exhibits based on the Revised
Guidelines and a discussion of each of the fourteen factors that need to be considered. Our
valuation will be updated in accordance with the Revised Guidelines and will consider any

changes in market conditions for thrift institutions.

The pro forma market value is defined as the price at which the stock of the Bank after
conversion would change hands between a typical willing buyer and a typical willing seller
when the former is not under any compulsion to buy and the latter is not under any compulsion

to sell, and with both parties having reasonable knowledge of relevant facts in an arms-length




Introduction (cont.}

transaction. The appraisal assumes the Bank is a going concern and that the shares issued by

the Bank in the conversion are sold in noncontrol blocks.

We define the pro forma market value as the price at which the stock of the Corporation
after conversion would change hands between a typical willing buyer and a typical willing seller
when the former is not under any compulsion to buy and the latter is not under any compulsion
to sell, and with both parties having reasonable knowledge of relevant facts in an arm's-length
transaction. The appraisal assumes the Bank is a going concemn and that the shares issued by

the Corporation in the conversion are sold in noncontrol blocks,

As part of our appraisal procedure, we have reviewed the audited financial statements
for the five fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 through 2006, and the unaudited financial
statements for the six months ended June 30, 2007, and discussed them with First Federal’s
management and with First Federal’s independent anditors, BKD, LLF, Louisville, Kentucky.
We have also discussed and reviewed with management other financial mattiers and have
reviewed internal projections. Wehavereviewed the Corporation's preliminary Form SB-2 and
the Bank’s preliminary Form AC and discussed them with management and with the Bank’s

conversion counsel,

To gain insight into the Bank’s local market condition, we have visited First Federal’s
primary market and have traveled the surrounding area in Montgomery County. We have
studied the economic and demographic characteristics of the primary market area, and analyzed
the Bank’s primary market area relative to Tennessee and the United States. We have also
examined the competitive market within which First Federal operates, giving consideration to
the area's numerous financial institution offices, mortgage banking offices, and credit union

offices and other key market area characteristics, both positive and negative.



Introduction (cont.)

We have given consideration to the market conditions for securities in general and for
publicly-traded thrift stocks in particular, We have examined the performance of selected
publicly-traded thrift institutions and compared the performance of First Federal to those

selected institutions.

Our valuation is not intended to represent and must not be interpreted to be a
recommendation of any kind as to the desirability of purchasing the to-be-outstanding shares
of common stock of the Corporation. Giving consideration to the fact that this appraisal is
based on numerous factors that can change over time, we can provide no assurance that any
person who purchases the stock of the Corporation in the stock offering of this mutual-to-stock
conversion will subsequently be able to sell such shares at prices similar to the pro forma

market value of the Corporation as determined in this conversion appraisal.



L DESCRIPTION OF FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK

GENERAL

First Federal Savings Bank, Clarksville, Tennessee, was organized in 1953 as a federal
chartered mutual savings and loan association with the name First Federal Savings and Loan
Association. The Bank later converted to a federal chartered mutual savings bank and changed
its name to First Federal Savings Bank,

First Federal conducts its business from its main office and three branch offices in
Clarksville, Tennessee. The Bank also has seven additional ATM’s located throughout
Clarksville. The Bank currently has no immediate plan to open another branch or & new loan
office, although the Bank’s business plan indicates the possibility of branching within the next
three years. The Bank's primary retail market area is comprised of Montgomery County,

Tennessee.

First Federal's deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") in the Deposit Insurance Fund (“DIF”). The Bank is also
subject to certain reserve requirements of the Board of Govemors of the Federal Reserve Bank
(the "FRB"). First Federal is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (the "FHLB") of
Nashville and is regulated by the OTS and by the FDIC. Asof June 30, 2007, First Federal had
assets of $219,728,000, deposits of $184,074,000, and equity of $32,236,000.

First Federal is a community-oriented financial institution which has been focused on
serving the financial needs of the public inits local communities and throughout its market area.
First Federal has been actively and consistently involved in the origination of one-to four-family
mortgage loans which represented 30.1 percent of its loan portfolio at June 30, 2007, and a
smaller 23.3 percent of its loan portfolio at fiscal year end December 31, 2002.



General (cont.)

At June 30, 2007, 88.1 percent of the Bank's gross loans consisted of all types of real
estate loans, compared to a lower 79.1 percent at December 31, 2002, with the primary sources
of funds being retail deposits from residents in its local communities and moderate FHLB
advances. The Bank is also an originator of commercial real estate loans, multi-family loans,
construction loans, commercial loans, and consumer loans. Consumer loans include loans on

savings accounts, automobile loans, and other secured and unsecured personal loans.

The Bank had $66.7 million, or 30.4 percent of its assets in cash and investments
excluding FHLB stock and mortgage-backed securities. The Bank had an additional $2.9
million, or 1.3 percent of its asscts in FHLB stock, with the combined total of investment
securities, FHLB stock and cash and cash equivalents being $69.6 million or 31.7 percent of
assets. The Bank had $35.7 million in mortgage-backed securities. Deposits, FHLB advances
and equity have been the primary sources of funds for the Bank's lending and investment

activities.

Based on the midpoint value established herein, the Bank's gross amount of stock to be
sold in the public offering will be $48,000,000 or 4,800,000 shares at $10 per share based on
the midpoint of the appraised value of $48.0 million. The net conversion proceeds will be
$46,606,000, reflecting conversion expenses of approximately $1,394,000. The actual cash
proceeds to the Bank of $23,303,000 will represent fifty percent of the net conversion proceeds.
The ESOP will represent 8.0 percent of the gross shares issued, or 384,000 shares at $10 per
share, representing $3,840,008. The Bank's net proceeds will be invested in residential and
nonresidential real estate loans and initially invested in short term investments. The Bank may
also use the proceeds to expand services, expand operations or acquire other financial service
organizations, diversification into other businesses, or for any other purposes authorized by law.
The Corporation will use its proceeds to fund the ESOP, to purchase short- and intermediate-

term government or federal agency securities or to invest in short-term deposits.




General (cont.)

First Federal has seen a modest overall deposit decrease over the past four years with
deposits decreasing 12.4 percent from December 31, 2002, to December 31, 2006, and then
increasing 4.2 percent in the six months ended June 30, 2007. The Bank has focused on
increasing its one- to four-family real estate loan portfolio with lesser dollar increases in all
other loan categories during the past four ycars, monitoring its eamings and nonperforming
assets. Equity to assets increased from 12.03 percent of assets at Deccmber 31, 2002, 10 13.47
percent at December 31, 2004, and then increased to 14.67 percent at June 30, 2007.

First Federal's primary fending strategy has been to focus on the origination of both
adjustable-ratc and fixed-rate, one-to four-family loans, commercial real estate and multi-family
loans, construction loans, home equityloans, commercial loans, and the origination of consumer

loans.

First Federal's share of one- to four-family loans has increased from 23.3 percent of
gross loans at December 31, 2002, to 30.1 percent as of June 30, 2007. Multi-family loans
decreased from 7.2 percent of gross loans at December 31, 2002, to 5.6 Ipercen! at June 30,
2007. Commercial real estate loans increased from 24.9 percent to 25.2 percent from December
31,2002, to June 30, 2007. Land loans decreased from 7.4 percent of loans to 7.0 percent from
December 31, 2002, to June 30, 2007. Construction loans increased from 16.6 percent of loans
at December 31, 2002, to 20.2 percent at June 30, 2007, All types of real estate loans as a group
increased moderately from 79.4 percent of gross loans at December 31, 2002, to 88.1 percent
at June 30, 2007. The increase in real estaie loans was offset by the Bank's moderate decreasc
in commercial loans and consumer loans, including home equity loans. The Bank's share of
consumer loans experienced a decrease in their share of loans from 14.2 percent at December
31, 2002, to 8.8 percent at June 30, 2007. Commercial loans decreased from 6.8 percent at

December 31, 2002, to 3.1 percent at June 30, 2007.

Management's internal strategy has also included continued emphasis on maintaining an

adequate and appropriate allowance for loan losses relative to loans and nonperforming




General (cont.)

assets in recognition of the more stringent requirements within the industry to establish and
maintain adequate general valuation allowances, recognizing the Bank's decrcase in loan
originations and total loans. At December 31, 2002, First Fcderal had $4,802,000 in its loan
loss allowance or 2.84 percent of gross loans, which decreased to $2,008,000 and represented

a lesser 1.96 percent of gross loans at June 30, 2007.

Interest income from loans and investments has been the primary basis of earnings with
the net interest margin being the key determinant of net eamings. With a dependence on net
interest margin for earnings, current management will focus on strengthening the Bank's net
interest margin without undertaking excessive credit risk and will not pursue any significant

change in its interest ratc risk position.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

First Federal's financial position for the five most recent fiscal years ended December
31, 2006, and the six months ended June 30, 2007, is highlighted through the use of selected
financial data in Exhibit 5. First Federal has focused on maintaining a reasonable equity
position, controlling its overhead ratio, decreasing its loans and deposits, increasing its
securities, striving to reduce its nonperforming assets and maintaining its net interest margin.
First Federal experienced moderate decreases in assets and loans from December 31, 2002, to
June 30, 2007, with a lesser decrease in deposits, and a moderate increase in equity over the
same period due to the Bank’s $10.7 million in gains on the sale of securitics. Such decrease

in assets was focused on a decrease in real estate loans and consumer loans.

First Federal experienced a decrease in assets of $31.5 million or 12.5 percent for the
period of December 31, 2002, to June 30, 2007. The Bank's nct loan portfolio, including

mortgage loans and non-mortgage loans, decreascd from $164.2 million at December 31, 2002,




Performance Overview (cont.)

to $100.5 million at June 30, 2007, and represented a total decrease of $63.7 million, or 38.8

percent.

First Federal has pursued obtaining funds through deposits and has also made use of
FHLB advances during the period of December 31, 2002, to June 30, 2007. The Bank's
competitive rates for savings in its local market in conjunction with its focus on service have
been the sources and strategies for attracting retail deposits. Deposits decreased a moderate 8.7
percent from December 31, 2002, to June 30, 2007. The Bank's decrease in deposits was
foci:sed on 2003 and 2005. The Bank’s FHLB advances have decreased from $12.3 million at
December 31, 2002, to zero at June 30, 2007.

First Federal experienced an increase in its equity amount and ratio from December 31,
2002, to June 30, 2007, At December 31, 2002, the Bank had equity of $31.2 million
representing a 12.42 percent equity to assets ratio and then increasing to $34.3 million by
December 31, 2004, representing a 14.40 percent equity to asset ratio. The Bank’s equity then
decreased to $32.2 million at June 30, 2007, but representing a higher 14.67 percent equity to
asset ratio. Equity increased 3.3 percent from December 31, 2002, to June 30, 2007.



INCOME AND EXPENSE

Exhibit 6 presents selected operating data for First Federal, reflecting the Bank's income
and expense trends. This table provides key income and expense figures in dollars for the fiscal
years of 2002 through 2006 and for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

First Federal has experienced an overall decrease in its dollar amount of interest income
from fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, to December 31, 2006, due to the Bank's decrease
in interest-earning assets. Interest income decreased from $16.7 million in 2002 to $12.6
million in 2004. From 2004 to 2006, interest income decreased from $12.6 million to $12.4
million or 1.9 percent. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, interest income was $6.40

million, increasing from $6.25 million for the six months ended June 30, 2006.

The Bank'sinterest expense experienced a similar trend with a decreasc from fiscal 2002
to 2004 and then an increase from 2004 to 2006. Interest expense decreased $2,950,000 or 40.8
percent, from 2002 to 2004, compared to a dollar decrease in interest income of $4,023,000 or
24.1 percent, for the same time period. Then from 2004 to 2006, interest cxpense increased
$875,000 compared to a $238,000 decrease in interest income. Such decrease in interest
income, recognizing the increase in interest expense, resulted in a moderate dollar decrease in
annval net interest income of $2,186,000 or 23.2 percent for the four fiscal years ended
December 31, 2006, and a moderate decrease in the net interest margin ratio and the net interest
spread ratio. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, net interest income was a lower
$3,469,000, compared to $3,767,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2006, resulting in a

further decrease in the Bank’s net intercst spread and net interest margin.

The Bank has made provisions for loan losses in four of the past five fiscal years of 2002
through 2006 and for the six months ended June 30, 2007, with a recovery of provisions in
2006. The amounts of provisions were determined in recognition of the Bank's nonperforming
assets, charge-offs, repossessed assets, lending activity, and industry norms. The loan loss
provisions were $2,979,000, $558,000, $89,000 and $91,000 in the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2002 through 2005, respectively, and $32,000 for the six months ended




Income and Expense (cont.)

June 30, 2007. The Bank had a $736,000 recovery of loan loss provisions in 2006. The impact
of these loan loss provisions and one recovery has been to provide First Federal with a general
valuation allowance of $2,008,000 at June 30, 2007, or 1.96 percent of gross loans and 113.6

percent of nonperforming loans.

Total other income or noninterest income indicated a modest increase from fiscal year
2002 to 2006 with a large increasc in 2005 duc to a $10.7 million gain on the sale of securities.
Noninterest income was $2,496,000 in fiscal year 2002, representing 0.99 percent of assets.
Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2006, was a similar $2,536,000 and
representing 1.15 percent of assets. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, noninterest
income was $1,085,000, representing 0.99 percent of assets, annualized. Noninterest income
consists primarily of service charges, fees, insurance commissions, gains on sale of loans and

securitics and other income.

The Bank's general and administrative expenses or noninterest expenses increased from
$9,245,000 for the fiscal year of 2002 to $9,525,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006. The dollar increase in noninterest expenses was $280,000 from 2002 to 2006,
representing a percentage increase of 3.0 percent or 0.8 percent a year. This increase in
operating expenses was due to normal operations. On a percent of average assets basis,
operating expenses increased from 3.69 percent of average assets for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002, to 4.49 percent for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, which was
higher than the current industry average of approximately 2.34 percent and was impacted due
to the Bank’s shrinkage in assets. For the six months ended June 30, 2007, noninterest

expenses were $4,631,000, representing a similar 4.36 percent, annualized.

The net earnings position of First Federal has indicated earnings from 2003 through
2006, with a loss of $82,000 in 2002, and & loss of $26,000 for the six months ended June 30,
2007, or (0.02) percent, annualized. The annual net income figures for the past five fiscal years
of 2002 through 2006 were $(82,000), $1,818,000, $988,000, $5,540,000 and $625,000,
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Income and Expense (cont.)

representing returns on average assets of (0.03) percent, 0.74 percent, 0.41 percent, 2.44
percent, and 0.29 percent, respectively. The Bank’s net income for the six months ended June
30, 2007, was loss of $26,000, representing an annualized negative ROAA of (0.02) percent.

Exhibit 7 provides the Bank's normalized earnings or core earnings for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2007. The Bank's normalized earnings eliminate any nonrecurring
income and expense items, There were two adjustments, which were an elimination of
$651,000 of the recovery of provision for loan losses and the addition of $330,000 in gains on

the sale of securities.

The key performance indicators comprised of selected operating ratios, asset quality
ratios and equity ratios are shown in Exhibit 8 to reflect the results of performance. The Bank's
retum on assets decreased from 0.74 percent in fiscal year 2003, to 0.29 percent in fiscal year

2006, and then decreased to (0.02) percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

The Bank's average net interest rate spread decreased from 3.45 percent in fiscal year
2002 to 3.04 percent in fiscal year 2006 to 2.84 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007,
representing a total decrease of 61 basis points. The Bank’s net interest margin indicated a
similar trend, decreasing from 4.15 percent in fiscal year 2002 to 3.62 percent in fiscal year
2006 to 3.44 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007, representing a total decrease of

71 basis points.

The Bank's return on average equity increased from 2002 to 2003 and then decreased
from 2003 to 2006, and decreased further for the six months ended June 30, 2007. The return
on average equity increased from (0.26) percent in 2002 to 5.66 percent in fiscal year 2003, and
then decreased to 1.90 percent in 2006 and to (0.16) percent for the six months ended June 30,
2007, annualized.

11




Income and Expense (cont.)

First Federal's ratio of average interest-earning assels to average interest-beanng
liabilities decreased from 122.0 percent at December 31, 2002, to alower 120.6 percent at June
30, 2007.

The Bank's ratio of noninterest expenses to average assets increased from 3.69 percent
in fiscal year 2002, to a moderately higher 4.36 percent in the six months ended June 30, 2007,
anmualized. Another key noninterest expense ratio reflecting efficiency of operation is the ratio
of noninterest expenses to noninterest income plus net interest income referred to as the
nefficiency ratio.” The industry norm is 58.9 percent with the lower the ratio indicating higher
efficiency. The Bank has been characterized with a less favorable efficiency reflected in its
higher efficiency ratio, which increased from 77.5 percent in 2002 to 101.7 percent in the six
months ended June 30, 2007, annualized.

Earnings performance can be affected by an institution's asset quality position. The ratio
of nonperforming assets to total assets is a key indicator of asset quality. First Federal
experienced a modest increase in its nonperforming asset ratio from fiscal year 2002 to 2006
followed by a decrease in the six months ended June 30, 2007. Nonperforming assets consist
of loans delinquent 90 days or more, nonaccruing loans and repossessed assets. The Bank’s
nonperforming assets were comprised of nonaccrual loans and real estate owned. The ratio of
nonperforming assets to total assets was 2.16 percent at December 31, 2002, and increased to
2.47 percent at December 31, 2006, and then decreased to 0.80 percent at June 30, 2007, The
Bank's allowance for loan losses to loans was 1.96 percent at June 30, 2007, decreasing from
2.84 percent at December 31, 2002. As a percentage of nonperforming loans, First Federal's
allowance forloan losses decreased from 171.0 percent at December 31, 2002, to 113.6 percent
at June 30, 2007.

Exhibit 9 provides the changes in net interest income due to rate and volume changes
for the fiscal years of 2005 and 2006, and the six months ended June 30, 2007. In fiscal year

2005, net interest income increased $374,000, due to an increase in interest income of
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Income and Expense (cont.)

$75,000, increased by a $299,000 decrease in interest expense. The increase in interest income
was due to an increase due to rate of $340,000, reduced by a decrease due to volume of
$265,000. The decrease in interest expense was due to a decrease due to volume of $279,000,

accented by a decrease due to a change in rate of $20,000.

In fiscal year 2006, net interest income decreased $1,487,000, due to a decrease in
interest income of $313,000, enhanced by a $1,174,000 increase in interest expense. The
decrease in interest income was due to a decrease due to volume of $1,039,00, reduced by an
increase due to rate of $726,000. The increase in interest expense was due to an increase due

to rate of $1,707,000, reduced by a decrease due to volume of $533,000.

In the six months ended June 30, 2007, net interest income decreased $298,000, due to
an increase in interest expense of $455,000, reduced by a $157,000 increase in interest income.
The increase in interest income was due to an increase due to rate of $80,000, accented by an
increase due to volume of $77,000. The increase in interest expense was due to an increase due

to rate of $613,000, reduced by a decrease due to volume of $158,000.

YIELDS AND COSTS

The overview of yield and cost trends for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006, for the six months ended March 31, 2006 and 2007, and at June 30, 2007, can be seen
in Exhibit 10, which offers a summary of key yields on interest-earning assets and costs of

interest-bearing liabilities.

First Federal's weighted average yield on its loan portfolio increased 18 basis points
from fiscal year 2004 to 2006, from 6.88 percent to 7.06 percent, then increased 29 basis points
to 7.35 percent of the six months ended June 30, 2007, and then decreased 33 basis points at
June 30, 2007, to 7.02 percent. The yield on securities increased 76 basis points from fiscal
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Yields and Costs (cont.)

year 2004 to 2006 from 4.59 percent to 5.35 percent and then increased 10 basis points for the
six months ended June 30, 2007, to 5.45 percent, and then increased 34 basis points to 5.79
percent at June 30, 2007. The yield on interest-bearing deposits increased 289 basis points
from 2004 to 2006, from 0.94 percent in 2004 to 3.83 percent in 2006, then increased 172 basis
points to 5.55 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007, and then decreased 34 basis
points at June 30, 2007, to 5.21 percent. The yield on other interest-earning assets decreased
416 basis points from 2004 to 2006, from 8.22 percent in 2004 to 4.06 percent in 2006, then
decreased 26 basis points to 3.80 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007, and then
decreased 83 basis points to 2.97 percent at June 30, 2007. The yield on interest-carning assets
increased 70 basis points from fiscal year 2004 to 2006, from 5.46 percent to 6.16 percent, then
19 basis points to 6.35 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007.

First Federal's weighted average cost of interest-bearing liabilities increased 87 basis
points from fiscal year 2004 to 2006, which was greater than the Bank's 70 basis point increase
in yield on interest-earning assets, resulting in a decrease in the Bank's interest rate spread of
17 basis points from 3.21 percent to 3.04 percent from 2004 to 2006. The Bank's average cost
of interest-bearing liabilities then increased 39 basis points to 3.51 percent compared to a 19
basis point increase in yield on interest-eaming assets for the six months ended June 30, 2007.
The result was a decrease in the Bank's interest rate spread of 20 basis points to 2.84 percent
for the six months ended June 30, 2007. The Bank's net interest margin decreased from 3.61
percent in fiscal year 2004 to 3.60 percent in fiscal year 2006 and then decreased 16 basis points
to 3.44 percent for the six months ended June 30, 2007.
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

First Federal has monitored its interest rate sensitivity position and focused on
maintaining a moderate balance of rate sensitive assets by originating a modest share of
adjustable-rate mortgage loans and maintaining a moderate balance of short-term and
adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities. First Federal recognizes the thrift industry’s
historically higher interest rate risk exposure, which caused a negative impact on earnings and
market value of portfolio equity in the past as a result of significant fluctuations in interest rates,
specifically rising rates in the past. Such exposure was due to the disparate rate of maturity
and/or repricing of assets relative liabilities commonly referred to as an institution's "gap”. The
larger an institution's gap, the greater the risk (interest rate risk) of earnings loss due to a
decrease in net interest margin and a decrease in market value of equity or portfolio loss. In
response to the potential impact of interest rate volatility and negative eamings impact, many
institutions have taken steps to minimize their gap position. This frequently results in a decline
in the institution's net interest margin and overall eamings performance, First Federal has
responded to the interest rate sensitivity issue by being a more active purchaser of adjustable-

rate mortgage-backed securitics.

The Bank measures its interest raterisk through the use of its net portfolio value ("NPV"™)
of the expected cash flows from interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and any
off-balance sheet contracts. The NPV for the Bank is calculated on a quarterly basis, by the
OTS, showing the change in the NPV for the Bank under rising and falling interest rates. Such

changes in NPV under changing rates is reflective of the Bank's interest rate risk exposure.

There are numerous factors which have a measurable influence on interest rate sensitivity
in addition to changing interest rates. Such key factors to consider when analyzing interest rate
sensitivity include the loan payoff schedule, accelerated principal payments, deposit maturities,

interest rate caps on adjustable-rate mortgage loans and deposit withdrawals.
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Interest Rate Sensitivity (cont.)

Exhibit 11 provides the Bank's NPV as of June 30, 2007, based on OTS calculations and
the change in the Bank's NPV under rising and declining interest rates. The focus of this

exposure table is a 200 basis points change in interest rates either up or down.

The Bank's change in its NPV at June 30, 2007, based on a rise in interest rates of 100
basis points was a 9.0 percent decrease, representing a dollar decrease in equity value of
$3,965,000. In contrast, based on a decline in interest rates of 100 basis points, the Bank's NPV
was estimated to increase 4.0 percent or $1,894,000 at June 30, 2007. The Bank's exposure
increases to an 18.0 percent decrease under a 200 basis point rise in rates. The Bank's post
shock NPV ratio is 16.15 percent at June 30, 2007, and the Bank's change in its NPV ratio is

anegative 286 basis points, bascd on a 200 basis point increase in intercst rates.

The Bank is aware of its minimal intercst rate risk exposure under rapidly rising rates and
falling rates, impacted by its higher equity to asset ratio of 14.96 percent. Dueto First Federal's
desire to control its interest rate exposure, the Bank has been a more active originator of short
term construction loans and adjustable-rate commercial real estate loans and plans to continue

this iending strategy.

LENDING ACTIVITIES

First Federal has focused its lending activity historically on the origination of
conventional mortgage loans sccured by one- to four-family dwellings with an increasing
emphasis on commercial real estate loans and construction loans. Exhibit 12 provides a
summary of First Federal's loan portfolio, by loan type, at December 31, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005
and 2006, and at June 30, 2007.

Residential loans secured by one- to four-family dwellings was the primary loan type,
representing 30.1 percent of the Bank's gross loans as of June 30, 2007. This share has seen
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Lending Activities (cont.)

a modest increase from 23.3 percent at December 31, 2002. The second largest individual loan
type was commercial real estate loans, which represented 25.2 percent of loans at June 30,2007,
increasing from 24.9 percent at December 31, 2002. The third largest loan type as of June 30,
2007, was construction loans, which comprised a 20.2 percent share of gross loans compared
to a lesser 16.6 percent as of December 31, 2002. Land loans were the fourth largest loan type
at June 30, 2007, which represented 7.0 percent of gross loans, compared to a larger 7.4 percent
at December 31, 2002. The final real estate loan type was multi-family loans which represented
5.6 percent of gross loans at June 30, 2007, down from 7.2 percent at December 31, 2002. The
five real estate loan types represented 88.1 percent of gross loans at June 30, 2007, compared
to a smaller 79.4 percent of gross loans at December 31, 2002.

Commercial loans represented a small size loan category for First Federal with regard
to the amount of Joans. Commercial loans totaled $3,213,000 and represented 3.1 percent of
total loans at June 30, 2007, compared to a much larger $11,579,000 and 6.8 percent of total
loans at December 31, 2002.

The consumer loan category was the remaining loan category at June 30, 2007, and
represented a modest 8.8 percent of gross loans compared to 14.2 percent at December 31,
2002. The primary types of consumer loans are home equity loans, savings account loans,
automobile loans and secured and unsecured personal loans. Consumer loans were the fifth
largest overall loan type, at June 30, 2007, and the fourth largest loan type at December 31,
2002. The overall mix of loans has experienced some moderate changes from the end of fiscal

year 2002 to June 30, 2007, with the Bank witnessing a decrease in the balances of most loan
types.

The emphasis of First Federal's lending activity is the origination of conventional
mortgage loans secured by one- to four-family residences. Such residences are located in First
Federal's market arca which includes Montgomery County in Tennessee. The Bank also

originates interim construction loans on one- to four-family residences to individual owners and
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Lending Activities (cont.)

to devclopers for the construction of multi-family housing projects. At June 30, 2007, 30.1
percent of First Federal's gross loans consisted of loans secured by one- to four-family
residential propertics, excluding construction loans, One- to four-family construction loans

represented another 14,5 percent of gross loans at June 30, 2007,

The Bank originates one-year, three-year and five-year adjustable-rate mortgage loans
("ARMs") and three-year and five-year hybrid loans, which have a fixed rate for the initial term
and then convert to an adjustable rate. The initial interest rates on ARMs are indexed to the rate
ont one-year U. S. Treasury securities adjusted to a constant one-year maturity plus a margin.
One-year, three-year, and five-year ARM loans have a maximum rate adjustment of 2.0 percent
at each adjustrnent period and a maximum rate adjustment of 6.0 percent for the life of the loan,
with paymentsbased on up to a 30 year loan term. The Bank does not use below market interest
rates to attract borrowers. The Bank retains all of the ARM loans which it originates.

The majority of ARMs have terms of up to 30 years, and fixed rate loans have normal
terms of 10 to 30 years. The Bank has retained its ARMs and short term fixed-rate residential
mortgage loans. Historically, the majority of First Federal's one-to four-family mortgage loan
portfolio have been fixed-rate mortgage loans, which represented 93.0 percent of one-to four-
family mortgage loans at June 30, 2007, with 7,0 percent being ARMs.

The normal loan-to-value ratio for conventional mortgage loans to purchase or refinance
one-to four-family dwellings generally does not exceed 80 percent at First Federal, even though
the Bank will grant loans with up to a 100 percent oan to value ratio, but private mortgage
insurance is generally required for loans with a loan-to-value ratio in excess of 80.0 percent.
Mortgage loans originated by the Bank include due-on-sale clauses enabling the Bank to adjust
rates on fixed-rate loans in the event the borrower transfers ownership. The Bank normally

exercises its rights under these clauses.
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Lending Activities (cont.)

First Federal originates construction loans in its market area. Construction loans totaled
$20.7 million at June 30, 2007, and represented 20.2 percent of loans with $5.8 million of the

construction loans for nonresidential real estate and multi-family properties.

First Federal has also been a relatively active originator of nonresidential real estate
loans. The Bank will continue to make nonresidential loans. The Bank had a total of $25.9
million in nonresidential loans at June 30, 2007, or 25.2 percent of gross loans, compared to
$42.1 million or 24.9 percent of gross loans at December 31, 2002. The major portion of
nonresidential loans is secured by motels, office buildings, retail stores, churches and other
commercial properties and are located in the Bank's primary market area. The Bank also has

$7.2 mililion or 7.0 percent of loans in land loans.

The Bank has been relatively active in the origination of home equity loans, which
totaled $6.8 million at June 30, 2007, representing 6.7 percent of loans. The Bank’s home
equity loans are normally adjustable-rate loans with a term of 10 years, The Bank’s home

equity loans normally have a loan to value ratio of 80.0 percent, including the first mortgage.

The Bank also originates commercial loans to area businesses which totaled $3.2 million
and represented 3.1 percent of loans at June 30, 2007. Such business loans are term loans rather
than lines of credit and are generally secured by equipment, inventory and accounts receivable.
First Federal has not been active in automobile lending and also less active in consumer lending.
Consumer loans, excluding home equity loans originated, consist primarily of secured and
unsecured personal loans, and savings account loans and represented $2.1 million or 2.1 percent
of gross loans at June 30, 2007, down from $6.5 million or 3.9 percent of loans at December
31, 2002. Other consumer loans totaled a relatively strong $4.2 million and represented 2.5
percent of gross loans at December 31, 2002.

Exhibit 13 provides a loan maturity schedule and breakdown and summary of First

Federal's fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans, indicating a majority of fixed-rate loans. At
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Lending Activities (cont.)

June 30, 2007, 89.1 percent of the Bank's total loans due after June 30, 2007, were fixed-rate
and 10.9 percent were adjustable-rate; however, the Bank has a strong 75.8 percent of its loans

at June 30, 2007, due in five years or less.

Asindicated in Exhibit 14, First Federal indicated a predominance of one- to four-family
loan originations. One- to four-family loan originations totaled $33.9 million in fiscal 2006 and
represented 38.6 percent of total loan originations. The second largest loan origination category
was construction loans, which totaled $30.7 million and represented 34.9 percent of total
originations followed by multi-family and nonresidential loans, which totaled $10.1 million and
represented a lesser 11.4 percent of total loan originations. The fourth largest loan lorigination
category in fiscal 2006 was land loans, which totaled $6.9 million and represented 7.8 percent
of total originations. The Bank had $87.9 in loan originations in fiscal 2006 with no loan
purchases, resulting in a net decrease in total loans of $22.9 million or 18.5 percent and a

decrease from $131.0 million in loan originations in 2004.

In the six months ended June 30, 2007, total loan originations were $59.3 million, up
from $35.7 million in the six months ended June 30, 2006, and representing $118.6 million on

an annuatized basis.

NONPERFORMING ASSETS

First Federal understands asset quality risk and the direct relationship of such risk to
delinquent loans and nonperforming assets including real estate owned. The quality of assets
has been a key concern to financial institutions throughout many regions of the country. A
number of financial institutions have been confronted with recent increases in their
nonperforming assets and have been forced to recognize losses by setting aside higher valuation
allowances. A sharp increase in nonperforming assets has often been related to specific regions

of the country and has frequently been associated with higher risk loans, including purchased
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Nonperforming Assets (cont.)

nonresidential real estate loans. First Federal has been faced with higher balances of delinquent

loans and nonperforming assets from December 31, 2002 to June 30, 2007.

On a monthly basis, First Federal's management reviews all loans delinquent 30 days or
more, to assess their collectibility and to initiate any direct contact with borrowers. When aloan
is delinquent, the Bank sends the borrower a late payment notice within 15 days after the
payment is due. The Bank then initiates both written and oral communication with the borrower
if the loan remains delinquent for 60 days. When the loan becomes delinquent at least 90 days,
the Bank will commence foreclosure proceedings. The Bank does not normally accrue interest
on loans past due 90 days or more. Most loans delinquent 90 days or more are placed on a
nonaccrual status, and at that point in time the Bank pursues foreclosure procedures or may
decide to modify the loan or grant a limited moratorium to allow the borrower to reorganize his

financial affairs.

Exhibit 15 provides a summary of First Federal's delinquent loans at December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 and at June 30, 2007. Delinquent loans include loans 30 to 89 days past due and
loans 90 days or more past due. The Bank had $2,525,000 in delinquent loans at June 30, 2007,
compared to a larger $4,546,000 at December 31, 2004, The delinquent loans included 11.7
percent in loans 90 days or more past due at June 30, 2007, compared to a higher 54.4 percent
at December 31, 2004. The delinquent loans consisted of $1,474,000 in one- to four-family
loans, $349,000 in multi-family and nonresidential loans, $184,000 in construction loans,

$15,000 in land loans, and $490,000 in consumer loans at June 30, 2007,

Exhibit 16 provides a summary of First Federal's nonperforming assets at December 31,
2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 and at June 30, 2007. Nonperforming assets consist of
nonaccrual loans, loans delinquent 90 days or more and real estate owned including other
repossessed assets. The Bank has carried a much higher balance of nonperforming assets, from
December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2006, and these assets have decreased from December 31,
2002 to June 30, 2007. First Federal's nonperforming assets decreased in dollars from
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Nonperforming Assets (cont.)

$5,416,000 representing 2.16 percent of assets at December 31, 2002, to $1,767,000,
representing a lower 0.80 percent of assets at June 30, 2007. At June 30, 2007, First Federal's
nonperforming assets consisted of $1,767,000 in nonaccrual loans, with no loans 90 days or
more past due and no real estate owned. The Bank’s nonaccrual loans have decreased from
$2,808,000 at December 31, 2002, to $1,767,000 at June 30, 2007, while the Bank’s real estate
owned has decreased from $2,598,000 to zero.

First Federal's nonperforming assets were lower than its classified assets. The Bank’s
classified assets were $3,168,000 or 1.44 percent of assets at June 30, 2007 (reference Exhibit
17). The Bank's classified assets at June 30, 2007, consisted of $1,585,000 in substandard
assets, $1,583,0001n assets classified as doubtful and no assets classified as loss. The Bank had
$11,423,000 in classified assets at December 31, 2004, or 4.81 percent of assets, with
$9,878,000 classified as substandard, $1,330,000 classified as doubtful and $215,000 classified
as loss. The Bank had $8,584,000 in classified assets at December 31, 2006, with $7,110,000
in substandard assets, $308,000 classified as doubtful and no assets classified as loss.

Exhibit 18 shows First Federal's allowance for loan losses for fiscal years ended
December 31, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and at June 30, 2007, indicating the activity
and the resultant balances. First Federal has experienced a decrease in its balance of allowance
for loan losses from $4,802,000 at December 31, 2002, to $2,008,000 at June 30, 2007, with
the major portion of the decrease due to charge-offs. The balance in allowance for loan losses
decreased from December 31, 2002, to December 31, 2003, due to higher net charge-offs in
2003 of $2,185,000. The Bank's ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross loans decreased
from 2.84 percent at December 31, 2002, to 1.96 percent at June 30, 2007. The ratio of
allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loans was 171.0 percent at December 31,2002, and

a lower 113.6 percent at June 30, 2007, reflecting the decrease in allowance for loan losses.

22




INVESTMENTS

The investment securties portfolio of First Federal has been comprised of U.S.
Government and federal agency securities, mortgage-backed securities, corporate equity
securities, municipal securities and corporate debt securities. Exhibit 19 provides a summary
of First Federal's investment securities at December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and at June 30,
2007, excluding FHLB stock and interest-earning deposits. Investment securities, including
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities, totaled $47.5 million at December 31, 2004,
compared to $93.6 million at June 30, 2007, excluding FHLB stock of $2,872,000 at June 30,
2007. The large increase in investment securities was primarily the result of an increase in U.S.
government and federal agency available-for-sale securities by $40.9 million from December
31, 2004 to June 30, 2007. The primary component of investment sccurities at June 30, 2007,
was the U.S. govermnment and federal agency securities, representing 50.6 percent of
investments. The investment securities had a weighted average yield of 5.45 percent for the six
months ended June 30, 2007. The Bank also had federal funds sold totaling $3.9 million at June
30,2007, with a yield of 5.55 percent and other interest-bearing deposits totaling $900,000 with
a yield of 3.80 percent at June 30, 2007.

DEPOSIT ACTIVITIES

The change in the mix of deposits from December 31, 2004, to June 30, 2007, is
provided in Exhibit 20. There has been a modest change in both total deposits and in the
deposit mix during this period. Certificates of deposit experienced a modest decrease in their
dollar balance and a decrease in their share of total deposits, declining from 53.8 percent of total
deposits at December 31, 2004, to 51.2 percent of total deposits at June 30, 2007. This decrease
correlates to the industry norm of a slight decrease in the share of certificates. The major
cornponent of certificates had rates between 5.01 percent and 6.00 percent and represented 53.2
percent of certificates at June 30, 2007. Regular savings accounts increased in dollar amount
from $15.7 million to $17.5 million, and their share of total deposits increased from 8.6 percent
to 9.5 percent from December 31, 2004, to June 30, 2007. NOW or checking accounts
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Deposit Activities (cont.)

indicated a decrease from $33.8 million at December 31, 2004, to $27.5 million at June 30,
2007, and their share of total deposits decreased from 18.4 percent to 14.9 percent. Noninterest-
bearing checking accounts indicated an increase from $8.7 million at December 31, 2004, to
$11.5 million at June 30, 2007, with their share of dcposits increasing from 4.8 percent at
December 31, 2004, to 6.2 percent at June 30, 2007. Money market accounts increased from
$26.3 million at December 31, 2004, to $33.3 million at June 30, 2007, and an increase in their

share of total deposits, rising from 14.4 percent to 18.1 percent during the same time period.

Exhibit 21 shows the Bank's breakdown in certificates of deposit by maturity at June 30,
2007, and a breakdown in certificates of deposit by rate at December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006,
and at June 30, 2007. First Federal has a strong 84.5 percent of its certificates of deposit
maturing in less than one year and another 13.2 percent maturing in onc to two years. The
major share of certificates had interest rates from 5.01 percent to 6,00 percent responsible for
53,2 percent of certificates with the second largest category having rates between 4.01 percent

and 5.00 percent and representing 25.0 percent of certificates.

Exhibit 22 shows the Bank’s deposit activity for the three years ended December 31,
2004, 2005 and 2006, and for the six months ended June 30, 2006 and 2007. Including interest
credited, First Federal experienced net decreascs in deposits in the fiscal years ended 2004 and
2005, and in the six months ended June 30, 2006. In fiscal year 2006, there was a net increasc
in deposits of $5.5 million or 3.2 percent of deposits. In the year ended December 31, 2004,
there was a net decrease in deposits of $5.7 million, resvlting in a 3.0 percent decrease in
deposits followed by a net decrease in deposits of $11.7 million or 6.4 percent of deposits. In
the six months ended June 30, 2007, there was a net increase in deposits of $7.5 million or 4.2
percent of deposits.
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BORROWINGS

First Federal has relied on retail deposits as its primary source of funds but has also made
use of FHLB advances. Exhibit 22 shows the Bank's FHLB advances for the past three fiscal
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, and at June 30, 2006 and 2007. The Bank had
FHLB advances totaling $12.2 million at December 31, 2004, representing 5.1 percent of assets
with such advances having decreased to zero at December 31, 2006, and remained at zero at

June 30, 2007. The cost of FHLB advances was 5.10 percent at December 31, 2004,

SUBSIDIARIES

First Federal has no active subsidiaries.

OFFICE PROPERTIES

First Federal has four full service offices, one drive-thru facility, one ATM site and a
total of seven ATM machines, with all of these facilities located in Clarksville, Montgomery
County, Tennessee (reference Exhibit 23). First Federal owns all its offices. The Bank’s net
investment in its office premises totaled $5,348,000 or 2.43 percent of assets at June 30, 2007.

MANAGEMENT
The chief executive officer of First Federal is Earl O. Bradley, III. Mr. Bradley joined
the Bank in 2005 as chief executive officer and also as a director. Mr. Bradley served as

chairman and chief executive officer of MAP Industrics, Inc., a manufacturing company, from

2002 to 2005, Prior to that, Mr. Bradley served as regional president of Old National Bank
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Management (cont.)

(formerly Heritage Bank) from 1988 to 2001. John T. Halliburton joined First Federal in 2005
as president. Prior to joining First Federal, Mr. Halliburton served as a commercial lending
officer at Old National Bank. Mr. Halliburton has been a director since 2006. Patrick A.
Greenwell is chief financial officer and has held this position since joining the Bank in 2005,
Prior to joining First Federal, Mr. Greenwell was senior vice president-information systems with
Wachovia Bank. Franklin G. Wailace is the chief information officer, a position he has held
since joining the Bank in 2005. Prior to that, Mr. Wallace was a senior vice president at Old
National Bank. Jon R. Clouser serves the Bank as executive vice president, a position he has
held since March 2007. From March 2003 to March 2007, Mr. Clouser was executive vice
president of Cumberland Bank and Trust, and from March 2000 to March 2003, he was senior
vice president of Old National Bank.
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II. DESCRIPTION OF PRIMARY MARKET AREA

First Federal’s market area encompasses Montgomery County in Tennessee. The Bank's
four offices are in the city of Clarksville in Montgomery County, accounting for all of the

Bank’s deposits.

Exhibit 26 provides a summary of key demographic data and trends for Montgomery
County, Tennessee and the United States. From 1990 to 2000, population increased in all
demographic areas. The population increased by a strong 34.1 percent in Montgomery County,
16.7 percent in Tennessee and 13.2 percent in the United States. Compared to 2000, the
population in 2006 indicated another increase of 16.3 percent in Montgomery County, while
Tennessee and the United States also indicated growth of an identical 7.9 percent. Projections
indicate that population will continue to increase in all areas through 2011. Montgomery
County’s population is projected to increase by 12.3 percent, with a projected 6.2 percent

increase in Tennessee and a 6.7 percent increase in the United States.

Montgomery County experienced an increase in houscholds from 1990to 2000. During
those ten years, the number of households increased in Montgomery County by 26.2 percent,
in Tennessee by 20.5 percent and in the United States by 14.7 percent. The trend in household
growth from 2000 to 2006 indicates an increase in Montgomery County of 31.3 percent.
Tennessee indicated an increase of 9.3 percent, slightly higher than the United States' increase
at 8.1 percent. From 2006 through the year 2011, households are projected to increase by 12.9
percent, 6.9 percent and 6.9 percent in Montgomery County, Tcnnessee and the United States,

respectively.

In 1990, Montgomery County had a per capita income of $1 1,056 with per capita income
of 12,255 in Tennessee and $14,420 in the United States. From 1990 to 2000, per capita
income increased in all areas. Montgomery County’s per capita income increased from 1990
to 2000 by 56.2 percent to $17,265. Per capita income increased by 58.2 percent in Tennessee
to $19,393 and by 49.7 percent to $21,587 in the United States. From 2000 to 2006, per capita
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Description of Primary Market Area (cont.)

income continued to increase by 25.3 percent, 26.3 percent and 21,5 percent to $21,628, 24,488
and $26,228 in Montgomery County, Tenncssce and the United States, respectively.

The 1990 median household income of $25,568 in Montgomery County was higher than
the median household income in Tennessce of $24,807 but lower than the $30,056 in the
United States. From 1990 to 2000, median household income increased in all areas, with
Montgomery County indicating a 52.5 percent increase to $38,981, compared to a 46.6 percent
increase to $36,360 in Tennessee and a 39.7 percent increase to $41,994 in the United States.
From 2000 to 2006, median household income in Montgomery County was estimated to have
increased 23.5 percent to $48,123. Tennessee’s median househeld income grew 23.7 percent
to $44,992, and the United States' increase was 15.6 percent to $48,534 from 2000 to 2006.
From 2006 to 2011, median household income is projected to increase by 17.8 percent in
Monigomery County, by 18.1 percent in Tennessee and by 25.1 percent in the United States.
Based on those rates of increase, by 2011, median household income is projected to be $56,676
in Montgomery County, $53,128 in Tennessee, and $60,704 in the United States.

Exhibit 27 provides a summary ofkey housing data for Montgomery County, Tennessee
and the United States. In 1990, Montgomery County had a rate of owner-occupancy of 61.1
percent, lower than other areas, with Tennessee and the United States at 68.0 percent and 64.2
percent, respectively. As a result, Montgomery County supported a higher rate of renter-
occupied housing of 38.9 percent, compared to 32.0 percent in Tennessee and 35.8 percent in
the United States. In 2000, owner-occupied housing increased in Montgomery County to 63.5
percent, and also increased in Tennessee and the United States to 69.9 percent and 66.2 percent,
respectively. Conversely, the renter-occupied rates decreased in Montgomery County to 36.5
percent and in Tennessee and the United States to 30.1 percent and 33.8 percent, respectively.

Montgomery County’s1990 median housing value was $58,200 with Tennessee at a
similar $58,000 and the United States at a higher $78,500. The 1990 median rent in
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Description of Primary Market Area (cont.)

Montgomery County was $373 compared to Tennessee at $357 and the United States at $374.
In 2000, median housing values had increased in Montgomery County, Tennessee and the
United States. Montgomery County had a 2000 median housing value of $85,100 with
Tennessee at $93,000 and the United States at $119,600. The 2000 median rents were $549 in
Montgomery County and $505 and $602 in Tennessee and the United States, respectively.

In 1990, the major source of empioyment in Montgomery County by industry sector,
based on share of employment, was the services sector with an average of 39.4 percent. The
services sector was also the source of the majority of employment in Tennessee and the United
States with 33.5 percent of employment in Tennessee and 34.0 percent in the United States
(reference Exhibit 28). The wholesale/retail sector was the second major employment source
in the market area at 23.7 percent, accounting for a higher 27.5 percent in the United States. In
Tennessee, the manufacturing sector was the second major employer at 23.3 percent of
employment. The manufacturing sector was the third major employment sector in Montgomery
County at 18.1 percent, also third in the Uiiited States at 19.2 percent, with the wholesale/retail
sector third in Tennessee at 21.3 percent. The construction sector, finance, insurance and real
estate sector, transportation/utilities sector, and the agriculture/mining sector combined to
provide 18.8 percent of employment in Montgomery County, 21.9 percent in Tennessee and

19.3 percent in the United States.

In 2000, the services industry, manufacturing industry and wholesale/retail trade
provided the first, second and third highest sources of employment, respectively, for
Montgomery County, similar Tennessee with the United States again having a slightly higher
amount of persons employed in the wholesale/retail sector than the manufacturing sector. The
services industry accounted for 47.3 percent, 42.3 percent and 46.7 percent in Montgomery
County, Tennessee and the United States, respectively. The manufacturing provided for 16.1
percent, 18.9 percent and 14.1 percent in Montgomery County, Tennessee and the United States,
respectively. The wholesale/retail sector provided 15.2 percent, 15.6 percent and 15.3 percent
of employment in Montgomery County, Tennessee and the United States, respectively.
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Description of Primary Market Area (cont.)

Some of the largest employers in the area are listed below.

Number of

Employer Business Emplovees
Clarksville-Montgomery

Coumnty School System Education 2,900
Convergys Corporation Computer software 1,400
Trane Company Heating & Air Conditioning Equipt. 1,400
Gateway Health Systems Health Care 1,200
Quebecor Magazines, catalogs, inserts 1,000
City of Clarksville Government 989
Montgomery County Government 850
Austin Peay State University = Education 732
Jostens, Printing &

Publishing Division Yearbooks & Commercial Printing 600
Robert Bosch Corp. Hubs, Rotors & Comer Modules 500
Bridgestone Metalpha USA Steet Cord 400

Unemployment rates are another key economic indicator. Exhibit 29 shows the
unemployment rates in Montgomery County, Tennessce and the United States in 2003 through
June of 2007. Montgomery County has been generally characterized by lower unemployment
rates compared to both Tennessce and the United States. I[n 2003, Montgomery
County had an unemploymentrate of 5.1 percent, compared to rates of 5.7 percent in Tennessee
and 6.0 percent in the United States. Unemployment rates decreased in 2004, to 4.9 percent in
Montgomery County, 5.5 percent in Tennessee and 5.5 percent in the United States. In 2005,
Montgomery County and Tennessee had unemployment rate increases, while the rate in the
United States continued to decrease. Montgomery County had an unemployment rate of 5.0
percent, while Tennessee increased to 5.6 percent and the United States decreased to 5.1
percent. In 2006, unemployment rates decreased to 4.8 percent, 4.1 percent, and 4.3 percent in
Montgomery County, Tennessee and the United States, respectively. Through June of 2007,
unemployment rates were 4.5 percent, 4.4 percent and 4.7 percent in Montgomery County,

Tennessee and the United States, respectively.

30




Description of Primary Market Area (cont.)

Exhibit 30 provides deposit data for banks and thrifts in Montgomery County. At June
30, 2006, First Federal was the only thrift institution in Montgomery County and had deposits
of $173.4 million, which represented a small 11.6 percent share of the $1.5 billion of total
deposits in Montgomery County. It is evident from the size of the thrift and bank deposits that
the market area has a moderate deposit base, with the 48 banking offices representing 10

institutions having average deposits of $31.1 million

Exhibit 31 provides interest rate data for each quarter for the years 2002 through 2006.
The interest rates tracked are the Prime Rate, as well as 90-Day, One-Year and Thirty-Year
Treasury Bills. Short term interest rates experienced a declining trend in 2002 and then a
basically flat trend in 2003. This trend indicates some increase in One-Year Treasury Bills and
30-Year Treasury Notes. Then rates indicated constant increases each quarter in 2005 and
continuing at a strong pace in the first quarter of 2006 and then stabilizing for the remainder of
2006. In the first half of 2007, rates on Thirty-Year Treasuries increased, resulting in areversal
of the inverted yield curve.

SUMMARY

Montgomery County, has experienced an strong increase in population and households
since 1990. Such a pattern is projected to continue from 2006 through 2011, but at a lower rate.
Montgomery County indicated a lower per capita income and lower median household income
than the United States, In both 1990 and 2000, the median rent in Montgomery County was
lower than Tennessee’s median rent as well as the national average. In 1990 and 2000,
Montgomery County’s median housing value was slightly lower than in Tennessee and much
lower than the United States’ median housing value, Montgomery County has had slightly
lower unemployment rates compared to Tennessee and the United States. Finally, the market
area is a competitive financial institution market dominated by banks with a total market area

deposit base for banks and thrifts of $1.5 billion,
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1I. COMPARABLE GROUP SELECTION

Introduction

Integral to the valuation of the Corporation is the selection of an appropriate group of
publicly-traded thrift institutions, hereinafter referred to as the "comparable group”. This
section identifies the comparable group and describes each parameter used in the selection of
each institution in the group, resulting in a comparable group based on such specific and
detailed parameters, current financials and recent trading prices. The various characteristics of
the selected comparable group provide the primary basis for making the necessary adjustments
to the Corporation's pro forma value relative to the comparable group. There is also a
recognition and consideration of financial comparisons with all publicly-traded, FDIC-insured
thrifts in the United States and all publicly-traded, FDIC-insured thrifts in the Midwest region

and in Tennessee.

Exhibits 32 and 33 present Thrift Stock Prices and Pricing Ratios and Key Financial Data
and Ratios, respectively, both individually and in aggregate, for the universe of 199 publicly-
traded, FDIC-insured thrifis in the United States ("all thrifts"), excluding mutual holding
companies, used in the selection of the comparable group and other financial comparisons.
Exhibits 32 and 33 also subclassify all thrifts by region, including the 78 publicly-traded
Midwest thrifts ("Midwest thrifts") and the 5 publicly-traded thrifts in Tennessee (“Tennessee
thrifts"), and by trading exchange. Exhibit 34 presents price trends for all thrift conversions,
including first stage mutual holding company transactions and second stage conversions
completed between January 1, 2006, and August 15, 2007. Exhibit 34A presents price trends
for all full conversions completed between January 1, 2005, and August 15, 2007,

The selection of the comparable group was based on the establishment of both general
and specific parameters using financial, operating and asset quality charactenstics of First
Federal as determinants for defining those parameters. The determination of parameters was

also based on the uniqueness of each parameter as a normal indicator of a thrift institution’s
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Introduction (cont.)

operating philosophy and perspective. The parameters established and defined are considered

to be both reasonable and reflective of First Federal’s basic operation.

Inasmuch as the comparable group must consist of at least teninstitutions, the parameters
relating to asset size and geographic location have been expanded as necessary in order to fulfill

this requirement.

GENERAL PARAMETERS
Merger/Acquisition

The comparable group will not include any institution that is in the process of a merger
or acquisition due to the price impact of such a pending transaction. As of August 15, 2007,
one potential comparable group candidate, Great Pee Dee Bancorp, Inc., had to be eliminated

due to involvement in a merger/acquisition transaction.

There is are no pending merger/acquisition transaction involving thrift institutions in

First Federal’s city, county or market area, as indicated in Exhibit 35.

Mutual Holding Companies

The comparable group will not include any mutual holding companies. The percentage
of public ownership of individual mutual holding companies indicates a wide range from
minimal to 49 percent, the largest permissible percentage, causing them to demonstrate certain
varying individual characteristics different among themselves and from conventional, publicly-
traded comparies, A further reason for the elimination of mutual holding companies as

potential comparable group candidates relates to the presence of a mid-tier, publicly-traded
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Mutual Holding Companies (cont.)

holding company in some, but not all, mutual holding company structures. The presence of
mid-tier holding companies can also result in inconsistent and unreliable comparisons among
the considerably smaller universe of 73 publicly-traded mutuval holding companies as well
between those 73 entities and the larger universe of conventional, publicly-traded thrift
institutions. As aresult of the foregoing and other factors, mutual holding companies typically
demonstrate higher pricing ratios that relate to their minority ownership structure and are
inconsistent in their derivation with those calculated for conventionally structured, publicly-
traded institutions. In our opinion it is appropriate to limit individual comparisons to
institutions that are 100 percent publicly owned. Exhibit 36 presents pricing ratios and Exhibit
37 presents key financial data and ratios for the 73 publicly-traded, FDIC-insured mutual
holding companies in the United States. All thrift institutions that were potential comparable

group candidates but were in the mutual holding company form were not considered.

Trading Exchange

It is necessary that each institution in the comparable group be listed on one of the three
major stock exchanges, the New York Stock Exchange, the American Stock Exchange, or the
National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System (NASDAQ). Such
a listing indicates that an institution's stock has demonstrated trading activity and is responsive
to normal market conditions, which are requirements for listing. Of the 277 publicly-traded,
FDIC-insured institutions, including 73 mutual holding companies, 14 are traded on the New
York Stock Exchange, 6 are traded on the American Stock Exchange and 148 are listed on
NASDAQ, 74 are traded on the OTC Bulletin Board and 35 are listed in the Pink Sheets.
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IPO Date

Another general parameter for the selection of the comparable group is the initial public
offering ("[PO") date, which must be at least four quarterly periods prior to the trading date of
August 15, 2007, used in this report, in order to insure at least four consecutive quarters of
reported data as a publicly-traded institution. The resulting parameter is a required [PO date
prior to June 30, 2006,

Geographic Location

The geographic location of an institution is a key parameter due to the impact of various
economic and thrift industry conditions on the performance and trading prices of thrift
institution stocks. Although geographic location and asset size are the two parameters that have
been developed incrementally to fulfill the comparable group requirements, the geographic
location parameter has nevertheless eliminated regions of the United States distant to Delanco,

including the western and southwestern states.

The geographic location parameter consists of New England, Mid-Atlantic, Midwest and
Southeast states. To extend the geographic parameter beyond those states could result in the
selection of similar thrift institutions with regard to financial conditions and operating
characteristics, but with different pricing ratios due to their geographic regions. The result
could then be an unrepresentative comparable group with regard to price relative to the

parameters and, therefore, an inaccurate value.

Asset Size

Asset size was another key parameter used in the selection of the comparable group. The
range of total assets for any potential comparable group institution was $800 million or less, due

to the general similarity of asset mix and operating strategies of institutions within this asset
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Asset Size (cont.)

range, compared to First Federal, with assets of approximately $219.7 million. Such an asset
size parameter was necessary to obtain an appropriate comparable group of at least ten

institutions.

In connection with asset size, we did not consider the number of offices or branches in
selecting or eliminating candidates, since that characteristic is directly related to operating

expenses, which are recognized as an operating performance parameter.

SUMMARY

Exhibits 38 and 39 show the 45 institutions considered as comparable group candidates

after applying the general parameters, with the shaded lines denoting the institutions ultimately

selected for the comparable group using the balance sheet, performance and asset quality

parameters established in this section.

BALANCE SHEET PARAMETERS

Introduction

The balance sheet parameters focused on seven balance sheet ratios as determinants for

selecting a comparable group, as presented in Exhibit 38. The balance sheet ratios consist of

the following:
1. Cash and investments to assets
2. Mortgage-backed securities to assets
3. One- to four-family loans to assets
4, Total net loans to assets
3. Total net loans and mortgage-backed securities to assets
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Introduction (cont.)

6. Borrowed funds to assets
7. Equity to assets

The parameters enable the identification and elimination of thrift institutions that are
distinctly and functionally different from First Federal with regard to asset mix. The balance
sheet parameters also distinguish institutions with a significantly different capital position from
First Federal. The ratio of deposits to assets was not used as a parameter as it is directly related
to and affected by an institution's equity and borrowed funds ratios, which are separate

parameters.

Cash and Investments t0 Assets

The Bank’s ratio of cash and investments, excluding mortgage-backed securities, to
assets was 30.35 percent at June 30, 2007, and reflects First Federal’s considerably larger share
of investments compared to national and regional averages, and also higher than the average for
Tennessee thrifts. The Bank's investments have consisted primarity of federal agency securities,
municipal securities and deposits in other financial institutions. During the six months ended
June 30, 2007, First Federal maintained a generally constant ratio of cash and investments to
assets, following a moderate increase from 29.20 percent at December 31, 2005, to 37.35
percent at December 31, 2006. The dollar amount of the Bank’s cash and investments increased
from $61,625,000 at December 31, 2005, to $78,483,000 at December 31, 2006, and to
$82,386,000 at March 31, 2007, before decreasing to $66,692,000 at June 30, 2007.

1t should be noted that, for the purposes of comparable group selection, First Federal’s
$2.9 million balance of Federal Home Loan Bank stock at June 30, 2007, is included in the
other assets category, rather than in cash and investments, in order to be consistent with
reporting requirements and sources of statistical and comparative analysis related to the universe

of comparable group candidates and the final comparable group.
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Cash and Investments to Assets (cont.)

The parameter range for cash and investments is fairly broad due to First Federal's
current average balance of cash and investments, related to the general volatility of this
parameter and institutions' varying liquidity options and approaches, including the purchase of
mortgage-backed and mortgage derivative securities. The range has been defined as 40.0 or less

of assets, with a midpoint of 20.0 percent.

Mortgage-Backed Securities to Assets

At June 30, 2007, First Federal’s ratio of mortgage-backed securities to assets was a
higher 16.3 percent compared to the regional average of 6.0 percent and the national average
of 8.7 percent for publicly-traded thrifts. The Bank’s two most recent calendar year average was
a modestly lower 11.2 percent, with First Federal’s share of mortgage-backed securities
remaining materially constant at 11.9 percent and 10.4 percent of assets at December 31, 2005

and 2006, respectively.

Inasmuch as many institutions purchase mortgage-backed securities as an alternative to
both lending, relative to cyclical loan demand and prevailing interest rates, and other investment
vehicles, this parameter is also fairly broad at 20.0 percent or less of assets and a midpoint of

10.0 percent.
One- to Four-Family Loans to Assets

First Federal’s lending activity is focused on the origination of residential mortgage loans
secured by one- to four-family dwellings. One- to four-family loans, including construction

loans, represented 21.9 percent of the Bank's assets at June 30, 2007, which is lower than the

national average of 45.1 percent. The parameter for this characteristic requires any comparabie
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One- to Four-Family Loans to Assets (cont.)

group institution to have 50.0 percent or less of its assets in one- to four-family loans with a

midpoint of 25.0 percent.

Total Net Loans to Assets

At June 30, 2007, First Federal had a 47.3 percent ratio of total net loans to assets and
a similar two calendar year average 0f49.5 percent, both being lower than the national average
of 71.8 percent for publicly-traded thrifts. The Bank’s current ratio is also lower than the
regional average of 75.3 percent and the state average of 71.7 percent. The Bank's ratio of total
net Joans to assets has demonstrated a declining trend during the last four fiscal years, but

remained constant at June 30, 2007.

The parameter for the selection of the comparable group is from 35.0 percent to 80.0
percent with 8 midpoint of 57.5 percent. The wider range is due to the fact that, as the
referenced national and regional averages indicate, many institutions hold a greater volume of
investment securities and/or mortgage-backed securities as cyclical alternatives to lending, but

may otherwise be similar to First Federal.

Total Net Loans and Mortgage-Backed Securities to Assets

As discussed previously, First Federal’s shares of mortgage-backed securities to assets
and total net loans to assets were 16.3 percent and 47.3 percent, respectively, for a combined
share of 63.6 percent. Recognizing the industry and regional ratios of 8.7 percent and 6.0
percent, respectively, of mortgage-backed securities to assets, the parameter range for the
comparable group in this category is 40.0 percent to 85.0 percent, with a midpoint of 62.5

percent.
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Borrowed Funds to Assets

First Federal was absent borrowed funds at June 30, 2007, following a nominal 1.9
percent ratio of borrowed funds to assets at March 31,2007. AtDecember 31, 2006, the Bank
had no borrowed funds compared to $12.2 million or 5.5 percent of total assets at December 31,
2005.

The use of borrowed funds by some banks indicates an alternative to retail deposits and
may provide a source of longer term funds. The federal insurance premium on deposits has also
increased the attractiveness of borrowed funds. The institutional demand for borrowed funds
had increased, duc to the greater competition for deposits and higher interest rates, resulting in
anincrease in borrowed funds by many banks as an alternative to higher cost and/or longer term
certificates. Rising interest rates resulted in some moderation of borrowings in the banking
industry, particularly among nonpublicly-traded banks. The ratio of borrowed funds to assets,
therefore, does not typically indicate higher risk or more aggressive lending, but primarily an

alternative to retail deposits.

The range of borrowed funds to assets is 30.0 percent or less with a midpoint of 15.0

percent.

Equity to Assets

First Federal’s equity to assets ratio was 14.67 percent at June 30, 2007, 15.4] percent
at December 31, 2006, and 14.74 percent at December 31, 2005. After conversion, based on
the midpoint value of $48.0 million, with approximately 50.0 percent of the net procceds of the
public offering going to the Bank, First Federal’s equity is projected to stabilize in the area of
20 percent of assets. Based on that equity ratio, we have defined the equity ratio parameter to
be 7.0 percent to 25.0 percent with a midpoint ratio of 16.0 percent.
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PERFORMANCE PARAMETERS

Intreduction

Exhibit 39 presents five parameters identified as key indicators of First Federal's
earnings performance and the basis for such performance both historically and during the four
quarters ended June 30, 2007. The primary performance indicator is the Bank's return on
average assets (ROAA). The second performance indicator is the Bank's return on average
equity (ROAE). To measure the Bank’s ability to generatc net interest income, we have used
net interest margin. The supplemental source of income for the Bank is noninterest income, and
the parameter used to measure this factor is the ratio of noninterest income to average assets.
The final performance indicator is the Bank's ratio of operating expenses or noninterest
expenses to average asscts, a key factor in distinguishing different types of operations,
particularly institutions that are aggressive in secondary market activities, which often results

in much higher operating costs and overhead ratios.

Return on Average Assets

The key performance parameter is the ROAA. For the twelve months ended June 30,
2007, First Federal’s ROAA was 0.03 percent based on core earnings after taxes of $66,000 and
its net ROAA was a 0.19 percent based on net earnings of $409,000, as detailed in Item I of this
Report. The Bank’s core ROAA over its most recent two calendar years was 0.74 percent in
2005 and 0.13 percent in 2006.

Considering the historical and current camings perforrnance of First Federal, the range

for the ROAA parameter based on core income has been defined as 0.70 percent or less with

a midpoint of 0.35 percent.
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Return on Average Equnity

The ROAE has been used as a secondary parameter to eliminate any institutions with an
unusually high or low ROAE that is inconsistent with the Bank's position. This parameter does
not provide as much meaning for a recently converted thrift institution as it does for established
stock institutions, due to the unseasoned nature of the capital structure of the recently converted
thrift and the inability to accurately reflect a mature ROAE for the recently converted thrift

relative to other stock instifutions.

Prior to the anticipated stock offering, the Bank's ROAE for the twelve months ended
June 30, 2007, was 1.29 percent based on net income and 0.21 percent based on core income.
The parameter range for the comparable group, based on core income, is 10.0 percent or less

with a midpoint of 5.0 percent.

Net Interest Margin

First Federal had a net interest margin of 3.45 percent for the twelve months ended June
30, 2007, representing net interest income as a percentage of average interest-earning assets.
The Bank's net interest margin in 2005 and 2006 was 3.56 percent and 3.30 percent,

respectively, with a two calendar year average of 3.43 percent.

The parameter range for the selection of the comparable group is from a low 0of 2.25

percent to a high of 4.25 percent with a midpoint of 3.25 percent.

Operating Expenses to Assets

For the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, First Federal had a 4.49 percent ratio of
operating expense to average assets. In 2005 and 2006, the Bank’s expense ratios were a

modestly higher 4,71 percent and 4.53 percent, respectively. The Bank's current operating
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Operating Expenses to Assets (cont.)

expense ratio remains considerably higher than the averages of 2.16 percent for publicly traded
Midwest savings institutions and 2.17 percent for all publicly-traded savings institutions. For
alt FDIC-insured thrift institutions, the ratio of noninterest expense to average assets was a

higher 2.35 percent for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007.

The operating expense to assets parameter for the selection of the comparable group is

from a low of 2.25 percent to a high of 4.50 percent with a midpoint of 3.38 percent.

Noninterest Income to Assets

Compared to all publicly-traded thrifts, First Federal has historically experienced a
considerably higher than average dependence on noninterest income as a source of additional
income. The Bank's noninterest income was $2,369,000 or 1.10 percent of average assets for
the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, compared to a similar 1.2] percent average for
publicly-traded thrift institutions during that period. For the twelve months ended June 30,
2007, Midwest thrifts and Tennessee thrifts had ratios of 0.81 percent and 0.62 percent,
respectively. The Bank’s ratio of noninterest income to average assets was 1.57 percent in 2005

and 1.2] percent in 2006.

The range for this parameter for the selection of the comparable group is 2.00 percent

of average assets or less, with a midpoint of 1.00 percent.

43




ASSET QUALITY PARAMETERS

Introduoction

The final set of financial parameters used in the selection of the comparable group are
asset quality parameters, also shown in Exhibit 39, The purpose of these parameters is to insure
that any thrift institution in the comparable group has an asset quality position similar to that
of First Federal. The three defined asset quality parameters are the ratios of nonperforming
assets to total assets, repossessed assets to total assets and loan loss reserves to total assets at

the end of the most recent period.

Nonperforming Assets to Assets

First Federal's ratio of nonperforming assets to assets was 0.80 percent at June 30, 2007,
which was higher than the national averages of 0.83 percent for publicly-traded thrifts and 1.21
percent for Midwest thrifts. The Bank's ratio was 1.69 percent and 2.82 percent at December
31, 2005 and 2006, respectively, averaging 2.26 percent for those two calendar years.

The parameter range for nonperforming assets to assets has been defined as 2,00 percent

of assets or less with a midpoint of 1.00 percent.

Repossessed Assets to Assets

First Federal had no repossessed assets at June 30, 2007, but had repossessed assets of
$519,000 or 0.24 percent of assets and $946,000 or 0.44 percent of assets at December 31, 2005
and 2006, respectively. -

The range for the repossessed assets to total assets parameter is 1.00 percent of assets or

less with a midpoint of 0.50 percent.
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Loans Loss Reserves to Assets

First Federal had an allowance for loan losses of $2,008,000, representing a loan loss
allowance to total assets ratio of 0.91 percent, at June 30, 2007, which is lower than its ratios
of 1.43 percent at December 31, 2005, and 0.95 percent at December 31, 2006. For those two

calendar years, the Bank's loan loss reserve averaged 1.19 percent of assets.

The loan loss allowance to assets parameter range used for the selection of the

comparable group required a minimum ratio of 0.25 percent of assets,

THE COMPARABLE GROUP

With the application of the parameters previously identified and applied, the final
comparable group represents ten institutions identified in Exhibits 40, 41 and 42. The
comparable group institutions range in size from $218.3 million to $645.8 million with an
average asset size of $379.5 million and have an average of 8.3 offices per institution. One of
the comparable group institutions was converted in 1987, one in 1994, two in 1996, two in
1999, one in 2001, two in 2003 and one in 2005. All ten of the comparable group institutions
arc traded on NASDAQ and all are insured by the recently consolidated DIF, The comparable
group institutions as a unit have a ratio of equity to assets of 10.29 percent, which is similar to
all publicly-traded thrift institutions in the United States at 10.30 percentbut 23.3 percent lower
than the five publicly-traded thrift institutions in Tenncssee, which averaged 13.99 percent. For
their most recent four quarters, the comparable group indicated a core retum on average assets
of 0.33 percent, lower than all publicly-traded thrifts at 0.72 percent and lower than publicly-
traded Tennessee thrifts at 0.81 percent.
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IV. ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

This section reviews and compares the financial performance of First Federal to all
publicly-traded thrifts, to publicly-traded thrifts in the Midwest region and to Tennessee thrifts,
as well as to the ten institutions constituting First Federal’s comparable group, as selected and
described in the previous section. The comparative analysis focuses on financial condition,

eaming performance and pertinent ratios as presented in Exhibits 42 through 48.

As presented in Exhibits 43 and 44, at June 30, 2007, First Federal’s total equity of 14.67
percent of assets was higher than the 10.89 percent for the comparable group, the 10.98 percent
for all thrifts, the 10.32 percent for Midwest thrifts and the 14.07 percent ratio for the five
Tennessee thrifts. The Bank had a47.29 percent share of net loans in its asset mix, considerably
lower than the comparable group at 69.87 percent, and more notably lower than all thrifts at
71.82 percent, Midwest thrifts at 75.27 percent and Tennessee thrifis at 71.67 percent. First
Federal’s share of net loans, lower than industry averages, i3 primarily the result of its larger
share of cash and investments and secondarily by its larger share of mortgage-backed securities.
The comparable group had a lower 15.95 percent share of cash and investments compared to
the Bank at 30.35 percent, and a modestly lower 7.13 percent share of mortgage-backed
securities compared to the Bank’s 16.26 percent. All thrifts had 8.71 percent of assets in
mortgage-backed securities and 13.47 percent in cash and investments. First Federal’s 83.77
percent share of deposits was higher than the comparable group and Tennessee thrifts, and also
higherthan all thrifts and Midwest thrifts, reflecting the Bank's absence of borrowed funds. The
comparable group had deposits of 70.15 percent and borrowings of 17.94 percent. All thrifts
averaged a 61.04 percent share of deposits and 26.54 percent of borrowed funds, while Midwest
thrifis had a 66.27 percent share of deposits and a 22.97 percent share of borrowed funds.
Tennessee thrifts averaged a 75.00 percent share of deposits and a 8.82 percent share of
borrowed funds. First Federal had a very small 0.01 percent ratio of intangible assets to total
at June 30, 2007, compared to 0.62 percent for the comparable group, (.82 percent for all thrifts,
0.62 percent for Midwest thrifts and 0.08 percent for Tennessee thrifts.
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Analysis of Financial Performance (cont.)

Operating performance indicators are summarized in Exhibits 45, 46 and 47 and provide
a synopsis of key sources of income and key expense items for First Federal in comparison to

the comparable group, all thrifts, and regional thrifts for the trailing four quarters.

As shown in Exhibit 47, for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, First Federal had
a yield on average interest-earning assets lower than the comparable group, all thrifts, Midwest
thrifts and Tennessee thrifts. The Bank's yield on interest-carning assets was 6.23 percent
compared to the comparable group at 6.28 percent, all thrifts at 6.44 percent, Midwest thrifts
at 6.49 percent and Tennessee thrifts at 6.75 percent.

The Bank’s cost of funds for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, was lower than the
comparable group, all thrifts, Midwest thrifts, and Tennessee thrifts. First Federal had an
average cost of interest-bearing liabilities of 3.14 percent compared to 3.62 percent for the
comparable group, 3.72 percent for all thrifts, 3.75 percent for Midwest thrifts and 3.71 percent

for Tennessee thrifts.

The Bank's lower yield on interest-earning assets and lower cost of interest-bearing
liabilities resulted in a net interest spread of 3.09 percent, which was higher than the comparable
group at 2.60 percent, all thrifts at 2.72 percent, Midwest thrifts at 2.74 and Tennessee thrifts
at 3.04 percent. First Federal generated a net interest margin of 3.45 percent for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2007, based on its ratio of net interest income to average interest-eamning
assets, which was moderately higher than the comparable group ratio of 2.82 percent. Allthrifis
averaged a lower 3.01 percent net interest margin for the trailing four quarters, with Midwest

thrifts at 3.02 percent and Tennessee thrifts at 3.36 percent.

First Federal’s major source of earnings is interest income, as indicated by the operations
ratios presented in Exhibits 45 and 46. The Bank had a recapture of $741,000 of its previous
provision for loan losses during the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, representing 0.35

percent of average assets taken back into earnings. The comparable group indicated a provision
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Analysis of Financial Performance (cont.)

representing 0.04 percent of assets, with all thrifts at 0.25 percent, Midwest thrifts at 0.21
percent and Tennessee thrifis at 0.03 percent.

The Bank's noninterest income was $2,369,000 or 1.10 percent of average assets for the
twelve months ended June 30, 2007. The comparable group had a 0.82 percent ratio noninterest
income to average assets, which was lower than all thrifts at 1.21 percent, similar to Midwest
thrifts at 0.81 percent and higher than Tennessee thrifts at 0.62 percent. For the twelve months
ended June 30, 2007, First Federal’s operating expense ratio was 4.49 percent of average assets,
which was significantly higher than the comparable group at 2.95 percent, all thrifts at 2.17
percent, Midwest thrifts at 2.16 percent and Tennessee thrifts at 2.75 percent.

The overall impact of First Federal’s income and expense ratios is reflected in the Bank's
negative core earnings and core return on assets and positive but modest positive net earnings
and net return on assets. For the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, the Bank had a core
ROAA 0f 0.03 percent and a net ROAA of 0.19 percent, reflecting its core earnings of $66,000
and positive net earnings of $409,000, as indicated in Section I and Exhibit 7 of this Report.
For its most recent four quarters, the comparable group had a core ROAA of 0.33 percent and
a similar net ROAA 0f0.32 percent. All publicly-traded thrifts averaged a higher 0.72 percent
core ROAA, with Midwest thrifts at 0.61 percent and Tennessee thrifts at 0.81 percent.
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V. MARKET VALUE ADJUSTMENTS

This is a conclusive section where adjustments arc made to determine the pro forma
market value or appraised value of the Corporation based on a comparison of First Federal with
the comparable group. These adjustments will take into consideration such key items as
carnings performance and growth potential, market area, financial condition, asset and deposit
growth, dividend payments, subscription interest, liquidity of the stock to be issued,
management, and market conditions or marketing of the issue. It must be noted, however, that
al] of the institutions in the comparable group have their differences among themselves and

from the Bank, and as a result, such adjustments become necessary.

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE

In analyzing eamings performance, consideration was given to net interest income, the
amount and volatility of interest income and interest expense relative to changes in market area
conditions and to changes in overall interest rates, the quality of assets as it relates to the
presence of problem assets which may result in adjustments to earnings, the amounts and ratios
of current and historical classified assets and real estate owned, the balance of valuation
allowances to support any problem assets or nonperforming assets, the amount and volatility

of non-intcrest income, and the amount of non-interest expenses.

As discussed earlier, the Bank's historical business model has focused on increasing its
noninterest income; maintaining a reasonable net interest margin; attaining a lower ratio of
nonperforming assets; monitoring and strengthening its ratio of interest sensitive assets relative
to interest sensitive liabilities, thereby maintaining its sensitivity measure and its current
minimal intercst rate risk; maintaining adequate allowances for loan losses to reduce the impact
of any unforeseen charge-offs, and striving to reduce and control its overhead expenses and
improve its efficiency ratio. In the future, following its stock offering, it will be the objective
of the Bank to increase its net interest spread and margin, increase its noninterest income,

increase the amount and consistency of its net income, increase its return on assets and return
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Earnings Performance (cont.)

on equity, and reduce and stabilize its overhead expenses within the context of its branch

network.

Earnings are generally related to an institution's ability to generate loans and/or to
increase its loan portfolio through loan purchases and participations at favorable rates. The
Bank was an active originator of both mortgage loans and non-mortgage loans during the three
and twelve months ended June 30, 2007, although in those periods as well as the calendar years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, nonmortgage loans constituted a considerably smaller
share of loan originations. During the first half of 2007, total loans increased by $4.1 million
based on originations of $61.4 million, including an increase of $2.0 million in loans available
for sale, principal reductions of $40.0 million and loan sales of $17.4 million. Of those loan
originations, $12.1 million or 19.7 percent represented nonmortgage loans compared to amuch
lower 7.2 percent during the twelve months ended December 31, 2006. During the twelve
months ended June 30, 2007, total loan originations were $113.6 million with 87.3 percent
constituting residential and nonresidential mortgage loans. It should be noted that 41.9 percent
of the loans originated during the six months ended June 30, 2007, and 48.2 percent of the loans
originated during the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, were high risk real estate loans,
defined as real estate loans secured by other than 1-4 family residential properties. Overall,
during the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, 35.4 percent of loans originated by the Bank
were secured by 1-4 family residential properties, similar to 36.5 percent of loans originated

during the six months ended June 30, 2007,

From June 30, 2006, to June 30, 2007, total net loans receivable decreased by $1.6
million or 1.5 percent from $102.3 million to $103.9 million. From December 31, 2005, to June
30, 2007, total loans receivable decreased by $16.9 million or 14,0 percent from $120.8 million
to $103.9 million, an average annualized decrease of 9.3 percent. During that six quarter period,
all loan categories except nonresidential construction loans and land loans indicate shrinkage,

with nonresidential real estate loans indicating the greatest $7.7 million decrease, followed by
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Earpings Performance (cont.)

consumer loans and 14 family residential loans, which decreased by $6.1 million and $5.8

million, respectively.

With a considerably smaller share of loans in its asset mix compared to the comparable
group, the impact of First Federal’s lending efforts has been to generate a modestly lower 6.23
percent yicld on average interest-earning assets for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007,
compared to a higher 6.28 percent for the comparable group, 6.44 percent for all thrifts and 6.49
percent for Midwest thrifts. The Bank's ratio of interest income to average assets was 5.86
percent for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, which was modestly higher than the
comparable group at 5.78 percent, but lower than all thrifts at 6.05 percent, Midwest thrifis at
6.07 percent and Tennessee thrifts at 6.34 percent.

First Federal’s 3.14 percent cost of interest-bearing liabilities for the twelve months
ended June 30, 2007, was lower than the comparable group at 3.62 percent, all thrifts at 3.72
percent, Midwest thrifts at 3.75 percent and Tennessee thrifts at 3.71 percent. The Bank's
resulting net interest spread of 3.09 percent for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, was
higher than the comparable group at 2.66 percent, all thrifts at 2.72 percent and Midwest thrifts
at 3.04 percent. The Bank's net interest margin of 3.45 percent, based on average interest-
eaming assets for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, was higher than the comparable
group at 2.82 percent, all thrifts at 3.01 percent and Midwest thrifts at 3.02 percent.

The Bank's ratio of noninterest income to average assets was 1.18 percent for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2007, which includes $869,000 of gains on the sale of loans and a loss
of $330,000 on the sale of securities. Net of those gains and losses, First Federal’s ratio of
noninterest income to average assets was a lower 0.85 percent. The comparable group’s ratio
of noninterest income to assets was 0.82 percent, with all thrifts at 1.21 percent and Midwest

thrifts at 0.81 percent.
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Earnings Performance (cont.)

Operating expenses incurred by the Bank were a significant 52.2 percent higher than the
comparable group and even more significantly higher than all thrifts, Midwest thrifts and
Tennessee thrifts, For the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, First Federal had an operating
expenses to assets ratio of 4,49 percent compared to 2.95 percent for the comparable group, 2.17
percent for all thrifts, 2.16 percent for Midwest thrifts and 2.75 percent for Tennessee thrifts.

For the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, First Federal generated higher noninterest
income, higher noninterest expenses and a higher net interest margin relative to its comparable
group. Further, First Federal recaptured and took into income $741,000 in previous provisions
for loan losses, which resulted in positive net earnings of $409,000 based on an effective tax
rate of 26.6 percent for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007. Consequently, the Bank had
a positive net ROAA of 0.19 percent for that period. As indicated in Exhibit 7, First Federal's
recaptured provision for loan losses is considered to be a nonrecurring item and was the basis
for the derivation of lower core earnings of $66,000, which generated a core ROAA of 0.03
percent for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007. For the twelve months ended June 30,
2007, the comparable group had a core ROAA of 0.33 percent, while all thrifts indicated a
higher 0.72 percent. The comparable group had a net ROAA of 0.32 percent for the twelve
months ended June 30, 2007, with all thrifts at 0.76 percent and Midwest thrifts at 0.62 percent.

The earnings stream and net earnings of First Federal will continue to be dependent on
the overall trends in interest rates and its net interest margin, as well as the consistency,
reliability and variation of its noninterest income and overhead expenses. With the exception
of calendar 2005 when the Bank experienced significant one time gains on the sale of FHLMC
and Intrieve stock, First Federal’s noninterest income indicated relatively mild fluctuation from

calendar 2003 to 2006, including the twelve months ended June 30, 2007.

The Bank’s overhead expenses and its ratio of noninterest expenses to average assets
indicates a steadily increasing trend in calendar years 2003 to 2006 and for the twelve months

ended June 30, 2007. The Bank's net interest margin, higher than the comparable group, has
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Earnings Performance (cont.)

been the result of its lower yield on assets, offset by its lower cost of funds. First Federal’s cost
of interest-bearing liabilities is likely to experience only modest fluctuation during the next few
years, with short term ratcs projected to increase modestly in 2007 through 2009, before
flattening in 2010. Modest upward pressure on lending rates is also anticipated. First Federal's
composite yield on interest-earning assets is likely to increase modestly to moderately, based
on the mix and repricing interval of the Bank's loan portfolio, although the predominance of
fixed-rate loans will limit the potential for increase. Although First Federal anticipates
additional branching during the next few years, it is likely that competition from both financial
institutions and mortgage companies will limit the Bank's ability to significantly increase rates
on individual mortgage and non-mortgage loan products. Integral to that growth strategy, the
goal of which is to increase loans and deposits, is the very competitive pricing of its loan and
deposit products. Consequently, the Bank projects gradual and modest improvement in
performance metrics, including noninterest income, netinterest margin, efficiency ratio, ROAA

and ROAE during the three year planning horizon through 2010.

It is also recognized that First Federal’s modestly positive 0.19 percent net ROAA for
the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, compared to the lower than average but higher net
ROAA of its comparable group, was also only modestly positive in calendar 2000, indicating
an ROAA of 0.28 percent. The Bank’s dollar net interest income before provision for loan
losses was 18.1 percent less in 2006 than in 2002 and indicated a further annualized decline in
the first quarter of 2007. In spite of a 17.9 percent decrease in total assets since 2002, the
Bank’s nct interest margin has, nevertheless, declined in four of its last five calendar years, with
the modest increase in 2005 attributable to both a 12.5 percent higher net interest income and
a 7.0 percent decrease in interest-earning assets compared to 2004. First Federal’s net intercst
margin and net interest spread have decreased moderately since 2002, although both metrics

were modestly higher than comparable group, national and regional averages.
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Earnings Performance (cont.)

Immediately following conversion, it is anticipated that the Bank's higher equity to assets
ratio will result in an initially flat ROAE, followed by limited growth in ROAE until conversion
proceeds can be deployed into higher yielding Joans. As indicated in the Bank’s business plan,
during the next three years the Bank’s ROAA and ROAE are projected to increase modestly but
steadily to ratios that modestly exceed the current comparable group averages but remain

substantially lower than regional and national averages.

In recognition of the foregoing eamings related factors, with consideration of both First
Federal's current and projected performance measures, a moderate downward adjustment has

been made to First Federal’s pro forma market value for eamings performance.

MARKET AREA

As previously indicated in Section I, the Bank's deposit primary market area
encompasses Montgomery County, Tennessee. All four of First Federal’s full service offices,
as well as its drive-thru office and its ATM site are in the city of Clarksville, with its new main
office opening in 2006. Based on its office locations and deposit sources, First Federal
experienced deposit shrinkage 0f$17.6 million or 8.7 percent from December 31,2002, to June

30, 2007, representing an annualized decrease of 1.9 percent.

Since 1990, Montgomery County has experienced a percentage population increase
significantly larger than increases in Tennessee and the United States. Per capita income has
been moderately lower than state and national averages, while median household income has
been moderately higher than Tennessce and similar to the United States. In 2000, the median
housing value in Montgomery County was moderately lower than in Tennessee and significantly
lower than in the United States, while owner-occupied housing was lower in Montgomery

County than in either Tennessee or the United States.
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Market Area (cont.)

The historical unemployment rate in Montgomery County has generally been modestly
lower than the state and national rates, but in 2006, Montgomery County’s unemployment rate
was higher than the national rate and modestly lower than the rate in Tennessee. From
December, 2006, through June, 2007, however, the decrease in Montgomery County’s
unemploymentrate lagged the decrease in the Tennessee rate, with the countyrate of 4.5 percent

being very similar to the state and national rates of 4.4 percent and 4.7 percent, respectively.

In First Federal’s market area, the services sector represents the strong primary source
of employment, followed by the wholesale/retail and manufacturing sectors, which parallels
Tennessee and the United States.

At June 30, 2006, on a per capita basis, total deposits in Montgomery County were 40.6
percent below the state average and average deposits per branch of $31.1 million in
Montgomery County were 33.9 percent lower than the Tennessec average of $47.0 million.
From June 30, 2002, to June 30, 2006, the average deposits per branch in Montgomery County
increased by 10.7 percent or an average of 2.7 percent per year, while the state average deposits
per branch increased by 22.3 percent or an average of 5.6 percent per year, more than twice the
rate of Montgomery County, Additionally, the Bank’s market share of deposits decreased by
32.1 percent from 17.1 percent at June 30, 2002, to 11.62 percent at June 30, 2006,
notwithstanding a 26.6 percent increase in Montgomery County deposits during that period,
reflecting First Federal’s 14.1 percent decrease in deposits and an increase of six banking
offices, but no additional offices of the Bank. Total deposits in Tennessee increased by a
greater 32.0 percent or 8.0 percent per year.

Although Montgomery County’s demographics are generally similar or superior to state
and national averages, the county is significantly overbanked and its offices are underutilized
compared to state averages, evidenced by the county’s slower growth in total deposits and

deposits per branch compared to state totals and averages.
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Market Area (cont.)

[n recognition of the foregoing factors, with recognition of limited deposit potential in
a very competitive market indicating historically slower total deposit and average branch
deposit growth, we believe that a moderate downward adjustment is warranted for the Bank's

current market area.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

The financial condition of First Federal is discussed in Section I and shown in the related
exhibits and is compared to the comparable group in Exhibits 42, 43 and 44. The Bank's ratio
of total equity to total assets was 14.96 percent at June 30, 2007, which was moderately higher
than the comparable group at 10.98 percent, all thrifts at 10.68 percent and Midwest thrifts at
10.36 percent, but similar to Tennessee thrifis at 14.23 percent. With a conversion at the
midpoint, the Corporation's consolidated pro forma equity to assets ratio will increase to
approximately 30.5 percent. The Bank's pro forma equity to assets ratio and tangible capital
ratio will be approximately 20 percent following a midpoint conversion, based on the Bank

receiving 50 percent of the net conversion proceeds.

The Bank's mix of assets and liabilities indicates some areas of notable variation from
its comparable group. The Bank's 83.77 percent ratio of deposits to total assets was higher than
the comparable group at 70.15 percent, and more notably higher than all thrifts at 60.05 percent
and Midwest thrifts at 66.27 percent. Those variations are directly related to First Federal’s
absence of borrowed funds to assets, compared to the comparable group at 17.94 percent, all
thrifts at 26.54 percent and Midwest thrifts at 22.97 percent.

First Federal had a 47.29 percent ratic of net loans to total assets at June 30, 2007,
considerably lower than the comparable group at 69.87, all thrifis at 71.82 percent and Midwest
thrifts at 75.27 percent. The Bank's 30.35 percent share of cash and investments was much
higher than the comparable group at 15.95 percent, all thrifts at 13.47 percent and Midwest
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Financial Condition {cont.)

thrifts at 12.35 percent; and First Federal’s 16.26 percent ratio of mortgage-backed securities
to total assets was significantly higher than the comparable group at 7.13 percent, all thrifts at
8.71 percent and Midwest thrifts at 5.97 percent. Tennessee thrifts had a much lower 1.99
percentratio of mortgage-backed securities to assets. The Bank’s larger combined share of cash
and investments and mortgage-backed securities relative to the comparable group, as well as
national, and regional and state averages, together with its larger share of fixed-rate residential
mortgage loans with longer repricing intervals in a rising interest rate environment is a
significant basis for its yield on interest-earning assets modestly lower than the comparable

group and moderately lower than national and regional averages.

First Federal had a very small balance of intangible assets comprised of loan servicing
rights, representing 0.01 percent of assets compared to 0.62 percent for the comparable group,
0.82 percent for all thrifts and a lower 0.62 percent for Midwest thrifts. The Bank was absent
repossessed assets at June 30, 2007, but had $946,000 of repossessed assets or 0.44 percent of
assets at December 31, 2006. At June 30, 2007, the comparable group had a 0.15 percent ratio
of repossessed assets to total assets, while all thrifts and Midwest thrifts had ratios of 0.12
percent and 0.18 percent, respectively.

The financial condition of First Federal included a generally average 0.80 percent ratio
of nonperforming assets to total assets at June 30, 2007, compared to higher ratios of 1.01
percent ratio for the comparable group, 0.83 percent for all thrifts and 1.21 percent for Midwest
thrifts. The Bank’s ratio of nonperforming assets to total assets was a higher 2.09 percent at
March 31, 2007, and for its two most recent calendar years, the Bank's ratios of nonperforming
assets to total assets were higher at 2.82 percent at December 31, 2006, and 1.69 percent at
December 31, 2005.

The Bank had a modestly lower 19.25 percent ratio of high risk real estate loans to assets
compared to 24.62 percent for the comparable group, 25.70 percent for all thrifts and 24,76
percent for Midwest thrifts. The regulatory definition of high risk real estate loans is all
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Financial Condition (cont.)

mortgage loans other than those secured by one- to four-family residential properties. As
previously discussed, 29.8 percent of First Federal’s total loans at June 30, 2007, were secured

by one- to four-family residential properties, representing 21.94 percent of total assets.

At June 30, 2007, First Federal had $2,008,000 of allowance for loan losses, which
represented (.91 percent of assets and 1.89 percent of total loans. Those ratios are higher than
the comparable group, which indicated allowances equal to 0.55 percent of assets and 0.77
percent of total loans. More significant, however, is an institution's ratio of allowance for loan
losses to nonperforming assets, since a considerable portion of nonperforming assets might
eventually be charged off. First Federal’s $2,008,000 of allowance for loan losses represented
a modestly higher coverage of 113.75 pércent of nonperforming assets at June 30, 2007,
compared to the comparable group's 99.31 percent. All thrifts and Midwest thrifts had ratios
of 177.22 percent and 92.22 percent, respectively. First Federal had a 0.22 percent ratio of net
charge-offs to average total loans, compared to ratios of 0.30 percent for the comparable group,
0,14 percent for all thrifts and 0.24 percent for Midwest thrifts,

Historically and in recent periods, First Federal has been categorized by OTS as having
minimal interest rate risk, as measured by its post-shock NPV ratio and sensitivity measure,
primarily due to its strong ratio of equity to assets. Nevertheless, at June 30, 2007, it was
determined that the Bank’s net portfolio value would decrease $8.0 million or a moderate 18
percent if interest rates experienced an instantaneous increase of 200 basis points. Such interest
rate risk is related in part to the Bank’s strong share of loans maturing or repricing in less than
five years, its balance of adjustable-rate mortgage-backed securities and its cash and shorter

term investments and deposits.

Overall, notwithstanding First Federal’s strong equity ratio, specifically considering its
asset quality, reserves, coverage, and respective shares of cash and investments, loans and
deposits relative to the comparable group, we believe that a small downward adjustment is

warranted for First Federal’s current financial condition.
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BALANCE SHEET AND EARNINGS GROWTH

During its most recent five calendar years, First Federal has been characterized by much
lower rates of growth in assets, loans and deposits relative to the comparable group. Further
compared to national and regional averages, moreover, the Bank is also significantly lower in
all three balance sheet categories The Bank had negative average annual asset growth of (2.35)
percent from 2002 to 2006, compared to a positive 4.7 percent average annual growth rate for
the comparable group, a positive 9.8 percent for all thrifts and a positive 7.2 percent for
Midwest thrifts. First Federal’s lower asset growth rate is consistent with its deposit shrinkage
and lower balances of borrowings during that five year period. The Bank's loan portfolio
indicates a negative average annual increase of 9.1 percent from 2001 to 2005, compared to a
average positive growth rates of 4.9 percent for the comparable group, 10.8 percent for all thrifts
and 8.4 percent for Midwest thrifts.

First Federal’s deposits indicate average annual shrinkage of 1.2 percent from 2002 to
2006, representing a dotlar decrease of $26.2 million during those five years, with an increase
* of $3.5 million or 2.0 percent during the first quarter of 2007. Annual deposit changes ranged
from an increase of 7.2 percent in 2002 to a decrease of (5.4) percent in 2005, compared to five
year average growth rates of 3.7 percent for the comparable group, 8.8 percent for all thrifts and
6.6 percent for Midwest thrifts. First Federal had borrowed funds decreasing nominally from
$12.3 million in 2002 to $12.2 million in 2005. During 2006, those advances were repaid,
resulting in the Bank’s absence of borrowed funds at December 31, 2006, but First Federal took
FHLB advances of $4.0 million in the first quarter of 2007. Such deposit shrinkage and the
presence of an essentially constant balance of borrowed funds through 2005 were the basis for
the Bank’s decrease in assets during those five years. At June 30, 2007, First Federal’s 1.8

percent ratio of borrowed funds to assets was lower than the comparable group at 17.5 percent.

The Bank's ability to increase its asset base and deposits in the future is, to a great extent,
dependent on its being able to competitively price its loan and savings products, to maintain a
high quality of service to its customers, to increase its market share and to increase its loan

origination activity. Montgomery County, the location of all of First Federal’s offices,
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Balance Sheet and Earnings Growth (cont.)

experienced an increasing trend in population and households between 1990 and 2000 and
between 2000 and 2006, moderately higher than state increases and generally in line with
national increases during those periods, although smaller increases in population, households
and median houschold income are projected through 2011. In 2000, Montgomery County
indicated lower per capita income, modestly higher median household income and lower

median housing values compared to Tennessee.

The Bank's historical dependence on Montgomery County, the location of all of its
offices, could result in lower asset growth in the future as a result of its very competitive
operating environment, recognizing the slower deposit growth and smaller average deposits per

banking office during the past several years.

From June 30, 2002, to June 30, 2006, First Federal’s deposits in Montgomery County
decreased from $201,8 million or a 17.12 percent market share to $173.4 million or a smaller
11.62 percent market share. The Bank’s deposit decrease of 14.1 percent comnpares to the 26.6
percent increase of all Montgomery County deposits during that period. Although First
Federal’s $43.3 million average deposits per office for its four offices is higher than the
Montgomery County average of $31.1 million, the Bank’s average has decreased 14.3 percent
from an average of $50.5 million per office for its four offices in 2002. In contrast, the average
deposits for all banking offices in Montgomery County increased by 10.7 percent from $28.1
million per office for 42 offices in 2002 to $31.1 million per office for a larger number of 48
offices in 2006. |

The strategies indicated in First Federal’s business plan include de novo branching in its
existing marketing area as well as in contiguous areas that Bank considers attractive. The
Bank’s management is also developing a merger strategy for finalization and implementation
not sooner than nine to twelve months subsequent to the completion of the conversion

transaction. Although potential merger targets will be identified and ranked during the
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development of the merger strategy, a specific target has not yet been identified and merger
terms remain open for consideration. Overall, a merger transaction is speculative and,
ultimately, not unilaterally controllable by the Corporation, so it has not been considered in the

valuation process.

Overall, the Bank’s short to medium term focus is on both branching and organic growth,
inchuding product diversification with an emphasis on increasing its portfolio of commercial
real estate loans and commercial business loans. Inasmuch as branching will generate
significant additional overhead expenses, First Federal’s growth is, to a considerable extent, at
the expense of improved operating performance during the medium term planning horizon.
Assets and deposits are projected to experience growth of between 20 percent and 25 percent
in each of the three years following conversion, with loans projected to grow in excess of 40
percent per year. Notwithstanding its intended focus on commercial real estate and commercial
business loans, First Federal’s concurrent growth strategy in a very competitive lending
environment is likely to result in only a modest increase in its yield on earning assets, as
indicated in its business plan. The Bank projects that its cost of funds will moderate as it
increases its share of nonintcrest bearing demand deposits as part of strategy to increase
commercial as well as retail banking relationships. Consequently, the Bank projects an

approximate 50 basis point increase in net interest margin over three years,

The Bank’s base overhead expenses are projected to increase by 8 percent to 9 percent
annually, exclusive of branching costs, and its ratio of noninterest expenses to assets are
projected to remain over 4 percent, well in excess of comparable group, industry and regional
averages. First Federal projects that its noninterest income will also remain higher than those
averages, but based on those projections, its efficiency ratio, although improving, will continue
to be less favorable than the comparable group, as well as national and regional averages.
Overall, the Bank’s cfficiency ratio, currently over 100 percent reflecting primarily its higher

noninterest expense, is projected to remain above 70 percent through 2009, which is less
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favorable than current industry averages of 60.5 percent for all thrifts and the regional average

of 64.0 percent.

First Federal’s ROAA is projected to increase modestly during the next three yearsto a
level modestly higher than the current ROAA of the comparable group but significantly lower

than national and regional averages.

First Federal’s execution of an aggressive growth strategy, although well considered,
beginning from its current earnings performance position entails risk that have been recognized
and calculated by the Bank in its business planning process. Such a strategy can be deterred or
inhibited by both internal and external factors, including management, staffing, branch site
selection, interest rate trends, changing demographics and overall economic conditions. Atbest,
however, even robust growth in the absence of concurrent earnings performance improvement
during the three year horizon being considered does not, in our opinion, significantly enhance
current value. Although such growth might eventually contribute to improved performance
beyond that horizon, to recognize and apply such improvement to current value, considering the
time issuc and the associated risk, would be speculative in the context of First Federal's

historical and current operations,

Although Montgomery County demographics have, in most categories, been in line with
or superior to state and national metrics, First Federal has experienced both deposit shninkage
and a decrease in its market share of deposits, in spite of moderate deposit growth in the county.
Based on the foregoing factors, including the likely considerable proceeds from the Bank’s
conversion that must be prudently deployed over the current planning horizon in the context of
its historical decreases in loans and deposits, we have concluded that a moderate downward

adjustment to the Bank's pro forma value is warranted.
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DIVIDEND PAYMENTS

The Corporation has not committed to pay dividends following the completion of its
minority stock offering. Any payment of cash dividends by the Corporation in future years will
continue to be dependent upon such factors as earnings performance, capital position, growth,

and regulatory limitations.

Each of the ten institutions in the comparable group pays cash dividends for an average
dividend yield of 2.73 percent and a payoutratio of 90.51 percent. Inasmuch as the comparable
group is comprised of lower earning institutions, two institutions paid dividends per share in
excess of their earnings per share, resulting in payout ratios over 100 percent; and two of the
comparable group institutions paid cash dividends notwithstanding net losses, resulting in a

payout ratios that are not meaningful.

In our opinion, a no adjustment to the pro forma market value of the Corporation is

warranted at this time related to dividend payments relative to the comparable group.

SUBSCRIPTION INTEREST

In 2006 and to date in 2007, particularly in the second quarter of 2007, investors' interest
in new issues has been declining, with subscription levels generally low, although a few issues
have received stronger support from the marketplace. Overall, the recent unenthusiastic
reaction of potential IPO investors, including savings institution depositors, appears generally
toberelated to a number of analytical factors, including the financial performance and condition
of the converting thrift institution, the strength of the local economy, general market conditions,
aftermarket price trends, the anticipation of continuing merger/acquisition activity in the thrift
industry, weaker housing values and, very significantly, credit and funds pressure in the
mortgage lending market with increasing delinquencies particularly in the subprime and alt-A
credit sectors. Although the number of offerings is small relative to the 1990s, there does not

appear to be a quantitative unsatisfied demand for new financial institution issues, particularly
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Subscription Interest {cont.)

the smaller offerings, and even some issues attracting considerable interest have posted smaller
than expected price increases and, in some cases, price decreases in the aftermarket. As
presented in Exhibit 34, although the eleven full conversions between January 1, 2005, and
August 15, 2007, posted an average gain of 18.15 percent in their share prices on the first day
of trading, the five full conversions completed to date in 2007 indicated a 34.8 percent smaller
11.84 first day gain; and those five full conversions also indicated a more significantly smaller
percentage price change of 1.04 percent from their [PO date to August 15, 2007, compared to
all eleven transactions at 12,02 percent. That declining 2007 trend is also evident with regard
to all conversions since January 1, 2006, including first stage mutual holding company
transactions and second stage conversions. As presented in Exhibit 34A, the thirty three
transactions completed between January 1, 2006, and August 15,2007, indicate an average first
day price gain of 12.59 percent, but the seventeen transactions completed between January 1,
2007, and August 15, 2007, increased at a lower average of 9.31 percent on their first day of
trading; énd those seventeen issues indicated an average decrease of 4.07 percent from their PO
date to August 15, 2007, compared to all thirty three transactions at a positive but modest 3.23
percent. In both Exhibits 34 and 344, it should also be noted that as the time from the IPO date

lengthens, the average percentage price change decreases.

The Corporation will direct its initial subscription offering to depositors of the Bank and
to the tax-qualified employee stock ownership plan (ESOP). The ESOP intends to purchase 8
percent of the stock sold in the offering. If there is a subsequent community offering, residents
of Montgomery County will be given a preference. The board of directors and officers
anticipate purchasing approximately $5,250,000 or approximately 9.1 percent of the stock
offered to the public based on the appraised midpoint valuation.

The Bank has secured the services of Keefe Bruyette & Woods, Inc. (“KBW™) to assist

in the marketing and sale of the conversion stock.




Subscription Interest (cont.)

Based on the larger size of the offering and its structure as a full conversion, recent
market movement and current market and industry conditions, local market interest, the
performmance of First Federal, the Bank’s market area and the extent of its projected eamings
enhancements, the terms of the offering and recent subscription levels and aftermarket
performance of initial thrift offerings, we believe that a significant downward adjustment is

warranted for the Bank’s anticipated subscription interest.

LIQUIDITY OF THE STOCK

The Corporation's public offering of $48 million will result in a market capitalization
moderately larger than the average $38.9 million market value of the comparable group but
significantly smaller than the average of $189.8 million for Midwest thrifts. Of the ten
institutions in the comparable group, all are traded on NASDAQ, indicating an average daily
trading volume of 2,185 shares during the last four quarters. With 4,800,000 shares to be
outstanding at the midpoint of the offering range, the Corporation will a greater number of

shares outstanding than the comparable group, with an average of 2.7 million shares.
Based on the average market capitalization, shares outstanding and daily trading vo]ﬁme
of the comparable group, as well as the relative trading volume of publicly-traded thrift

institutions, including recent IPOs, we have concluded that no adjustment to the Corporation’s

pro forma market value is warranted relative to the anticipated liquidity of its stock.

MANAGEMENT

As previously discussed, First Federal’s senior management team includes its chief

executive officer, Earl O. Bradley 11, its president, John Halliburton and its chief financial
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Management (cont.)

officer, Patrick Greenwell. All of the Bank’s senior management team have extensive and

diverse banking experience, as indicated in Section L

Although overhead expenses, efficiency ratio, earnings and balance sheet growth have
historically been less favorable than the comparable group and industry averages, over the past
several years, the management of First Federal has been successful maintaining a stable net
interest margin, net interest spread and a ratio of noninterest income to average assets in line
with or more favorable than the comparable group and industry averages. The Bank’s level of
interest rate risk has been categorized by the OTS as minimal, due primarily to First Federal’s
strong and stable capitalization and its ratio of equity assets higher than the comparable group,
national and regional averages. Historically, the Bank's ratio of interest-earning assets to total
assets has also been in line with or higher than the comparable group and industry averages and
its cost of interest-bearing liabilities has been lower than comparable group and industry

averages.

Overall, although the Bank experienced modest net and negative core earnings for its
most recent four quarters, earnings were positive but modest in its five most recent fiscal years.
We believe the Bank is managed in a manner and at a professional level generally
commensurate with the comparable group institutions; and we recognize that management has
prepared a business plan and a use of conversion proceeds that are intended to improve the

performance of First Federal in future years.

It is our opinion that no adjustment to the pro forma market value of the Corporation is

warranted for management.
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MARKETING OF THE ISSUE

The necessity to build a new issue discount into the stock price of a converting thrift
institution continues to be a closely examined issue in recognition of uncertainty among
investors as a result of the thrift industry's dependence on interest rate trends, recent volatility
in the stock market and reduced interest in conversion offerings. Increased merger/acquisition
activity, as well as the presence of new competitors in the financial institution industry, such
as de novo institutions, investment firms, insurance companies and mortgage companies, have
resulted in increased pressure on an individual institution’s ability to attract retail deposits at
normal rates rather than premium rates and to deploy new funds in a timely and profitable

maniicr.

We believe that a new issue discount applied to the price to book valuation approach is
appropriate and necessary in some public offerings and, in our opinion, various characteristics
of the Corporation’s transaction, as well as recent market trends, cause us to conclude that such
a discount is warranted in the case of this particular offering. Consequently, at this time we
have made a modest adjustment to the Corporation's pro forma market value related to a new

issue discount.
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Vi. VALUATION METHODS

Introduction

Historically, the most frequently used method for determining the pro forma market
value of common stock for thrift institutions by this firm has been the price to book value ratio
method, due to the volatility of earnings in the thrift industry. As earnings in the thrift industry
have stabilized and improved, more emphasis has been placed on the price to earnings method.
During the past two years, however, as rising interest rates have had varying effects on
individual institutions, depending on the nature of their operations, the price to book value

" method has again become pertinent and meaningful in the objective of discerning commonality
and comparability among institutions. In determining the pro forma market value of First
Advantage Bancorp, primary emphasis has been placed on the price to book value method, due
to the Bank’s core after tax losses and modest net earnings for the twelve months ended June
30, 2007, as well as the volatility of those metrics during the past several years. Inasmuch as
the Bank’s core earnings were negative as a result of its recapture of previous provisions for

"loan losses, net earnings are also not a meaningful metric in the valuation process, since net
earnings include that non-recurring recapture. Consequently, only correlative attention hasbeen

given to the price to net earnings method, which is presented on a derivative basis.

As primarily a correlative indicator, the price to assets method has also been used. The
price to assets method is used less often for valuing ongoing institutions, but becomes more
useful in valuing converting institutions when the equity position and earnings performance of

the subject institution are different.

In addition to the pro forma market value, we have defined a fully converted valuation
range with the minimutn of the range being 85.0 percent of the pro forma market value, the
maximum of the range being 115.0 percent of the pro forma market value, and a super
maximum being 115.0 percent of the maximum. The pro forma market value or appraised

value will also be referred to as the "midpoint value".
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Valuation Methods (cont.)

In applying each of the valuation methods, consideration was given to the adjustments
to the Bank's pro forma market value discussed in Section V. Downward adjustments were
made for earnings performance, the Bank’s market area, financial condition, balance sheet and
earnings growth, subscription interest and the marketing of the issue. No adjustments were

made for the liquidity of the Bank’s stock or management.

PRICE TO BOOK VALUE METHOD

In the valuation of thrift institutions, the price to book value method focuses on an
institution's financial condition, and does not give as much consideration to the institution's long
term performance and value as measured by earnings. Due to the earnings volatility of many
thrift stocks, including First Federal, the price to book value method is frequently used by
investors who rely on an institution's financial condition rather than earnings performance.
Although this method is, under certain circumstances, considered somewhat less meaningful
for institutions that provide a consistent earnings trend, it remains significant and reliable when
an institution’s performance or general economic conditions are experiencing volatile or
uncustomary trends related to internal or external factors. It should be noted that the prescribed
formulary computation of value using the pro forma price to book value method returns a price

to book value ratio below market value on a fully converting institution

Exhibit 50 shows the average and median price to book value ratios for the comparable
group which were 99.66 percent and 97.01 percent, respectively. The full comparable group
indicated a moderately wide range, from a low of 67.22 percent (First Federal of Northern
Michigan Bancorp) to a high of 125.75 percent (River Valley Bancorp). The comparable group
had moderately higher average and median price to tangible book value ratios of 106.80 percent
and 109.41 percent, respectively, with the range of 75.56 percent to a higher 128.15 percent.
Excluding the low and the high in the group, the comparable group's price to book value range
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Price to Book Value Method (cont.)

narrowed modestly from a low of 82,42 percent to a high 0£123.56; and the comparable group’s
price to tangible book value range also narrowed modestly from a low of 87.18 percent to a high
of 125.92 percent.

Considering the foregoing factors in conjunction with the adjustments made in Section
V, we have determined a pro forma price to book value ratio of 65.68 percent and a price to
tangible book value ratio of 65.48 percent at the midpoint. The price to book value ratio
increases from 61.07 percent at the minimum to 73.34 percent at the maximum, as adjusted,
while the price to tangible book value ratio increases from 60.86 percent at the minimum to

73.15 percent at the maximum, as adjusted.

The Corporation's pro forma price to book value and price to tangible book value ratios
of 65.58 percent and 65.48 percent, respectively, as calculated using the prescribed formulary
computation indicated in Exhibit 49, are influenced by the Bank’s capitalization, balance sheet
characteristics and trends and the local market, as well as subscription interest in thrift stocks
and overall market and economic conditions. Further, the Corporation's ratio of equity to assets
after conversion at the midpoint of the valuation range will be approximately 28.0 percent
compared to 10.89 percent for the comparable group. Based on the price to book value ratio
and the Bank's total equity of $32,236,000 at June 30, 2007, the indicated pro forma market
value of the Bank using this approach is $48,000,000 at the midpoint (reference Exhibit 49).

PRICE TO EARNINGS METHOD
The foundation of the price to earnings method is the determination of the earnings base
to be used, followed by the determination of an appropriate price to eamnings multiple. As

indicated in Exhibit 3 and previously discussed, First Federal’s after tax net carnings for the

twelve months ended June 30, 2007, were $409,000, and the Bank's core eamnings for that
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Price to Earnings Method (cont.)

period were $66,000, based on the adjustments shown in Exhibit 7. Considering such eamings
bases and trends, we have concluded that neither the price to net earnings method nor the price
to core earnings method is meaningful for valuation purposes, although the Corporation’s pro
forma price to eamings and price to core eamings multiples are shown from a correlative and

derivative perspective.

The average price to core earnings multiple for the comparable group was 30.24, while
the median was 24.33. The average price to net eamings multiple was a lower 25.53 and the
median multiple was 20.49. The comparable group's price 1o core earnings muitiple was
modestly higher than the 27.58 average multiple for all publicly-traded, FDIC-insured thrifts,
and more significantly higher than their median of 18.67. The range in the price to core
earnings multiple for the comparable group was from a low of 13.11 (MFB Corp.) to a high of
71.59 (First Federal of Northern Michigan Bancorp). The range in the price to corc earnings
multiple for the comparable group, excluding the high and low values, was from a low multiple
of 13.64 to a high of 37.94 times earnings for eight of the ten institutions in the group,
indicating a modest narrowing at the lower end of the range and a significant narrowing at the
upper end. It should be noted that the two comparable group institutions with negative core

earnings indicated price to core earnings multiples that are necessarily not meaningful (NM).

As indicated previously, considering the net and core earnings positions and trends of
First Federal for the twelve months ended June 30, 2007, it is our opinion that the price to core

earnings method is not mcaningful.

PRICE TO ASSETS METHOD

The price to assets method is not frequently used, since the calculation incorporates
ncither an institution's equity position nor its earnings base. Additionally, the prescribed

formulary computation of value using the pro forma price to assets method does not recognize
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Price to Assets Method (cont.)

the runoff of deposits concurrently allocated to the purchase of conversion stock, returning a

pro forma price to net assets ratio below its true level following conversion,

Exhibit 50 indicates that the average price to assets ratio for the comparable group was
11.08 percent and the median was 8.85 percent. The range in the price to assets ratios for the
comparable group varied from a low of 6.51 percent (Ameriana Bancorp) to a high of 24.83
percent (Jefferson Bancshares, Inc.). The range narrows with the elimination of the two

extremes in the group 1o a low of 7.74 percent and a high of 17.66 percent.

Based on the previously noted adjustments, it is our opinion that an appropriate price to
assets ratio for the Corporation is 18.42 percent at the midpoint, which ranges from a low of

16.04 percent at the minimum to 23.16 percent at the maximum, as adjusted.

Based on the Bank's June 30, 2007, asset base of $219,728,000, the indicated pro forma
market value of the Corporation using the price to assets method is $48,000,000 at the midpoint
(reference Exhibit 49).

VALUATION CONCLUSION

Exhibit 55 provides a summary of the valuation premium or discount relative to the
comparable group at each of the valuation ranges using the price to book value and price to
assets approaches. At the midpoint value, the price to book value ratio of 65.68 percent for the
Corporation represents a diséomt of 34.09 percent relative to the comparable group and
decreases to a discount of 26.41 percent at the super maximum. The price to assets ratio at the
midpoint represents a premium of 66.22 percent, increasing to a premium of 109.02 percent at

the maximum, as adjusted.
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Valuation Conclusion (cont.)

It is our opinion that as of August 15, 2007, the fully converted pro forma market value
of the Corporation, was $48,000,000 at the midpoint, representing 4,800,000 shares at $10.00
per share. The fully converted pro forma valuation range of the Corporation is from a minimum
of $40,800,000 or 4,080,000 shares at $10.00 per share to a maximum of $55,200,000 or
5,520,000 shares at $10.00 per share, with such range being defined as 15 percent below the
appraised value to 15 percent above the appraised value. The maximum, as adjusted, or super
maximum, defined as 15 percent above the maximum of the range, is $63,480,000 or 6,348,000
shares at $10.00 per share.

The fully converted pro forma appraised value of First Advantage Bancorp as of June
11, 2007 was $48,000,000 at the midpoint.
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EXHIBIT 1
FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK
CLARKSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Consolidated Balance Sheet

At June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006
(Dollars in thousands}

June 30, December 31,

2007 2008
ASSETS {unaudited)
Cash and due from banks $ 4088 § 1,754
Interest-bearing demand deposits 900 5,631
Federal funds sold 3,876 9,364
Cash and cash equlvalents 6,564 18,748
Available-for-sale securities 93,550 83,519
Loans held-for-sale 3.417 1,400
Loans, nat of allowance for loan losses of $2,088 and $2,025
at June 30, 2007 and December 31, 2008, respectively 100,488 98,370
Premises and equipment 6,557 6,305
Mortgage servicing rights {net} 30 51
Foreclosed assels held for sale - 848
Other assets held for sale 581 581
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,872 2872
Accrued interest raceivable 1,442 1,356
Deferred Income taxes 913 588
Other assets 1,013 682
Total assets $ 219728 § 213,419
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits:
Demand $ 11,502 § 9,620
Savings, checking and money market 78,280 69,494
Time cerlificates 94,286 97,495
Total deposits 184,074 176,809
Interest payable and other liabilities 3,418 3,021
Total llabilities 187,492 180,530
EQuITY
Retaingd eamings 32,459 32,485
Accumulated other comprehensive income {223) 404
Total equity 32,236 32,889
Total liabilittes and equity $ 219728 § 213,419

Source; First Federal Savings Bank's unaudited and audited ﬁnant.:ial statements
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EXHIBIT 2

FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK

CLARKSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Consolidated Balance Sheets

At December 31, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005

December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002
{In thousands)
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 4943 § 4230 $ 4,364 $ 3,945
Interest-bearing demand deposits 9230 36,500 30,865 14,833
Federal funds sold 9,000 - - -
Investment securities:
Avallable-for-sale 41,477 17,488 15,357 15,612
Morigage-backed securitles:
Avallable-for-sale 26,462 29,910 39,630 38,005
Held-to-maturity 164 326 600 928
Loans available-for-sale 13,872 15,934 7,433 9,189
Loans receivable, net 103,457 122,082 129,346 158,154
Accrued interest receivable 987 785 988 1,297
Accounts receivable-loan sales 776 837 1,165 2,596
Mortgage servicing rights, net - 223 333 324
Deferred Income taxes 82 - - -
Foreclosed assels, net 602 3,141 3,373 2,524
Premises and equipment, at cost less
accumulated depreciation 6,595 5,225 5,149 5,050
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, restricted 2,71 2579 2,476 2,379
Other assels 527 481 594 571
Total assets 220885 $ 239,741 & 241693 § 255,407
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Deposits 174016 $ 184,162 § 189,726 $ 202,672
Advance payments by borrowers for
taxes and insurance as 104 104 132
Accrued employee benefits 801 1,966 1,021 1,749
Accrued expenses 1,388 -
Deferred income taxes - 4,615 3,595 3,770
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 12,159 12,204 12,248 12,289
Interest payable and other liabilities 1,340 1,533 854 1,509
Total liabilities 189,792 204,584 208,448 222121
EQUITY
Retained eamings 30418 26,585 25,812 26,374
Accumulated other comprehensive income 675 8,572 7,433 7,912
Total equity 31,003 35,157 33,245 33,286
Total liabilities and equity 220885 $ 239741 % 241693 $ 255,407

Source: First Federal Savings Bank's audited financial statements
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EXHIBIT 3

FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK
CLARKSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007 and
For the Year Ended December 31, 2006
(Dobars In thousands)

Six Months Ended Year Ended
June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006
{unaudited)
Interest and dividend income
Loans 5 3,672 $ 4,087 $ 7,839
Investment securities 2,474 1,812 3,876
Other 257 347 601
Total intarest and dividend income 8,403 6,248 12,406
Interast expense
Deposils 2,928 2,085 4,759
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 6 304 394
Total interest expense 2,934 2,479 5,153
Net interest income 3,469 3,767 7,253
Provision (Credit} for loan losses 32 37 {736}
Net interest income after provision {credit)
for loan losses 3,437 3,730 7,888
Noninterest income
Customar service and other fees 554 539 1.081
Loan servicing and other fees 142 a7 164
Net gains on ipan sales 455 259 673
Net gain {loss) on safes of other
real estate owned 7 61 55
Net realized gain {loss) on sales of
avaitable-for-sale securities {328) - {1)
Net realized galn on sale of restricted investment - -
Commissions on Insurance and brokerage 200 200 382
Net gain {loss) on premises and equipment 17 6) 24
Other 39 112 148
Total noninterest income 1,085 1,252 2,536
Noninterest expense
Sataries and employee benefits 2,562 2,527 4,622
Net occupancy expense 327 280 570
Equipment expense 275 158 362
Data processing fees 348 425 1,135
Professional fees 258 232 70
Marketing expense 115 180 384
Office expense 136 176 325
Loss on foreclosed assets, net 15 - -
Insurance expense 44 61 150
Mortgage loan putsourced setvicing 115 a7 150
Other 436 502 1,036
Total noninterest expense . 4,631 4,648 9,525
Income before income lax (109) 34 1,000
Provislon for income taxes (83) 144 375
Net income $ (26) $ 190 $ 625

Sowrce: First Federal Savings Bank's unaudited and audited financlal statements
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EXHIBIT 4

FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK
CLARKSVILLE, TENNESSEE

Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005

Interest and dividend income
Loans
Investment securities
Other
Tolal interest and dividend income
Interest expense
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank advances
Total interest expense

Net interest income
Provision {Credit) for loan losses

Net interest income after provision {credit}
for loan losses

Noninterest income
Customer service and other fees
Loan servicing and other fees
Net gains on foan sales
Net realized gains (losses)
on sales of available-for-sale securities
Net realized gain on sale of restricted invastment
Commissions on insurance and brokerage
Net gain {loss) on premises and equipment
Other
Total neninterest income

Noninterest expense
Salaries and employee benefits
Net occupancy expense
Equipment expense
Data processing fees
Professional fees
Marketing expense
Office expense
Loss on foreclosed assels, net
Insurance expense
Other
Total noninterest expense

income before income tax
Provision for income laxes

Net Income

Year Ended Becember 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002
$ 8,689 9,657 10,774 12,783
3,845 2,698 768 836
185 290 2,360 2,319
12,719 12,645 13,902 15,938
3,382 3,654 4,402 6,615
o297 624 626 601
3,979 4,278 5,028 7,216
8,740 8,367 8874 8,722
100 200 2,40 590
8,640 8,167 6,383 8,132
1,344 1,211 1,376 1,427
338 350 457 559
811 540 690 775
9,600 -
1,152 -
76 10
(1,056} -
24 81 518 406
12,089 2,192 3,041 3,167
4,897 5,497 4,743 4,700
465 438 425 464
356 375 388 442
2,039 1072 1,362 1,336
843 445 440 190
170 396 336 403
329 383 223 200
538 283
124 117 32 35
902 1,048 770 805
10,763 10,054 8,719 8,665
9,966 305 705 2,833
3,794 72 287 979
$ 6,172 233 438 1,654

Source: First Federal Savings Bank's audited financial statements
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EXHIBIT 5

Selected Financial Information
At June 30, 2007 and at December 31, 2002 through 2006

Al June 30, At December 31,
2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002
{Doltars in thousands)
Financial Gondition Data:
Total assels $ 219,728 $213.419 $220,725 $237.929 $240,187 5251252
Cash and due from banks 4,088 1,754 2,415 3,098 2,447 2,708
Interest-bearing deposits at 5,631 8,748 36,664 K R:Yrd 14,712
financial institutions 800

Federal funds sold 3,878 934 . 9,000 - - -
Investment securities available-for-sale 93,550 83,518 67,866 47,475 55,737 54,643
Loans available-for-sale 3,417 1,400 777 B37 1,165 2,596
Loans receivable, net 100,489 a7,370 120,083 137,046 135,805 164,169
Deposits 184,074 176,609 171,140 182,888 188,551 201,850
Federal Home Loan Bank advances - - 12,159 12,204 12,248 12,289
Total equity 32,236 32,889 32,535 34,265 32,661 31,194

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 6

Income and Expense Trends
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2002 through 2006

For the Six Menths
Ended June 30, Al December 31,
2007 2008 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{Dollars in thousands)
OCperating Data:
Interest income $ 6,403 $ 5246 $12,406 $12719 $12644 $14562 $16,666
Interest expense 2,934 2479 5,153 3,979 4,278 5,032 7,228
Net interest income 3,469 3,767 7.253 8,740 B,366 8,530 9,439
Provision {credit) for loan lesses 32 a7 (7368} 9 B9 558 2,978
Net Interest income aftar provision
for loan kosses 3,437 3,730 7,969 8,640 8,277 8,972 6.460
Norinterest Income 1,085 1,252 2538 12006 @ 2268 2,432 2,496
Noninterest expense 4,631 4,648 9,525 11,689 9,018 8,703 9,245
Income {Joss) before provision
(benefit) for income taxes {109) 334 1,000 8,966 1.527 2,701 {289)
Income tax provision {benefit) {83) 144 375 3,426 539 883 {207)
Net income (loss) $(26) $190 $625 $5.540 $088 $1.818 $(82)

3 Not Income and Other Income for all years include fees charged to customers for normal banking services. The large
income in 2005 includes net realized gains of $10,690,000 from the sales of certaln corporate equity securities (assets had
been held for a long ime and hag a very low cost basis). These gains were offset partlally by the write-down of $1,055,000
of certain company properties that had lost value,

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 7

Nomnalized Earnings Trends
First Federal Savings Bank
For the Twelve Months Ended June 30, 2007

Twelve Months Ended
June 30, 2007
($000)

Met income before taxes §429
Expense adjustments

Recapture loan loss provision {651}
Income adjustments 330
Normalized eamings before taxes 108
Taxes " 42
Normalized sarnings after taxes $ 68

™ Based on tax rate of 39,00 percent

Source; First Federal Savings Bank's audited financial statements
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EXHIBIT 8
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EXHIBIT 10

Yield and Cost Trends
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006,
Far the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, and at June 30, 2007

Six Months Ended Years Ended
At June 30, June 30, December 31,
2007 2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
Average Average Average Average Average Average

Yield/Cost Yield/Cost Yield/Cost Yield/Cost Yield/Cost Yield/Cost

Assets:
Interest-bearing demand deposits 521% 5.55% 3.61% 3.83% 2.15% 0.94%
Loans 7.02% 7.35% 7.05% 7.06% 6.50% 6.88%
Investment securities 5.79% 5.45% 5.39% 5.35% 5.74% 4.59%
Other interest-bearing assets 2.97% 3.80% 4.21% 4.06% 5.00% 8.22%
Total Interest-eaming assets 6.30% 6.35% 6.19% 6.16% 5.78% 5.46%
Liabilities and equtity:
Savings accounts 1.90% 0.39% 0.49% 0.48% 0.44% 0.69%
Checking accounts 0.84% 0.65% 0.59% 0.61% 0.43% 0.40%
Money market deposit accounts 3.62% 3.58% 3.27% 3.44%, 2.37% 1.95%
Cartificates of deposit 4.87% 4.81% 3.48% 3.88% 2.84% 2.77%
Total interest-bearing deposits 3.54% 3.51% 2.68% 2.98% 2.05% 2.05%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 5.95% 7.56% 7.48% 4,90% 5.10%
Total interest-bearing Hlabilities 351% 2.99% 3.12% 2.25% 2.25%
Interest rate spread 2.84% 3.20% 3.04% 3.53% 3%
Net interest margin 3.44% 3.73% 3.60% 3.97% 3.61%

Average inlerest-eaming assets to
average interest-bearing labllities 120.63% 121.68% 121.97% 124.53% 121.75%

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 11

Net Portfolio Value (NPV)
At March 31, 2007

Change in :
Interest Rates Net Portfolio Value

NPV as % of Assels

_(Basis Points) $ Amount _ § Change % Change

NPV Ratio Change'”

{Doilars in thousands)

300 $31,901 $(12,000) (2N)%
200 35870  (8,032)  (18)%
100 39937  (3965) (9%
0 43,902 - -
(100) 45,796 1,894 4%
(200) 47,072 3,170 7%

" Expressed in basis points.

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospeclus
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EXHIBIT 13
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EXHIBIT 14

Loan Originations, Purchases and Sales

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007 and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Total loans at beginning of period

Leoans originated:
One- to four-family
Multi-family and nonresidential
Consiruction
Land
Consumer
Commercial
Tolal loans originated

Loans purchased:
Deduct:
Loan principal repayments
Loan sales
Other (includes changes in loans
in process)
Net loan acfivity
Loans, net of loans in process,
at end of period

Six Months Ended Years Ended
June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
{In thousands}
$100,595 $123,486 $123,486 $140,498 $139,244
22,383 16,179 33,938 35,513 41,873
4132 4,479 10,081 2,235 17,299
17,499 8,339 30,679 45,525 59,887
3,256 2,708 8,893 5,097 1,541
3,743 1,808 3,814 5,195 8,905
8,334 2,189 2,508 2,603 2,368
59,347 35,702 87,803 08,168 131,873
{39,892) {40,519) (84,379} (84,588) {103,643)
(17,412) {11,110) {26,405) (28,592) (26,976)
2,043 {15,927) {22,891) {17,012} 1,254
$102,638 $ 107,559 $ 100,595 $ 123,488 $ 140,498

Source: First Adventage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 15
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EXHIBIT 16

Nonperforming Assets
At June 30, 2007, and at December 31, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006

At June 30, At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)
Nonaccrual loans:
One- to four-family $381 $420 $112 $161 $699 $565
Multi-family and nonresidential 1,159 3,888 2,206 1,213 80 376
Construction 184 - - 104 171 176
Land 15 - - - 187 -
Consumer 16 - 194 241 1,082 1,354
Commercial 12 12 341 752 589 337
Total 1,767 4,320 2,853 2,471 2,808 2,808
Accruing loans past due 90 days or more; - - - - -- -
One-to four-family - - - - - -
Multi-family and nonresidential - - - - - -
Construction - - - - - -
Land - - - - -- -
Consumer - - - - - -
Commercial - — — - - -
Total - - - - - -
Tolal of nonaccrual and 80 days or
more pasi due loans 1,767 4,320 2,853 2,471 2,808 2,808
Real estate owned - 946 519 3,178 3,424 2,608
Other nonperforming assets - — - — — —
Total nonperforming assets 51,767 $5,266 $3,372 $5,649 $6,232 $5,416
Total nonperforming loans to tolal loans 1.72% 4.29% 2.31% 1.76% 2.02% 1.66%
Total nonperforming loans to total assets 0.80% 2.02% 1.25% 1.04% 1.17% 1.12%
Total nonperforming assets and troubled
debt restructurings 1o total assels 0.80% 2.47% 1.53% 2.37% 2.59% 2.16%

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospecius
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EXHIBIT 17

Classified Assets
At June 30, 2007, and at December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

At
June 30, At December 31,
2007 2008 2005 2004
{In thousands)
Substandard assets $1,585 $7. 110 $12,556 $0,878
Doubtful assets 1,583 1,474 1,317 1,330
Loss assets 0 0 76 215
Total classified assels $3,168 $8,584 $13,949 $11.423

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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U.S. government and federal
aflencies

State and polilical subdivisions

Mortgage-backed socurlties

Corporste equity scowrilies

Corporate debt securities

Total

EXHIBIT 19

tnvestment Securities
At June 30, 2007, and at December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Al June 20, Al December 31,
2007 2008 2005 2004
Amortized Falr Amortized Falr Amortized Fair Amortizad Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Valve Cost Value
(in thousends}
$46,886 $47,345 $50,749 $51,517 $40,013 $40,554 $4,910 $6.423
7,603 7472 7.759 7,708 - - - -
38,344 35,722 21,826 21,785 26,218 28,402 29,058 20874
- - - - - - 153 11,078
3,002 3.011 2,507 2,509 500 500 0 1]
$93,925 $93.550 $82,841 $83,519 $66,731 $67,866 $34,121 $47 475

Source: First Agvantage Bancorp’s Prospecius
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EXHIBIT 20

Mix of Deposits
At June 30, 2007, and At December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

At
June 30, At December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands}

Noninterest-bearing checking accounts $11,502 $9,620 $14,382 $8,732

Interest-bearing accounts:
Savings 17,5835 12,457 14,420 15,718
Checking 27,500 26,759 30,789 33,714
Money market 33,251 30,278 24,593 28,319
Certificates of deposit 94,286 97,495 86,974 98,405
Total $184,074 $176,609 $171,138 $182,883

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 22

Deposit Activity
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007 and
For the Years Ended Decomber 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Six Months Ended
June 30, Year Ended Decamber 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
Beginning balance $176,600 $171,140 $171,140 $182,888 $188,551
Increase {decrease) before interest credited 4,618 (3,105) 1,552 {14,840) (8,912)
interost credited 2,847 2,232 3,917 3,092 3,249
Net increase (decrease) in deposils 7,465 {873) 5,469 {11,748) (5,663)
Ending balance $184,074 $170,267 $176,609 $171,140 $182,888

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 23

Borrowings
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

Six Months Ended
_June 30, Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2008 2005 2004
{Dollars in thousands)

Maximum amount of FHLB advances
outstanding at any month-end

during period $4,000 $15,655 $15,655 $12,200 $12,244
Average FHLB advances outstanding
during period $155 $10,514 $5,265 $12,180 $12,226
Weighted average interest rate
during period 5.562% 7.56% 7.48% 4,.90% 5.10%
Balance outstanding at end of period - - - $12,159 $12,204
Weighted average inlerest rale
at end of period - - - 4.92% 5.10%

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 24

Offices of First Federal Savings Bank

As of June 30, 2007
Net Book Value
Lease at
Year Square Owned/ Expiration June 30,
Location QOpened Footage Leased Date 2007

Main Office:
1430 Madison Street™ 2006 17,000  Owned N/A $2,232
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040
Branch Offices:
Tradewinds Branch® 1974 2,263 Owned N/A 125
1929 Madison Street
Clarksville, Tennessee 37043
St. Bethlehem Branch 1985 4,594 Owned N/A 192
2141 Witma Rudolph Boulevard
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040
North Clarksville Branch 1996 8,060 Owned N/A 1,435
1800 Ft. Campbell Boulevard
Clarksville, Tennessee 37042
Downtown {Drive-Thry Only)® 1995 600  Owned N/A 341
200 N 2nd St.
Clarksville, Tennessee 37042
ATM Site 1984 N/A Owned N/A 154
1193 & 1195 Ft. Campbell Blvd.
Clarksville, Tennesses 37042
Other Properties:
Commerclal Lot N/A N/A Owned N/A 288
Pleasant View, Tennessee
Downtown‘¥ N/A N/A  Owned N/A 381
200 N. 2nd St
Clarksville, Tennessee 37040
Blue Hole Lodge"™ N/A N/A  OQwned N/A 200

m

Building was acquired through foreclosure in 2003. When the new management team joined

tha Bank In early 2005, the decision was made to renovate the building to provide more
conducive office space to the customers, the branch customer sendce leam, mortgage
servicas, support and administrative teams and the executive offices for the Bank. There
are currently no drive-thru lanes avallable at this location.
! this branch has been demolished as a new branch Is currently under construction. The new

branch will be approximately the same size and will employ the same total stafl count.
During the construction peried, the customers will be served from a modular facility at the

location.

) This tocation was orlginally the Main Office for the Bank. However, with the renovation of the

property at 1430 Madison Street and the relocation of customer service, support. and

executive management teams to that location, the Bank decided to only leave the drive-thru
customer service operation open in the downtown area of Clarksville. The Bank still owns
this buliding and is attempting to sell the building.
*) The Bank had previously operated a small branch facility at this location to serve the customers
in the Pleasant View area. However, new management of the Bank decided to close the
branch in 2005 becauss it was not cost effective at the time to keep the operation open.
However, after intemal changes have been made and the new philosophy of the Bank has

been implemented, the Bank anticipates regstablishing a branch at this location.
) This I a lodge facillty that the Bank is currently marketing for sale.

Source: First Advantage Bancorp’s Prospectus
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EXHIBIT 25

LIST OF KEY OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

At June 30, 2007

Narmna Position{s) Hald with the Association

Earl O. Bradley, 11§ Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer
John T. Halliburton President/Director

Willam G. Beach Director

Michae! E. Wallace Diractor

Robert E. Durrett, 111 Director

William Lawson Mabry Director

William H. Orgain Dirsctor

Dr. Vemon M. Camrigan Director

David 1. Watson Director

™ Ag of Juna 30, 2007

Source: First Advantage Bancorp's Prospectus
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Diractor Term
__Apo(1) Since Expires

51 2005 2008
60 2005 2009
50 2006 2007
k) 2006 2007
51 2007 2008
51 2006 2008
50 2007 2008
56 1999 2009
65 2004 2009




Poputation
Montgomery County
Tennesseo

Uniled States

Households
Montgomery County
Tennessee

United States

Per Cagita Income
Montgomery County
Tennessee

United States

I Ly id
Monigomery County
Tennessee
United States

EXHIBIT 26

Key Demographic Data and Trends
Montgomery County, Tennessee and the United States

1990, 2000, 2006 and 2011
1990- 2000- 2006-
2000 2006 2011
1980 2000 % Change 2006 % Change 2011 % Change

100,498 134,768 34.1% 156,782  16.3% 176030 12.3%
4877185 5680283 167% 6140866 7.9% 6522932 62%
248,700,873 281,421,906 13.2% 303582361 70% 323785827 67%
34,345 43,330 26.2% 56013  31.3% 64278 12.8%
1,853,725 2232905 205% 2,440,878 93% 2608416 68%
91,983,562 105,480,101 14.7% 114049635 81% 121,863482  6.9%
$ 11,056 $17265 562%  $21,628 253% - -
12,255 19,303 582% 24488  26.3% - -
14,420 21587  49.7% 26228  21.5% - -
$ 25,568 $38.981 S525% 548123 235%  $56678  17.8%
24,807 36,360 46.6% 44992  23.7% 53128  18.1%
30,056 41,994  397% 48534  156% 60,704  25.1%

Source: Census Bureau and ESRI
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EXHIBIT 27

Key Housing Data
Montgomery County,
Tennessee and the Unlted States
1990 & 2000

Qccupled Housing Units 1990
Montgomery County 34,345
Tennessee 1,853,725
United States 91,947,410
Occupancy Rate
Montgomery County

Owner-Occupied 61.1%

Renter-Occupled 38.9%
Tenhessee

Owner-Occupled 68.0%

Renter-Occupied 32.0%
United States

Owner-Occupled 64.2%

Renter-Occupied 35.8%
Median Housing Values
Montgomery County $ 58,200
Tennessee 58,000
United States 78,500
Mediap Rept
Monigomery County $373
Tennessee 357
United States 374

Source: U.S. Caensus Bureau
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2000
48,330
2,232,905
105,480,101

63.5%
36.5%

69.9%
30.1%

66.2%
33.8%

$ 85,100
83,000
119,600

5 549
505
602




EXHIBIT 28

Major Sources of Employment by Industry Group

Montgomery County,
Tennessee and the United States
1990 and 2000
1990

Montgomery United

Indusiry Group County Tennessee States
Agriculture/Mining 2.1% 26% 1.3%
Construction 6.0% 6.3% 4,8%
Manufacturing 18.1% 23.3% 19.2%
Transportation/Utilities 5.6% 7.6% 5.9%
Wholesaie/Retail 23.7% 21.3% 27.5%

Flnance, Insurance
& Rea) Estate 5.1% 5.4% 7.3%
Services 39.4% 33.5% 34.0%
2000

Montgomery United

County Tennessee States
Agriculture/Mining 0.9% 1.4% 1.9%
Construction 7.6% 7.3% 6.8%
Manufacturing 16.1% 18.9% 14.1%
Wholesale/Retail 15.2% 15.6% 15.3%
TransportationfUtilities 5.5% 6.3% 5.2%
Information 3.0% 2.4% 3.1%

Finance, Insurance

& Real Estate 4.3% 5.8% 6.9%
Services 47.3% 42.3% 46,7%

Source: Bureau of the Census
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EXHIBIT 29

Unemployment Rates
Montgomery County,
Tennessee and the United States
For the Years 2003 through 2006 and through June 2007

Through
June
Location 2003 2004 2008 2006 2007
Montgomery County  5.1% 4.9% 5.0% 4.8% 4.5%
Tennessee 5.7% 5.5% 5.6% 5.2% 4.4%
United States 6.0% 5.5% 5.1% 4.6% 4.7%

Source: Local Area Unemployment Statistics - U.S. Bureau of Labor
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EXHIBIT 30

Market Share of Deposits
Montgomery County, Tennesses
June 30, 2006
Montgomery County First Federal's First Federal's
Deposits Deposits Share
{$000) ($000) (%)
Banks $1,318,472 — —
Thrifts 173,404 $ 173,404 100.0%
Total $ 1,491,876 $173.404 11.6%

Source: FDIC
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Prime Rate

90-Day Treasury Bills
1-Year Treasury Bills
30-Year Treasury Notes

Prime Rate

90-Day Treasury Bills
1-Year Treasury Bills
30-Year Treasury Notes

Prime Rate

60-Day Treasury Bills
1-Year Treasury Bills
30-Year Treasury Notes

Prime Rate

90-Day Treasury Bills
1-Year Treasury Bills
30-Year Treasury Notes

Prime Ralte

90-Day Treasury 8ills
1-Year Treasury Blils
30-Year Treasury Notes

EXHIBIT 31

National Interest Rates by Quarter

2003 - 2007
1stQitr.  2nd Qir.  3rd Qfr.
2003 2003 2003
4,00% 4.00% 4.00%
1.02% 1.00% 1.98%
1.13% 1.12% 1.10% -
4.62% 4,70% 4.78%
IstQtr.  2nd Qtr.  3rd Qitr.
2004 2004 2004
4.00% 4.25% 4,50%
0.93% 1.33% 2.25%
1.44% 1.82% 2.13%
5.48% 6.13% 6.13%
18t Qtr.  2nd Qtr.  3rd Qtr.
2005 2005 2005
5.75% 6.00% 6.25%
3.12% 3.46% 4.28%
3.37% 3.99% 4.,60%
6.25% 5.38% 5.28%
1stQtr,  2nd Qlr.  3rd Qir.
2006 2006 2006
7.50% 8.25% 8.25%
4.87% 5.09% 5.12%
5.23% 5.05% 4.88%
5.26% 4.98% 4.66%
1stQtr.  2nd Qir.
2007 2007
8.25% 8.25%
4.89% 4.,84%
4.97% 4.94%
5.00% 5.05%

Source: The Wall Street Journal

104

4th Qtr.
2003

4.00%
0.94%
1.1%
4.85%

4tk Qtr.
2004

5.00%
2.72%
2.89%
6.25%

4th Gitr.
2005

6.75%
4.71%
4.93%
5.19%

4th Qtr.
2008

8.25%
4.93%
4.79%
4.68%
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EXHIBIT 35

KELLER & COMPANY
Dublin, Ohlo
614-766-1426

ACQUISITIONS AND PENDING ACQUISITIONS
COUNTY, CITY OR MARKET AREA OF FIRST FEDERAL SAVINGS BANK

NONE
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EXHIBIT 48
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EXHIBIT 49

KELLER & COMPANY
Columbus, Chio
614-766-1426

VALUATION ANALYSIS AND CALCULATION - FULL CONVERSION

First Federal Savings Bank/First Advantage Bancorp
Stock Prices as of August 15, 2007

Pricing ratlos: Comparable Group All Thrifts
Symbol Value Average Median Average Median

Price to earnings PIE 4987 25,53 20.49 2127 16.69

price to core earnings PICE 7748 30.24 24.33 27.58 18.67

Price to book value P/B 65.68% 99.66% 97.01% 112.54% 104.75%

Price to tangible book value PITB 65.48% 106.80% 109.41% 126.78% 115.78%

Price lo assets PIA 18.42% 11.08% 8.85% 11.88% 10.47%

Pra conversion eamings (Y} $ 409,000 For the twalve months ended June 30, 2007

Pre conversion core eamings {CY) ] 66,000 For the twelve monthg ended June 30, 2007

Pre conversion book value (8) $ 32.238,000 AtJune 30, 2007

Pre conversion tang. book valus  {TB) $ 32,459,000 AtJune 30, 2007

Pre conversion assels (A) $ 219,728,000 At.June 30, 2007

Conversion expense 0y 2.90% Option % granted {OP) 10.00%

ESOP stock purchase (E) 8.00% Est, option value ov) 38.20%

ESOQP cost of borrowings, net (S) 0.00% Option maturity (OM) 5

ESOP term (yrs.) ) 20 Option % taxable (on 25.00%

RRP amount {M) 4.00% Price per share . {F) $10.00

RRP term (yrs.) (N) 5

Tax rate (TAX) 39.00%

Investment rate of return, net (RR) 3.03%

tnvestment rate of return, pretax 4.96%

Percent sold (PCT) 100.00%

Formulae to indicate value after conversion;

i. PIE method:  Value = PIEYY = $ 48,000,000
1-PIE*((PCT-X-E-M)*RR-1-TAX) E/T-(1-TAX)*M/N-(1-(TAX*OT))* (OP*OV/OM))

Pa'B = $ 48,000,000
1-P/B"(PCT-X-E-M)

2. P/B method: Value

P/A*A = $ 48,000,000
1-PA*(PCT-X-E-M)

i}

3. PiAmethod: Value

VALUATION CORRELATION AND CONCLUSIONS:

Gross Proceeds Total Number
Prica Shares lssued  of Public of Shares TOTAL
Per Share 1o Pyblic Offering Issyed VALUE
Midpoint $10.00 4,800,000 $48,000,000 4,800,000 $48,000,000
Minimum $10.00 4,080,000 $40,800,000 4,080,000 $40,800,000
Maximum $10.00 5,520,000 $55,200,000 5,520,000 $55,200,000
Maximum, as adjusted $10.00 6,348,000 $63,480,000 6,348,000 $63,480,000
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EXHIBIT 51

KELLER & COMPANY
Columbus, Ohio
614-766-1426

PROJECTED EFFECT OF CONVERSION PROCEEDS
First Federal Savings Bank/First Advantage Bancorp
At the MINIMUM of the Range

1.

Gross Offering Proceeds

Minimum offering proceeds ™
Less: Estimated conversion expenses

Net conversion proceeds

Generation of Additional Income
Net conversion proceeds

Less: Proceeds notinvested @
Total conversion proceeds invested

investment rate

Eamings Increase - retum on proceeds invested
Less: Estimated cost of ESOP borrowings
Less: Amortization of ESOP borrowings, net of taxes

Less: RRP expense, net of taxes

Net earnings Increase

Comparative Earnings

Before conversion - 12 months ended 06/30/07
Net earnings increase

40,800,000
1,328,000

39,472,000

39,472,000
3,264,008
36,207,992

3.03%

1,095,508

0
99,552
199,104

796,852

Regular

Core

409,000

766,852
1,205,852

Tangible

After conversion
4. Comparative Net Worth Total
Before conversion - 06/30/07 3 32,235,000
Net cash conversion proceeds 34,575,988
After conversion $ 66,811,988
.5. Comparative Net Assets

Before conversion - 06/30/07 $ 219,728,000
Conversion proceeds 34,575,988
After conversion $ 254,303,988

{1) Reprasents gross proceads of public offering.
{2} Represents ESOP.
(3} ESOP and RRP are omitted from net worth.

147

32,459,000
34,575,988
67,034,988

66,000
796,852
862,852




EXHIBIT 52

KELLER & COMPANY
Columbus, Ohlo
614-766-1426

PROJECTED EFFECT OF CONVERSION PROCEEDS
First Federa! Savings Bank/First Advantage Bancorp

At the MIDPOINT of the Range
1. Gross Conversion Proceeds
Midpoint offering proceeds 48,000,000
Less: Estimated conversion expenses 1,394,000
Net conversion proceeds 46,606,000
2. Generation of Additional Income
Net conversion proceeds 46,606,000
Less: Proceeds not invested @ 3,840,008
Total conversion proceeds Invested 42 765,992
Investment rate 3.03%
EFamings Increase - retumn on proceeds invested 1,293,928
Less: Estimated cost of ESOP borrowings 0
Less: Amortization of ESOP borrowings, net of taxes 117,120
Less: RRP expense, net of taxes 234,240
Net eamings increase 942 567
3. Comparative Earnings
Regular Core
Before conversion - 12 months ended 06/30/07 409,000 66,000
Net eamnings increase 942,567 942,567
After conversion 1,351,567 1,008,567
4. Comparative Net Worth @ Total Tangible
Before conversion - 06/30/07 $ 32,236,000 32,459,000
Converslon proceeds 40,845,988 40,845,988
After conversion 3 73,081,088 73,304,988
5. Comparative Net Assets
Before conversion - 06/30/07 $ 219,728,000
Converslon proceeds 40,845,988
After conversion $ 260,573,988

{1) Represents gross proceeds of public offering.

{2) Represents ESOP,
(3) ESOP and RRI? are omitted from net worth.
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EXHIBIT 53

KELLER & COMPANY
Columbus, Chio
614-7656-1426

PROJECTED EFFECT OF CONVERSION PROCEEDS
First Federal Savings Bank/First Advantage Bancorp
At the MAXIMUM of the Range

1. Gross Conversion Proceads

Maximum offering proceeds ™ 5 55,200,000
Less: Estimated conversion expenses 1,480,000
Net conversion proceeds $ 53,740,000
2. Generation of Additional Income
Net conversion proceeds $ 53,740,000
Less: Proceeds nol invested ® 4,416,008
Total conversion progeeds invested 49,323,992
Investment rate 3.03%
Earnings increase - return on proceeds invested 1,492,347
Less: Estimated cost of ESOP borrowings 0
Less: Amortization of ESOP borowings, net of taxes 134,668
Less: RRP expense, net of taxes 269,376
Net eamings Increase 1,088,282
3. Comparative Earnings
Regular Core
Before conversion - 12 months ended 06/30/07 409,000 66,000
Net eamings increase 1,088,282 1,088,282
After conversion 1,497,262 1,154,282
4. Comparative Net Worth ® Total Tanglble
Before converslon - 06/30/07 $ 32,236,000 32,459,000
Converslon proceeds 47,115,888 47,115,888
After converslon $ 79,351,988 79,574,988
5. Comparative Net Assets
Before conversion - 06/30/07 $ 219,728,000
Converslon proceeds 47,115,988
After conversion $ 266,843,988

(1) Represents gross proceeds of public offering.
(2) Represents ESOP.
(3) ESOP and RRP are omitted from net worth,
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EXHIBIT 54

KELLER & COMPANY
Columbus, Chio
614-766-1426

PROJECTED EFFECT OF CONVERSION PROCEEDS
First Federal Savings Bank/First Advantage Bancorp
At the Maximum, as adjusted, of the Range

1. Gross Conversion Proceeds

Super-maximum offering proceeds * $ 63,480,000
Less: Esitimated conversion expenses 1,537,000
Net conversion proceeds $ 61,943,000

2. Generation of Additional Income

Net conversion proceeds $ 61,843,000
Less: Proceeds notinvested @ 5,078,400
Total conversion proceeds invested $ 56,864,600
Invesiment rete 3.03%
Earnings Increase - retum on proceeds invested $ 1,720,485
Less: Estimated cost of ESOP borowings 0
Less: Amortlzation of ESOP borrowings, net of taxes 154,891
Less: RRP expense, net of taxes 209,782
Net eamings increase $ 1,255,822

3. Comparative Earnings

Regular Core
Before conversion - 12 months ended 06/30/07 5 409,000 66,000
Net eamings increase 1,255,822 1,255,822
After conversion 3 1,664,822 1,321,822
4, Comparative Net Worth © Tolal Tangible

Before conversion - 06/30/07 32,236,000 32,459,000
Conhversion proceeds 54,325,400 54,325,400

-

After conversion 3 86,561,400 86,784,400
5. Comparative Net Assets

Before converslon - 06/30/07 $ 219,728,000

Conversion proceeds 54,325,400

After conversion $ 274,053,400

(1) Represents gross procesds of public offering.
(2) Represents ESOP,
{(3) ESCP and RRP are omitted from net worth,
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KELLER & COMPANY
Columbus, Qhio
614-766-1426

EXHIBIT 55

SUMMARY OF VALUATION PREMIUM OR DISCOUNT

First Federal
Midpoint:
Price/eamings 49.87 x
Price/book value 65.68 %
Price/assets 18.42 %
Price/tangible book value 65.48 %
Price/core earnings 77.48 x
Minimum of range:
Pricelearnings 46.62 x
Price/book value 61.07 %
Price/assets 16.04 %
Price/tangible book value 60.86 %
Price/core earnings 76.67 x
Maximum of range:
Priceleamnings 52,58 x
Price/book value 69.56 %
Pricelassets 2069 %
Price/tangible book value 69.37 %
Price/core earnings 78.09 x
Super maximum of range:
Pricelearnings 55.19 x
Price/book value 73.34 %
Pricefassets 23.16 %
Price/tangible book value 73.15 %
Price/core eamings 78.63 x

Premium or (discount)
from comparable group.
Average Median
95.34% 143.38%
(34.09)%  (32.29)%
66.22% 108.26%
(38.69)%  (40.15)%
203.49% 278.14%
82.61% 127.53%
{38.72)%  (37.05)%
44.77% 81.39%
(43.01)%  (44.37)%
200.31%  274.18%
105.95% 156.60%
(30.20)%  (28.29)%
86.67% 133.87%
(35.05)%  (36.60)%
205.88% 281.12%
116.16% 169.33%
{26.41)%  {24.40)%
109.02% 161.88%
{(31.51)%  (33.14)%
208.00%  283.76%

* Represents pricing ratio associated with primary valuation method.
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EXHIBIT A

KELLER & COMPANY, INC.

Financial Institution Consultants

555 Metro Place North 614-766-1426
Dublin, Ohio 43017 (fax) 614-766-1459

PROFILE OF THE FIRM

KELLER & COMPANY, INC. is a national consulting firm to financial institutions, serving
clients throughout the United States from its office in Dublin, Ohio. Since its inception in
1985, Keller & Company has provided a wide range of consulting services to over 200
financial institutions including banks, thrifts, mortgage companies, insurance companies and
holding companies located in twenty-four states and Washington D.C., extending from Oregon
to Massachusetts. Keller & Company, Inc. provides a full range of consulting services,
including the preparation of business/ strategic plans, market studies, stock valuations, ESOP
valuations, de novo charter applications, fairness opinions, incentive compensation plans, etc.
Keller also serves as advisor in connection with branch purchase/sale transactions and
merger/acquisition transactions. Keller & Company, Inc. is also active in the completion of
loan reviews, director and management reviews, compliance policies and responses to
regulatory comments.

Keller & Company, Inc. is one of the leading conversion appraisal firms in the U.S. and is on-
line for daily bank and thrift pricing data and ratios for every publicly-traded financial
institution in the U.S. Keller & Company, Inc. is on-line for financial data and ratios for every
bank and thrift in the U.S. Our data base is SNL Financial. Keller & Company is an affiliate
member of numerous trade organizations including American Bankers Association and
America's Community Bankers.

Each of the firm's senior consultants has over thirty years front line experience and
accomplishment in various areas of the financial institution and real estate industries. Each
consultant provides to clients distinct and diverse areas of expertise. Specific services and
projects have included financial institution charter and deposit insurance applications, market
studies, institutional mergers and acquisitions, branch sales and acquisitions, operations and
performance analyses, business plans, strategic planning, financial projections and modeling,
stock valuations, faimess opinions, conversion appraisals, capital plans, policy development
and revision, lending, underwriting and investment criteria, data processing and management
information systems, and incentive compensation programs.

It is the goal of Keller & Company to provide specific and ongoing services that are pertinent
and responsive to the needs of the individual client institution within the changing industry
environment, and to offer those services at reasonable fees on a timely basis. In recent years,
Keller & Company has become one of the leading bank consulting firms in the nation.
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EXHIBIT A

CONSULTANTS IN THE FIRM

MICHAEL R. KELLER has over thirty years experience as a consultant to the financial
institution industry. Immediately following his graduation from college, Mr. Keller took a
position as an examiner of financial institutions in northeastern Ohio with a focus on
Cleveland area institutions. After working two years as an examiner, Mr. Keller entered Ohio

State University full time to obtain his M.B.A. in Finance.

Mr. Keller then worked as an associate for a management consulting firm specializing in
services to financial institutions immediately after receiving his M.B.A. Duringhis eight years
with the firm, he specialized in mergers and acquisitions, branch acquisitions and sales, branch
feasibility stadies, stock valuations, charter applications, and site selection analyses. By the
time of his departure, he had attained the position of vice president, with experience in almost

all facets of banking operations.

Prior to forming Keller & Company, Mr. Keller also worked as a senior consultant in a larger
consulting firm. In that position, he broadened his activities and experience, becoming more
involved with institutional operations, business and strategic planning, regulatory policies and
procedures, performance analysis, conversion appraisals, and faimess opinions. Mr. Keller
established Keller & Company in November 1985 to better serve the needs of the financial
institution industry.

Mr. Keller graduated from the College of Wooster witha B.A. in Economicsin 1972, and later

received an M.B.A. in Finance in 1976 from the Ohio State University where he took

numerous courses in corporate stock valuations.
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EXHIBIT A

Consultants in the Firm (cont.)

JOHN A.SHAFFER has over thirty years experience in banking, finance, real estate lending,

and development.

Following his university studies, Mr. Shaffer served as a lending officer for a large real estate
investment trust, specializing in construction and development loans. Having gained
experience in loan underwriting, management and workout, he later joined Chemical Bank of
New York and was appointed Vice President for Loan Administration of Chemical Mortgage
Company in Columbusg, Ohio. At Chemical, he managed all commercial and residential loan
servicing, administering a portfolio in excess of $2 billion. His responsibilities also included
the analysis, management and workout of problem commercial real estate loans and equity
holdings, and the structuring, negotiation, acquisition and sale of loan servicing, mortgage and
equity securities and real estate projects. Mr. Shaffer later formed and managed an
independent real estate and financial consulting firm, serving corporate and institutional

clients, and also investing in and developing real estate.

Mr. Shaffer's primary activities and responsibilities have included financial analysis, projection
and modeling, asset and liability management, real estate finance and development, loan
management and workout, organizational and financial administration, budgeting, cash flow

management and project design.

Mr. Shaffer graduated from Syracuse University with a B.S. in Business Administration, later

receiving an M.B.A. in Finance and a Ph.D. in Economics from New York University.
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EXHIBIT B

RB 20
CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that I have not been the subject of any criminal, civil or administrative
judgments, consents, undertakings or orders, or any past administrative proceedings
(excluding routine or customary audits, inspections and investigation) issued by any federal
or state court, any department, agency, or commission of the U.8. Government, any state or
municipality, any self-regulatory trade or professional organization, or any foreign
government or governmental entity, which involve:

Q) commission of a felony, fraud, moral turpitude, dishonesty or breach of trust;
(i)  violation of securities or commodities laws or regulations;

(iti)  violation of depository institution laws or regulations;

(iv)  violation of housing authority laws or regulations;

) violation ofthe rules, regulations, codes or conduct or ethics of a self-regulatory trade
or professional organization;

(vi)  adjudication of bankruptcy or insolvency or appointment of a receiver, conservator,
trustee, referee, or guardian.

I hereby certify that the statements | have made herein are truc, complete and correct to the best of
my knowledge and belief.

Conversjon Appraiser

Date "Jghn A. Shaffer
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EXHIBIT C

AFFIDAVIT OF INDEPENDENCE
STATE OF OHIO,

COUNTY OF FRANKLIN, ss:

I, John A. Shaffer, being first duly sworn hereby depose and say that:

The fee which I received directly from the applicant, First Federal Savings Bank., in the
amount of $38,000 for the performance of my appraisal was not related to the value determined in
the appraisal and that the undersigned appraiser is independent and has fully disclosed any
relationships which may have a material bearing upon the question of my independence; and that any
indemnity agreement with the applicant has been fully disclosed.

Further, affiant sayeth naught,

JOHN A SHAFFER

Sworn to before me and subscribed in my presence this 28™ day of August 2007.

(g}zw')n W

NOTARY PUBLIC
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Report of independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Audit Committee and Board of Directors
First Federal Savings Bank
Clarksville, Tennessee

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of First Federal Savings Bank (Bank)
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
uscd and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for cach of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in

conformily with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In 2006, the Bank changed its method of accounting for various items more specifically discussed in
Note 19 by retroactively restating prior years’ financial statements.

BKD, tiLp

Louisville, Kentucky
June 14, 2007



First Federal Savings Bank
Consolidated Balance Sheets

Six-month Period Ended June 30, 2007 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets
June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{Unaudited) (Restated)
Cash and due from banks 3 4,088 3§ 1,754 % 2,415
Interest-bearing demand deposits %00 5,631 8,746
Federal funds sold . 3.876 9364 9.000
Cash and cash equivalents 8,864 16,749 20,161
Available-for-sale securitics 93,550 83,519 67,866
Loans held for sale 3417 1,400 777
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of
$2,008, $2,025 and $3,157 at June 30,
2007, December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively 100,489 98,370 120,063
Premises and equipment 6,557 6,305 5412
Mortgage servicing rights 30 . 51 133
Foreclosed assets held for sale — 946 519
Other assets held for sale 581 581 200
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,872 2,872 2,711
Accrued interest receivable
Loans 501 531 423
Investments 941 825 519
Deferred income taxes 913 588 1,244
Other assets 1,013 682 697
Total asscts b 219728 $ 213,419 § 220,725

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements




First Federal Savings Bank

Consolldated Balance Sheets {Continued)

Six-month Period Ended June 30, 2007 (Unaudited} and
Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

(Dollars in Thousands)

Liabilities and Equity

Deposits

Demand $ 11,502 § 9,620 § 14,362
Savings, checking and money market 78,286 69,494 69,804
Time certificates 94,286 97495 86974

Total deposits 184,074 176,609 171,140
Federal Home Loan Bank advances — — 12,159
Interest payable and other liabilities 3418 3,921 4,891

Total liabilities 187,492 180,530 188,190

Commiiments and Contingencies _ — —_

Equity
Retained earnings 32,459 32,485 31,860
Accumulated other comprehensive income (223) 404 675
Total equity 32236 32,889 32,535
Total liabilities and equity 5 219,728 % 213,419 3___ 220725




First Federal Savings Bank
Consolidated Statements of Income

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited)
and Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Intcrest and Dividend Income
Loans
Investment securities
Other

Total interest and
dividend income

Interest Expense
Deposits
Federal Home Loan Bank
advances

Total interest expense
Net Interest Inceme

Provision {Credit) for Loan
Losses

Net Interest Income After
Provision for Loan Losses

Noaninterest Intome

Customer service and other
fees

Loan servicing and other fees

Net gains on loan sales

Net gain (loss) on sales of
other real estate owned

Net realized gain (loss) on
salcs of avajlable-for-sale
securities

Net realized gain on sale of
restricted investment

Commissions on insurance
and brokerage

Net gain (loss) on premises
and equipment

Other

Total noninterest income

(Dollars in Thousands)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
{Unaudited)  {Unaudited) {Restated) {Restated)
5 3672 % 4,087 $ 7,839 3 3,689 % 9,657
2,474 1,812 3,876 3,281 2,351
257 347 691 749 636
6,403 6,246 12,406 12,719 12,644
2,928 2,085 4,759 3,382 3,654
6 394 394 597 624
2.934 2479 5133 3579 4278
3,469 3,767 7,253 8,740 8,366
32 37 (7136) o1 89
3,437 3,730 7,989 8,649 8,277
554 539 1,081 1,344 1,211
142 87 164 338 3150
455 259 673 611 540
7 61 55 {33) 16
(329} - (1) 9,604 —
_ — — 1,148 —
200 200 392 76 10
17 (6) 24 (1,056} —
39 112 148 24 31
1.085 1252 2.536 12,006 2268




First Federal Savings Bank

Consolidated Statements of Income {Continued)

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 {Unaudited)

and Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2008 2006 2005 2004
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) {Restated) (Restated)
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee
benefits L3 2562 % 2,527 4,622 3 6,043 4,408
Net occupancy expense 327 290 570 465 438
Equipment expense 275 158 362 355 375
Data processing fees 348 425 1,135 2,039 1,072
Professional fees 258 232 791 843 445
Marketing expense 115 190 384 170 396
Office expense 136 176 325 328 382
Losses on foreclosed assets,
net 15 — — 352 212
Insurance expense 44 61 150 124 117
Mortgage loan outsourced
servicing 115 87 150 — —
Other 436 502 1,036 970 1,173
Total noninterest expense 4,631 4,648 9,525 11,689 9.018
Income (Loss) Before Income
Taxes (109) 334 1,000 8,966 1,527
Provision (Credit) for Income
Taxes (83) 144 375 3426 539
Net Income (Loss) 3 26) § 190 625 3 5,540 988
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First Federal Savings Bank
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity
Six-month Period Ended June 30, 2007 {Unaudited) and

Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{Dollars in Thousands)

Accumulated

Other
Retained Comprehensive
Earnings Income {Loss) Total
Balance, January 1, 2004, As Previously
Reported $ 25812 % 7433 § 33,245
Adjustments applicable to prior years {480) (104) (584)
Balance, January 1, 2004, As Adjusted 25,332 7,329 32,661
Net income (restatcd) 988 — 088
Change in unrcalized appreciation on
availablc-for-sale securities, net of taxes
(rcstated) — 616 616
Balance, December 31, 2004, As Adjusted 26,320 7,945 34,265
Net income (restated) 5,540 — 5,540
Change in unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securities, net of taxes
(restated) — (7.270) {7.270)
Balance, December 31, 2005, As Adjusted 31,860 675 32,535
Net income 625 — 625
Change in unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securitics, net of taxes — 271 (271)
Balance, December 31, 2006 32,485 404 32,889
Net loss (unaudited) (26) —_ (26)
Change in unrealized appreciation on
available-for-sale securities, net of taxes
(unaudited) — {627) (627
Balance, June 30, 2007 (Unaudited) $ 32459 % (223 $ 32,236

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-4



First Federal Savings Bank
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited)
and Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Operating Activities
Net income (loss)
Items not requiring (providing)
cash
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for loan losses
Provision for foreclosed assets
Amortization of premiums and
discounts on securities
Amortization of loan-servicing
rights
Deferred income taxes
Net realized (gain) loss on
available-for-sale securities
Net realized gain on sale of
restricted investment
Net realized (gain) loss on sale
of other real estate owned
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
dividends
(Gain} loss on sale of premises
and equipment
Originations of loans held for
sale
Proceeds from loans sold
Changes in
Other assets
Interest payable and other
liabilities

Net cash provided by
(used in) operating
activities

Investing Activities

Purchases of available-for-sale
sccurities

Proceeds from maturities of and
repayments of available-for-sale
securities

Proceeds from sales of available-
for-sale securities

Proceeds from sales of other stock

{Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Restated)  (Restated)
5 (26) % 150 $ 625 3 5540 8§ 988
194 191 355 277 304
32 37 (736) 91 89
— —_ — 290 —
39 13 14 10 6]
21 41 82 39 111
101 303 841 229 74
329 — 1 (9,604) —
— —_ —_ (1,148) -
(7N (61) (55) 83 (76)
— (78) (161) (131) (104)
an 6 (24) 1,056 —
(19,429) (11,580) (27,028) (28,532) (26,648)
17412 11,110 26,405 28,592 26,976
(415) {66) (469) (235) 147
__(503) (1.102) (970) {205) 1,005
(2,347) {996) — {1120 (3,598) 2.858
(39,934) (10,518) (30,060) (48,296) —
6,492 5,897 13,436 5402 9,673
22,066 —_ 500 19,873 —
— — 10 1,438 —_

See Notes to Consolldaled Financial Statements



First Federal Savings Bank

Consolidated Statements of Cash_Flows (Continued}

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited)

and Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
{Unaudited)  (Unaudited) {Restated)  (Restated)
Investing Activities (Continued)
Net change in loans 3 (2,188) 3% 15,454 $ 21,333 5 16,118 $§  (2,510)
Purchase of premises and
equipment (493) (1,494) (1,807) (855) (380)
Proceeds from sales of premises
and equipment 64 12 204 135 —
Proceeds from the sale of
foreclosed assets 990 580 782 1,977 1,502
Net cash provided by
(used in) investing
activities (13.003) 9,931 4,398 {(4.208) 8285
Financing Activities
Net increase (decrease) in demand
deposits, moncy market,
checking and savings accounts 10,674 (6,297) (5,053) 317 3,907
Net increase (decrease) in
certificates of deposit (3,209) 5,424 10,522 (11,431) (9,570)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan
Bank advances 4,000 16,000 16,000 10,000 —
Repayment of Federal Home Loan
Bank advances {4,000) (28.159) (28.159) (10.045) {44)
Net cash provided by
(used in) financing
activities 7,465 (13.032) £6,.690) (11,793 (5,707)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents (7,385) (4,097) (3,412) (19,599} 5,436
Cash and Cash Equivalents,
Beginning of Yesr 16,749 20,161 20,161 _ 39760 34324
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of
Year $ 8864 § 16,064 $ 16745 $__20.16] §__ 39,760
Supplemental Cash Flow
Information
Interest paid b 3031 §$ 2,396 $ 4,722 $ 3,952 $ 4262
Income taxes paid (net of rcfunds) $ 0 3 0 $ @ 3 2,051 $ 149
Real estate acquired in settlement
of loans $ 37 3 125 $ 1,096 $ 774 3 1,180
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First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 1: Plan of Conversion and Change in Corporate Form

On January 31, 2007, the board of directors of First Federal Savings Bank (Bank) adopted a plan of
conversion (Plan). The Plan is subject to the approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS)
and must be approved by the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the total votes cligible to be
cast by the voting members of the Bank at a special meeting. The Plan sets forth that the Bank
proposes to convert into a stock savings bank structure with the establishment of a stock holding
company, First Advantage Bancorp, as parent of the Bank. The Bank will convert to the stock
form of ownership, followed by the issuance of all of the Bank’s cutstanding stock to First
Advantage Bancorp. Pursuant to the Plan, First Advantage Bancorp will determine the total
offering value and number of shares of common stock based upon an independent appraiser’s
valuation. The stock will be priced at $10.00 per share. In addition, the Bank’s board of directors
has adopted an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) which will subscribe to 8% of the common
stock issued in connection with the offering. First Advantage Bancorp is being organized as a
corporation incorporated under the laws of Tennessee and will own all of the outstanding common
stock of the Bank upon completion of the conversion.

The costs of issuing the common stock will be deferred and deducted from the sale proceeds of the
offering. If the conversion is unsuccessful, all deferred costs will be charged to operations. At
June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, the Bank had incurred $299 {unaudited) and $10 deferred
conversion costs. The transaction is subject to approval by regulatory authorities and members of
the Bank. At the completion of the conversion to stock form, the Bank will establish a liquidation
account in the amount of retained earnings contained in the final prospectus. The liquidation
account will be maintained for the benefit of eligible savings account holders who maintain deposit
accounts in the Bank after conversion.

The conversion will be accounted for as a change in corporate form with the historic basis of the
Bank's assets, liabilities and equity unchanged as a result.

Note 2: Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

The Bank is a savings bank primarily engaged in providing a full range of banking and financial
services to individual and corporate customers in Clarksville, Temnessee and surrounding arcas.
The Bank is subject to competition from other financial institutions. The Bank is subject to the
regulation of certain federal and state agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by those
regulatory authoritics.



First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited)} and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Basis of Presentation

In the opinion of management, the unaudited consolidated financial statements include all
adjustments, which consist of normal recurring accruals, necessary to present fairly the
consolidated financial position as of June 30, 2007, and the results of operations and cash flows for

the six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Bank and its wholly owned
subsidiary First Financial Mortgage Corporation (collectively referred to as the Bank). All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements. in conformity with accounting principles generaily
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination
of the allowance for loan losses and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with
foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In conncction with the determination of the allowance for
loan losses and the valuation of foreclosed assets held for sale, management obtains independent
appraisals for significant properties.

Cash Egquivalents

The Bank considers all liquid invesiments with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Securities

Auvailable-for-sale securities, which include any security for which the Bank has no immediate plan
to sell but which may be sold in the future, are carried at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses
are recorded, net of related income tax effects, in other comprehensive income.

The Bank does not hold any held-to-maturity securities, which would include any security for
which the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold until maturity.



First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts are recorded as interest income from
securities utilizing the level vield method to calculate the monthly amortization and accretions
which approximate the interest imnethod. Realized gains and losses are recorded as net securities
gains (losses). Gains and losses on sales of securities are determined on the specific-identification
method.

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of
cost or fair value in the aggregate, Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation
allowance by charges to income.

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until
maturity or payoffs, arc reported at their outstanding principal balances adjusted for any charge-
offs, the allowance for loan losses, any deferred fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized
premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest income is reported on the interest method and
includes amortization of net deferred loan fees and costs everthe-loan-termover the contractual life
of the loan using the intercst method. Generally, loans are placed on nonaccrual status at 90 days
past due and interest is considered a loss, unless the loan is well-secured and in the process of
collection.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated 1o have occurred through a
provision for loan losses charged to income. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when
management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recovertes, if
any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and represents
management’s best estimate of probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. The allowance is
based vpon management's periodic review of the uncollectibility of the loans in light of historical
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the
borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing cconomic
conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to
significant revision as more information becomes available.
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First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that
the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in
determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting
scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment
delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classificd as impaired. Management determines the
significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into
consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length
of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record and the amount of the
shonfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan
basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market price or the fair
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.
Accordingly, the Bank does not separately identify individual consumer and residential loans for
impairment measurements.

Premises and Equipment

r
Depreciable assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged to
expense using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal Home Loan Bank (FIILB) stock is a required investment for institutions that are members
of the FHLB system. The required investment in the common stock is based on a predctcrmmed
formula. The Bank reports its mvestmenl in the FHLB stock at cost.

Foreclosed Assets Held for Sale

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at
fair value at the date of foreclosure, ¢stablishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure,
valuations are periodically performed by management and the assets are carried at the lower of
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. The amounts included in the financial statements for

the-six-menth-peried-ended-as of June 30, 2007, and and-the-years-ended-December 31, 2006 and
2005, were $— (unaudited), $946 and $519, respechvely

Revenue and expenses from operations and any additicnal write-down(s) of asset values are
included in net income or expense. The amounts included in the financial statements for the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
were $15 (unaudited), $- (unaudited), $-, $352 and $212, respectively.
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First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars In Thousands)

Mortgage Servicing Rights

Mortgage servicing rights on originated loans that have been sold are capitalized by allocating the
total cost of the mortgage loans between the mortgage servicing rights and the loans based on their
relative fair values, Capitalized scrvicing rights are amortized in proportion to and over the period
of estimated servicing revenues, Total mortgage servicing rights were $30 (unaudited), $51 and
$133 at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Amortization of the
mortgage servicing rights against mortgage loan servicing fees received were $21 (unaudited}, $41
(unaudited), $82, $89 and $111 for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. '

Impairment of mortgage servicing rights is assessed based on the fair value of those rights. Fair
values are cstimated using discounted cash flows based on a current market interest rate. For
purposes of measuring impairment, the rights are stratified based on the predominant risk
characteristics of the underlying loans. The predominant characteristic currently used for
stratification is typc of loan. The amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which the
capitalized mortgage servicing rights for a stratum exceed their fair value. No impairment was
recognized during the six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and for the ycars ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard
(SFAS) 156. Management elected to continue to amortize their existing mortgage servicing rights
upon adoption of SFAS 156.

Advertising and Marketing Expenses
Advertising and marketing costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and marketing expense

totaled $115 (unaudited), $190 (unaudited), $384, $170 and $396 for the six-month periods ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arc recognized for the tax effects of differences between the
financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities. A valuation allowance is established to
reduce deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will not be realized.
The Bank files consolidated income tax returns with its subsidiary.
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First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN
48). The interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in
accordance with FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 also prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribuie for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides
guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. The evaluation of a tax position in accordance with this interpretation is

a two-step process. The first step is a recognition process to determine whether it is more likely
than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related
appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. The second step is a
measurement process whereby a tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition
threshold is calculated to determine the amount of benefit to recognize in the financial statements.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, and the cumulative effect of
applying the provisions of this statement will be recognized as an adjustment to the beginning
balance of retained earnings. The Bank is currently evaluating the potential impact this statement
may have on the Bank’s financial position and results of operations, but does not believe the impact
of the adoption will be material.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS.No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, which provides
guidance on how (0 measure assets and liabilities that use fair value, SFAS 157 will apply
whenever another US GAAP standard requires (or permits) assets or liabilitics to be measured at
fair value but does not expand the use of fair value to any new circumstances. This statement also
will require additional disclosures in both annual and quarter]y reports. SFAS 157 will be effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and will be
adopted by the Bank beginning in the first quarter of 2008. The Bank is currently evaluating the
potential impact this statement may have on the Bank’s financial position and results of operations,
but does not believe the impact of the adoption will be material.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities, which permits entities to choose to measure many financial instruments
and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related
assets and liabilities using different measurement techniques. SFAS 159 requires additional
disclosures related to the fair value measurements included in the entity’s financial statements.
This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. Accordingly, the Bank wilt adopt SFAS 159 in the first quarter of 2008. The
Bank is currently evaluating the potential impact this statement may have on its financial position
and results of operations, but does not believe the impact of the adoption will be material.
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First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2005 and 2004 financial statements 1o conform to

the June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, financial statement presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on net income.

Note 3: Restriction on Cash and Due From Banks
The Bank is required to maintain reserve funds in cash and/or on deposits for certain correspondent

relationships. The reserve required at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006_and 2005, was $879
(unaudited), $1,090_and $2,008, respectively.

Note 4: Securities

The Bank’s securitics are all classified as available for sale. The amortized cost and approximate
fair values of securities as of June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, are summarized

below:
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
June 30, 2007 (Unaudited)

U.S. Treasury 3 4,842 3 971 § —  § 5,813

U.8. Government
agencies 42,044 28 (539) 41,533

Mortgage-backed
securities 36,344 102 (724) 35,722

State and political
subdivisions 7,693 — (221) 7,472
Other securities 3,002 9 (1) 3,010
Total $ 93925 § L1100 § (1,485) $ 93,550
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First Federal Savings Bank
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{Dollars in Thousands)

Gross Gross
Amortized Unreallzed Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gains LLosses Fair Value
December 31, 2006
U.S. Treasury $ 4,856 § 1,139 § — 3 5,995
U.S. Government
agencies 45,893 44 (415) 45,522
Mortgage-backed
securities 21,826 189 (230) 21,785
Statc and potitical
subdivisions 7,759 12 (63) 7,708
Other securities 2,507 2 — 2,509
| Total $ 82841 § 1386 § (708) § 83,519
December 31, 2005,
(Restated)
U.S. Treasury $ 4,881 § 1,301 § — 3 6,182
U.S. Government
agencies 35,132 — (350) 34,782
Mortgage-backed
securities 26,218 379 (195) 26,402
Other sccuritics 500 — — 500
Total $ 66731 $ 1,680 § (545) § 67,866

The mortgage-backed secunities are backed by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation

(FHLMC), Federal National Mortgage Association {(FNMA) and Government National Mortgage

Association (GNMA). None of the mortgage-backed securities are privately issued.

The amortized cost and fair value of securities at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, by
contractual maturity, are shown below.

Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right to
call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.
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Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 _and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, 2007 (Unaudited) December 31, 2006
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Within one year b — 3 — 3 2,650 % 2,630
One to five years 11,125 11,062 - 24,785 24,552
Five to 10 ycars 18,305 19,218 18,191 19,309
After 10 years 28.151 27,548 15,389 15,243
57,581 57,828 61,015 61,734
Mortgage-backed

securities 36,344 35,722 21.826 21,785
Totals $ 93925 3 93,550 3 82841 $ 83,519

The carrying value of securities pledged as collateral, to secure public deposits and for other
purposes, was $10,720 (unaudited) at June 30, 2007, $16,521 at December 31, 2006, and $14,424
at December 31, 2005.

Gross gains of $6 (unaudited), $— (unaudited), $—, $9,752 and $- and gross losses of $335
(unaudited), $- (unaudited), $1, $148 and $- resulting from sales of securities were realized for the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Gross gains during 2005, included a gain on the sale of Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation stock of $9,373 and a gain of $379 on the sale of Federal National
Mortgage Association stock.

Taxes allocated to investment gains/{losses) were $(131) (unaudited), $~ (unaundited), $-, $3,830
and $- for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Certain investments in debt and marketable equity securities are reported in the financial statements
at an amount less than their historical cost. Total fair value of these investments at June 30, 2007,
and December 31, 2006 and 2005, was $73,627 (unaudited), $57,772 and $45,681, which is
approximately 79%, 69% and 65%, respectively, of the Bank’s available-for-sale investment
portfolio. These declines primarily resulted from recent increases in market interest rates.

Based on evaluation of available evidence, including recent changes in market interest rates, credit
rating information and information obtained from regulatory filings, management believes the
declines in fair value for these securities are temporary.

Should the impairment of any of these securities become other than temporary, the cost basis of the
investment will be reduced and the resulting loss recognized in net income in the period the other-
than-temporary impairment is identified.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and

Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands}

The following table shows the Bank’s investments’ gross unrcalized losses and fair value,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual sccurities have been in a
continuous unrcalized loss position at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005:

June 30, 2007 (Unaudited)

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Description of Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Securities Falir Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
U.S. Government
agencics $ 27422 3§ (476) $§ 10058 § (63) § 37480 % (539)
Mortgage-backed
securities 25,324 (626) 2,992 (98) 28,316 (724)
State and political
subdivisions 7,332 (221) — — 7,332 (221)
Other securities 499 (1) — — 499 {1
Total temporarily
impaired
securities $ 60577 S5__ (1,324) $_13050 $___(l61) 573627 §__(1485)
December 31, 2006
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Description of Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Falr Value Losses
U.S. Government
agencies $ 13,637 % (149) 3% 26,821 % (266) $ 40458 § {415)
Mortgage-backed
securities 4,211 (18) 7,376 (212) 11,587 (230)
State and political
subdivisions 5,727 (63} — — 5727 (63)
Total temporarily
impaired
securitics § 23575 § (230) $__34,197 $ {428) $_57772 $ (708)
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Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 _and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31, 2005 (Restated)

l.ess than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Description of Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
U.S. Government
agencics § 34782 § (350) $ —_ — $ 34,782 %
Mortgage-backed
seourities 8973 1,926 (100) _10.899 (195}
Total temporarily
impaired
securities § 43755 § {445) $ 1926 $____(l100) 5_45681 $___ (543
Note 5: Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses
Categories of loans include:
June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Unaudited) (Restated)
Real estate
One-to-four family residential b 30922 § 34997 $ 36,682
Multi-family residential 5,789 7,823 6,733
Construction 17,279 14,207 18,642
Nonresidential real estate 25,890 26,560 33,605
Nonresidential construction 3,418 869 820
Land 7,200 6,989 7,136
Consumer and other (including home
equity loans) 8,895 7,439 14,951
Commercial 3,213 1,675 4,867
Overdrafis 32 36 50
Total loans 102,638 100,595 123,486
Less
Allowance for loan losses (2,008) 2,025 3,157
Net deferred loan fees {141) 200 266
Net loans $ 100,489 § 93,370 $ 120,063
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Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses was as follows:

June 30, December 31,

2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Restated) (Restated)

Balance, beginning of

year $ 2025 % 3,157 $ 3157 % 3,180 % 3,175
Provision charged

(credited) to

expense 32 37 (736) 9 89
Losses charged off,

net of recoveries of

$35 (unaudited) and

$140 (unaudited)

for June 30, 2007

and 2006,

respectively, and

$331, 3291 and $22

for 2006, 2005

and 2004,

respectively (49) (309) (396) (114) (84)

Balance, end of

year $ 2,008 § 2,885 %___ 2025 $__ 3137 $__ 3180

Impaired loans totaled $1,924 (unaudited), $1,948 and $6,443 at June 30, 2007, and

December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. An allowance for loan losses of $722 (unaudited),
$728 and $1,633 relates to impaired loans of $1,924 (unaudited) at June 30, 2007, $1,948 at
December 31, 2006, and $6,443 at December 31, 2005. There were no impaired loans which had
no related allowance for loan losses.

Interest of $28 (unaudited), $179 (unaudited), $299, $623 and $713 was recognized on average
impaired loans of $1,934 (unaudited), $5,184 (unaudited), $4,259, $8,535 and $9,912 for the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. No interest was recognized on impaired loans on a cash basis during the six-
month periods ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

At June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 20035, nonaccruing loans were $1,767 (unaudited),
$4,320 and $2,853, respectively.
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Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 200_6, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

Note 6: Premises and Equipment

Major classifications of premises and equipment, stated at cost, were as follows:

June 30, December 31,
Estimated 2007 2006 2005
Useful Lives {Unaudited) (Restated)

Land and land improvetnents JtolSyears $ 2,230 $ 2230 § 1,905
Buildings and improvements 7 to 40 vears 3,700 3,879 3,301

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 vears
cquipment 2,833 2,764 2,757
Construction in progress N/A 446 49 1,261
9,209 8,922 0,224

Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization 2,652 2617 3,812
Net premises and equipment h 6,557 § 6305 § 5,412

Note 7: Other Assets Held for Sale (Restated)

Other assets held for sale at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, include $200 related
to the Blue Hole Lodge (Lodge), an impaired asset held for sale. The Lodge was acquired by
previous management to be utilized for board meetings, rental to the public for events such as
parties or weddings, employee meetings and customer events. The Lodge was measured for
impairment and reclassified to property held for sale during 2005 and the Bank ceased recording
depreciation on the property. The Bank recorded an impairment loss of $881 during 2005. The
discounted cash flow method was used to determine the $200 carrying value,

In December 2005, the Bank closed the Pleasant View branch location. The facility was a modular
facility which was deemed worthless. An impairment loss of $175 was recorded in 2005, The total
impairment loss for the two assets of $1,056 is recorded in net loss on premises and equipment.

During 2006, the Bank decided to relocate their main office location. The old main office was
measured for impairment and reclassified to property held for sale during 2006 and the Bank
ceased recording depreciation on the property. No impairment loss was recorded in connection
with this transaction, as the net book cost of the property of $381 was determined to be the lower of
cost or market.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007_and 2006 (Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in Thousands)

Note 8: Loan Servicing

Mortgage loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets. The unpaid principal balances of mortgage loans serviced for others were $45,501
(unaudited), $56,450 (unaudited), $47,211, $61,868 and $77.914 at June 30, 2007 and 2006, and
December 31, 2006, 2005_and 2004, respectively.

The aggregate fair value of capitalized mortgage servicing rights at June 30, 2007, and

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $30 (unaudited), $51, $133 and $222 respectively.
Comparable market values were used to estimate fair value. Mortgage servicing rights are tested
annually for impairment and no impairment loss was recorded for the six-month periods ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. For purposes of
measuring impairment, risk characteristics, including product type, investor type and interest rates,
were used to stratify the originated mortgage servicing rights.

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
{(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Restated) (Restated)
Mortgage Servicing
Rights
Balance, beginning
of year $ 51 % 133 $ 133 % 222§ 333
Servicing rights
capitalized — — — — —
Amortization of
servicing rights 20 (41) (82) (89) (111)
Balance, end
of year A - % 92 b3 3 $ 133 § 222

Note 9: Interest-bearing Deposits

Interest-bearing time deposits in denominations of $100,000 or more were $32,632 (unaudited) on
June 30, 2007, $32,816 on December 31, 2006, and $27,000 on December 31, 2005.

Individual deposits with denominations of more than $100.000 (more than $250,000 for retirement

accounts) are not federally insured.
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Six-month Periods Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 {(Unaudited) and
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{Dollars in Thousands)

Presented betow is a summary of interest expense by each significant category of deposits:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 200 2005 2004

(Unaudited) {Unaudited) (Restated) (Restated)

NOW $ 38 _3 76 $ 157 _§ 143 _§ 125
Money market 536 449 0986 575 522
Savings 109 36 67 71 106
Time deposits 2,195 1,524 3,549 2.593 2,901

Total interest o o T o o

expense $ 2928 % 2,085 $ 4759 § 3382 § 3,654

At June 30, 2007, the schedule maturities of time deposits were as follows:

{(Unaudited)

2008 b 79,650
2009 12,407
2010 1,722
2011 289
2012 218
$ 94,286

At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of time deposits were as follows:

2007 ‘ $ 21,720
2008 11,699
2009 2910
2010 901
2011 265
$_____97.495
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Note 10: Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

There were no outstanding advances as of June 30, 2007 (unaudited) and December 31, 2006,
FHLB advances consisted of the following components as of December 31, 2005.

June 30, December 31, December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Unaudited) {Restated)
Advance at a rate of 6.95% $ — % —  § 2,159
Advance at a rate of 4.63% — _— 10,000
Advance at a rate of 5.44% — — —
$ g 3 0 $__ 12159

The FHLB advances arc secured by the Bank’s one-to-four family first mortgage loans. Pursuant
to collateral agreements with the FHLB, advances are secured by qualifying first morigage loans,
FHLB stock and interest-bearing demand deposits with the FHLB.

Note 11: Income Taxes

The provision (credit) for income taxes includes these components:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Restated) (Restated)
Current income

taxes $ (184) § (159 § (466) $ 3,197 § 465
Deferred income

taxes 101 303 841 229 74
Income tax
expense

(benefit) $ (83) 3 144 3 375 § 3426 $ 539
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Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{Dollars in Thousands)

A reconciliation of income tax expense at the statutory rate to the Bank’s actual income tax

expense is shown below:

June 30, December 31,
2007 (Unaudited) 2006 (Unaudited) 2006 2005 (Restated) 2004 (Restated)
Dollars % Dollars % Dollars % Dollars Dollars %
Computed at the
statutory rate
(34%) $ (37 (34000% § 114 3400% $ 340 3400% $ 3,048  3400% $ 519  34.00%
Increase.
{decrease)
resulting from
State income
taxes (5) (4.97) 16 4.81 44 4.37 384 4,28 465 4.24
Dividends
received
deduction — — — —_— —_ — (13) {.14) {44) 2.91)
Nondeductible
expenses 9 8,22 13 412 13 1.37 4 04 4 25
Cash
surrender
value life
insurance
benefits 5) (409 — — ) '&1)) (10) 1 4y (29
Tax-exempt
income (39)  (36.08) — — (15)  (1.52) — — —_ —
Other (6) (5.08) 1 30 — — 13 14 (4] 00
Actual tax
expensc
(benefit) $.(83) (7600)% $_144  _4323% $_375  3L51% $.3426 _3B2% S_330  35.29%
The tax effects of temporary differences related to deferred taxes shown on the balance sheets
were:
June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005
{(Unaudited) {Restated)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses $ 769 775 § 1,209
Nonaccrual of interest on loans 71 33 —
Deferred compensation 556 589 632
Deferred fee income 69 145 189
Contribution carryforward 15 15 —
Depreciation 184 192 223
Accrued vacation pay 18 41 41
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(Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Unaudited) (Restated)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)
Unrealized gains on available-for-
sale securities $ 152§ — 3 —_
Accrued sick leave —_ — 75
Accrued compensation — — 232
1,834 1,790 2,601
Deferred tax liabilities
FHLB dividends (909) (909) (847)
Unrealized gains on available-for-
sale securities —_ (274) (459)
Other (12 (19 (51)
(921) (1,202) (1.357)
Net deferred tax asset 3 913 $ 588 § 1,244

Retained eamings at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, included approximately
$3,600 for which no deferred federal income tax liability had been recognized. These amounts
represent an allocation of income to bad debt deductions for tax purposes only. Reduction of
amounts so allocated for purposes other than tax bad debt losses or adjustments arising from carry-
back of net operating losses would create income for tax purposes only, which would be subject to
the then-current corporate income tax rate. The deferred income tax liabilities on the preceding
amounts that would have been recorded if they were expected to reverse into taxable income in the
foreseeable future were approximately $1,224 at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Note 12: Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) compoenents and related taxes were as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
{Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Restated) {Restated)
Unrealized gains
(losses) on available-
for-sale securities 3 {(1,384) $ (1,106) $ (456) § (2,614) $ 1,035
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(Dollars in Thousands)

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2006 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Restated) (Restated)

Less reclassification

adjustment for

realized (gains) losses

included in income  § 329 § — § 1 § (9.604) $ —
Other comprehensive

gains (losses), before

tax effect {1,054) {1,106) (455) (12,218) 1,035
“Tax {expense)} benefit 427 448 184 4,948 (419)

Other comprehensive

income (losses) $ (627 § {658) ¥ 271y $___ (7.270) $_____ 616

Note 13: Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines
that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below). Management believes, as of
June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy
requirements to which it is subject.

As of June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the regulatory
agencies categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total
risk-based, Tier I risk-based and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table. There are no
conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s
category.
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The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented in the table.

To Be Well Capitalized

Under Prompt
For Capital Adequacy Corrective Action
Actual Purposes Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of June 30, 2007 (Unaudited)
Total risk-based capital (lo

risk-weighted assets) $ 33,164 2551% § 10,399 8.00% § 12,999 10.00%
Tier [ capital

(to risk-weighted assets) $ 32,259 24.82% $ 5,200 400% §$ 7,799 6.00%
Tier1 capital

(to adjusted total assets) $ 32259 1467% $ 8,796 400% § 10995 5.00%
Tangible capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) $§ 32,259 1467% § 3,299 1.50% N/A N/A

As of December 31, 2006
‘Total risk-based capital (to

risk-weighted assets) 5 33181 2802% $ 9444 8.00% $ 11,805 10.00%
Tier I capital

(to risk-weighted assets) $ 32,265 2725% $ 4,722 400% § 7,083 6.00%
Tier I capital

(to adjusted total assets) $ 32265 15.18% § 8,501 4.00% § 10,626 5.00%
Tangible capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) $ 32,265 15.18% § 3,188 1.50% N/A N/A
As of December 31, 2005

{Restated)

Total risk-based capital

(to risk-weighted assets) $ 31,745 2391% $ 10,619 8.00% § 13274 10.00%
Tier I capital

(to risk-weighted assets) $ 30,220 277% § 5310 400% $ 7,965 6.00%
Tier 1 capital

(to adjusted total assets) $ 30,220 13.87% § 8,718 400% $ 10,898 5.00%
Tangible capital

(to adjusted tangible assets) $ 30,220 13.87% § 3,269 1.50% N/A N/A
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Below is a reconciliation of GAAP and regulatory capital amounts;

June 30, December 31, December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(Unaudited) {Restated)
Total equity per the financial
statements 5 312236 % 32889 % 32,535
Investments in nonincludable
subsidiaries (200) (220) (1,640}
Unrealized (gains) losses on available-
for-sale securities included in
accurmnulated other comprehensive
income 223 {404) {675)
Tier 1 capital 32,259 32.265 30,220
Allowance for loan losses includable
in Tier 2 capital 1,286 1,297 1,525
Other assets required to be deducted
for regulatory capital purposes (381) {381) —
Total risk-based capital 3 33,164 § 33,181 _§ 31,745

In January 2005, the Bank was designated as an institution in troubled condition as defined in 12
C.F.R. & 563.555. As aresult of the designation, the Bank developed a Safety and Soundness
Compliance Plan, specifying corrective action related to deficiencies in intcrnal controls and
information systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, asset quality and earnings.
Subsequent to December 31, 2006, the Bank received notice from the Office of Thrift Supervision
that it was no longer designated as an institution in troubled condition.

Note 14: Related-party Transactions

At June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank had loans outstanding to executive

officers, d1rectors—s+gmﬁeam-smfeheldeps-andaheif—&£ﬁhates and their related interests (related
partics), in the amount of $3,427 (unaudited), $818 and $42, respectively.
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In management’s opinion, such loans and other extensions of credit and deposits were made in the
ordinary course of business and were made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates
and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons.
Further, in management’s opinion, these loans did not involve more than normatl risk of
collectibility or present other unfavorable features._Reclassifications are comprised of the
outstanding balance of loans to new directors at the time of their election to the board.

June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005

{Unaudited) (Restated)
Beginning balance $ g18 % 42 § —
New loans and advances 470 615 52
Repayments (361) {(1,000) (10)
Reclassifications 2.500 1,161 -
Ending balance $ 3427 % 818 § 42

Deposits from related parties held by the Bank at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005,
totaled $3,715 (unaudited), $7,815 and $6,790, respectively.

Note 15: Employee Benefits

The Bank has a retirement savings 401(k} and profit-sharing plan covering substantially all
employees. Employees may contribute up to 100% of their compensation, up to allowable limits,
with the Bank matching on a discretionary basis {no required contributions) based on profitability
and other factors. Participants are fully vested in any deferrals and vest in any employer
contributions at a rate of 20% per year of service, with full vesting after five ycars of service.
Employer contributions charged to expense for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and
2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, were $58 (unaudited), $60 (unaundited),
$107 and $44, respectively. The plan was established in 2005.

The Bank has a nonqualified deferred compensation agreement with certain retired directors. The
agrecment provides monthly payments $6 through 2011 and $5 for 2012. The charge to expense
for the agreement was $3 (unaudited), $14 (unaudited), $27, $27 and $31 for the six-month periods
ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Deferred compensation payable for this plan totaled $352 (unaudited), $380 and $365
as of June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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The Bank has a nonqualified deferred compensation agreement with certain active and retired
directors and certain retired officers. The agreement allowed the deferral of certain compensation,
as well as a small annual contribution by the Bank to the plan. Interest accrues on the deferred
amounts at a rate tied to the rate paid by the Bank on one year certificate accounts at the beginning
of each plan year. Participants must elect the term over which to receive payments prior to the year
the compensation would have been earned. The charge to expense for the agreement was 528
(unaudited), $26 (unaudited), $38, $27 and $34 for the six-month periods ended June 30, 2007 and
2006, and the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Deferred
compensation payable for this plan totaled $367 (unaudited), $1,159 and $1,286 as of June 30,
2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The Bank had a noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all employees who meet the
cligibility requirements. The Bank decided to terminate the plan in November 2004, with final
distributions of vested benefits to participants in 2005. Net benefit costs recognized during 2005
and 2004 were $1,046 and $373, respectively.

Subsequent to December 31, 2006, the Bank has implemented a nonqualified deferred
compensation agreement with certain executive officers, senior management and other key
employees. The agreement provides the Bank will make contributions to the plan that will vest
over a five year period. Interest accrues on the deferred amounts at a rate equal to the rate paid by
the Bank on one year certificate accounts at the beginning of each plan year. The charge to
expense for the agreement was $134 for the six-month period ended June 30, 2007. Accrucd
deferred compensation for this plan totaled $134 at June 30, 2007.

Note 16: Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments. The fair
values of certain of these instruments were calculated by discounting cxpected cash flows, which
involves significant judgments by management and uncertainties. Fair value is the estimated
amount at which financial assets or liabilities could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Because no market exists for certain of
these financial instruments and because management does not intend to sell these financial
instraments, the Bank does not know whether the fair values shown below represent values at
which the respective financial instruments could be sold individually or in the aggregate.
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June 30, December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Unaudited) {Restated)
Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
(In thousands)

Financial assets

Cash and cash

equivalents by 884 §$ 8364 § 16,749 $ 16,749 § 20,161 $ 20,161
Available-for-sale

securities $ 93550 $ 03,550 § 83,519 S 83,519 § 67866 § 67866
Loans held for

sale § 3417 % 3417 $ 1,400 § 1,400 § 777 % 177
Loans, net of

allowance for

loan losses $ 100,489 ¢ 99,739 § 98370 § 06005 § 120,063 3 119,931
FHLB stock $ 2872 ¢ 2872 § 2872 % 2872 § 2711 § 2,71
Interest receivable $ 1,442 % 1442 § 1356 % 1,356 § 042 % 942
Forward sale

commitments b — % — 3 —  $ — 5 — 5 —
Financial liabilities

Deposits $ 184,074 ¢ 184,554 § 176,609 $ 176,158 § 171,140 § 170,204
Interest payable 3 389§ 389 §$ 486 § 486 % 55 % 55
FHLB advances 3 — ¢ — 8 — % — $ 12,159 $ 12,494
Unrecognized

financial

instruments

Loan

commitments — — — —_ —_ —
Unused lines of

credit — — — — — —
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Interest Receivable and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

The carrying amount approximates fair value.

Available-for-Sale Securities

Fair values equal quoted market prices, if available. If quoted market prices are not available, fair
value is estimated based on quoted market prices of similar securities.

Loans Held for Sale

For homogeneous categories of loans, such as mortgage loans held for sale, fair value is estimated
using the quoted market prices for securities backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in
loan characteristics.

Loans

The fair value of loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at
which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ralings and for the same
remaining maturities. Loans with similar characteristics were aggregated for purposes of the
calculations. The carrying amount of accrued interest approximates its fair value.

Deposits
Deposits include neninterest bearing checking accounts and interest bearing deposits, including
savings accounts, checking accounts and money market deposits. The carrying amount
approximates fair value. The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits is estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies the rates currently offered for deposits of similar
remaining maturities.

interest Payable

The carrying amount approximates fair value.
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Federal Home Loan Bank Advances

Rates currently available to the Bank for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities are used
10 estimate the fair value of existing debt.

Commitments to Originate Loans, Forward Sale Commitments, Letters of Credit and
Lines of Credit

The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees currently charged to
enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also
considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and the commitied rates. The fair
value of forward sale commitments is estimated based on current market prices for loans of similar
terms and credit quality. The fair values of letters of credit and lines of credit are based on fees
currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate or otherwise settle
the obligations with the counterparties at the reporting date.

Note 17: Significant Estimates and Concentrations

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require disclosure of
certain significant estimates and current vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations. Estimates
related to the allowance for loan losses are reflected in the note regarding loans. Management
believes there are no additional vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations of credit risk or other
significant estimates and concentrations not discussed previously in the notes.

Note 18: Commitments and Credit Risk

The Bank grants agribusiness, commercial and residential loans to customers throughout the state.

Commitments to Qriginate Loans

Commitments to originate loans are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since a portion of
the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on a
case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on
management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include
accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and
residential real estate.
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At June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank had outstanding commitments to
originate loans aggregating approximately $8,036 (unaudited), $1,434 and 34,540, respectively.
The commitments extended over varying periods of time with the majority being disbursed within
a one-year period. Loan commitments at fixed rates of intcrest ranging from 6.50% to 8.75%
amounted to 32,232 (unaudited) $1,050 and $795 at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and
20035, respectively, with the remainder at floating market rates,

Mortgage loans in the process of origination represent amounts that the Bank plans to fund within a
normal period of 60 to 90 days, and which are intended for sale to investors in the secondary
market. Total mortgage loans in the process of origination amounted to $5,076 (unaudited), $3,477
and $1,575, and mortgage loans held for sale amounted to $3,417 (unaudited), $1,400 and $777 at
June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, rcspectively.

The Bank had recourse commitments on loans sold on the secondary market of approximately
$17,521 (unaudited), $15,199 and $20,376 at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2003,
respectively. Recourse provisions generally expire within one to six months from the date of
transfer.

Standby Letters of Credit

Standby letters of credit are irrevocable conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee
the performance of a custiomer to a third party. Financial standby letters of credit are primarily
issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements, including commercial paper, bond
financing and similar transactions. Performance standby letters of credit are issued to guarantce
performance of certain customers under nonfinancial contractual obligations. The credit risk
involved in issuing standby letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending
loans to customers. Should the Bank be obligated to perform under the standby letters of credit, the
Bank may seek recourse from the customer for reimbursement of amounts paid.

The Bank had total outstanding standby letters of credit amounting to $248 (unaudited), $211 and
$398, at June 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, with terms ranging from 90
days to 13 months.

Lines of Credit

Lines of credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition ¢stablished in the contract. Lines of credit generally have fixed expiration dates. Since a
portion of the line may expire without being drawn upon, the total unused lines do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. Each customer’s creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-
case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, is based on management’s
credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable,
inventory, property, plant and equipment, commercial real estate and residential real estate.
Management uses the same credit policies in granting lines of credit as it does for on-balance-sheet
instruments.
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At June 30, 2007, the Bank had granted unused lines of credit to borrowers aggregating
approximately $19,362 (unaudited) and $6,014 (unaudited) on commercial lines and open-end
consumer lines, respectively. At December 31, 2006, the Bank had granted unused lines of credit
to borrowers aggregating approximately $19,735 and $7,489 for commercial lines and open-end
consumer lines, respectively. At December 31, 2005, unused lines of credit to borrowers
aggrepated approximately $20,397 for commercial lines and $5,160 for open-end consumer lines.

Other Credit Risks

At December 31, 2006, approximately $733 of the Bank’s deposits were in excess of federally
insured amounts.

Note 19: Restatement of Financial Results

The Bank has restated it’s previously issued 2005 and 2004 consolidated financial statements for
corrections of errors related to:

a)

b)
¢)
d)
€)

f)
g)
h)
i)
k)]
k)

1)

Measurement and recognition of data processing contract termination charges and related
data processing conversion expenses.

Measurement and recognition of fixed asset impairment.
Write-off of unreconciled correspondent account and ATM clearing account items.
Measurement and recognition of deferred loan fees and costs.

Recognition and measurement of valuations, charge-offs and expenses related to foreclosed
assets held for sale,

Recognition and mcasurement of mortgage servicing rights.

Reclassification of overdrawn deposit accounts.

Recognition and measurement of payroll, compensated absences and pension cxpenses.
Recognition and measurement of interest receivable on investment securitics.
Consolidation of inter-company deposit accounts.

Adjustment to deferred and current payable federal and state income taxes related to
financial statement adjustments and previous errors in income tax returns.

Recognition and measurement of loan loss provisions.

m) Recognition and measurement of the fair value of available for sale sccurities.
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n) Recognition of measurement of gross activity for investment security purchases, sales and
maturities.

o) Recognition and measurement of gross proceeds and originations of secondary market
loans held for sale.

p) Recognition and measurement of proceeds and repayments of FHLB borrowings.
q) Reclassification of federal funds sold to cash equivalents.

The reclassifications of previously reported financial statements amounts relate to irreconcilable
account groupings and reclassification of accounts for consistency in presentation. The error
corrections relate to adjustments recorded to the previously issued financial statements, The
financial statements for 2005 and 2004 have been restated to reflect these reclassifications and
error corrections.

These changes increased 2005 income before taxes and net income by $3,012 and $1,707,
respectively, and increased 2004 income before taxes and net income by $71 and $215,
respectively. Adjustments of $1,096 applicable to 2003 and prior, less income tax effects of $616,
have been included in the restated 2004 beginning retained earnings balance. The cumulative
effect includes an adjustment of $104 to accumulated other comprehensive income for correction
of cumulative unrealized gains on investment securities.

The following tables show the financial statement line items for fiscal year 2005 that were affected
by the reclassifications and error corrections,

December 31, 2005
Ag Originally Error Effect of
Balance Sheet Reported Reclassifications Corrections As Adjusted  Change
Cash and equivalents $ 14,172 § (3,226) $ 9,215 $ 20,161 % 5,989
Federal funds sold 9,000 — {9,000) — (9,000)
Available-for-sale securities 67,939 154 (227) 67,866 (73
Held-to-maturity securities 163 (163} — —— (163)
Loans AFS 13,872 (13,872) — — (13,872)
Net loans 103,457 13,872 2,734 120,063 16,606
Premises and equipment 6,595 574 (1,757 5,412 {1,183}
Mortgage servicing rights — _— 133 133 133
Foreclosed assets held for
sale 602 — (83) 519 (83)
Other assets held for sale — (574) 774 200 200
Accrued interest receivable 088 — (46) 0942 (46)
Other assets 527 3,075 (2,905) 697 170
Deferred 1ax assets 82 — 1,162 1,244 1,162
Total assets 220,885 {160) — 220,725 (160}
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December 31, 2005
As Originally Error Effect of
Balance Sheet Reported Reclassifications Corrections As Adjusted Change
Total deposits 3 174016 % (20) 3 (2,856) $ 171,140 § (2,876)
Inierest payable and other
liabilities 3,617 (140) 1,414 4,891 1,274
Total liabilities 189,792 (160} (1,442) 188,190 (1,602)
Retained earnings 30,418 — 1,442 31,860 1,442
Total equity 31,093 — 1,442 32,535 1,442
Total liabilities and equity 220,885 (160) — 220,725 (160)
Year Ended December 31, 2005
As Originaily -Error Effect of
Income Statement Reported Reclassifications Corrections As Adjusted Change
Interest and Dividend Income
Loans 8,597 525 (433) 8,689 92
Investment securities 4,075 (748) (46) 3,281 (794)
Other — 749 — 749 749
Total interest and dividend
income 12,672 526 479) 12,719 47
Interest Expense
Deposits 3,378 4 — 3,382 4
Total interest expense 3,975 4 — 3,979 4
Net Interest Income 8,697 522 (479) 8,740 43
Provision (Credit) for Loan
Losses 3,418 — (3,327) 91 (3,327
Net Interest Income After
Provision for Loan Losses 5,279 522 2,848 8,649 3,370
Noninterest Income
Customer service and other
fees 1,798 {454) — 1,344 (454)
Loan servicing and other
fees 281 (76} 133 338 57
Net loss on sale of
foreclosed assets — — (83) . (83) (83)
Net realized gain (loss) on
sales of available-for-
sale scourities 10,756 (1,152) — 9,604 (1,152)
Net realized gain on sale of
restricted investment — 1,148 — 1,148 1,148
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Year Ended December 31, 2005

As Originally Error Effect of
Income Statement Reported Reclassifications Corrections As Adjusted Change
Noninterest Income
(Continued))
Commissions on insurance
and brokerage $ — 3 76 $ - % 76 3 76
Net gain (loss) on premises
and equipment — (574) (482) (1,056) (1,056)
Other 36 (62) — 24 (62)
Total noninterest income 13,532 (1,004) {432) 12,006 (1,526)
Noninterest Expense
Salaries and employee
benefits 6,339 {256} 40) 6,043 (296)
Net occupancy expense 456 9 _ 465 9
Equipment expense 334 21 —_— 355 21
Data processing fees 1,534 1,143 (638) 2,039 505
Office expense 243 &5 — 328 85
Loss on foreclosed assets, net —_ 20 332 352 352
Insurance expense — 124 —_ 124 124
Impairment loss (Blue Hole
Lodge) 574 (574) — — (574)
Other (includes FDIC
Insurance) 834 386 (250) 970 136
Total noninterest expense 11,327 958 (596) 11,689 362
Income Before
Extraordinary Item 7.484 (1,530) 3,012 8,066 1,482
Information Systems
Conversion Expense 1,530 1,530 — — (1,530)
Income Before Provision
for Income Taxes 5,054 — 3,012 8,966 3,012
Provision for Income Taxes 2,121 ) — 1,305 3,426 1,305
Net Tncome 3,833 — 1,707 5,540 1,707
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Year Ended December 31, 2005

As Originally Error Effect of
Statement of Cash Flows Reported Reclassifications Corrections As Adjusted Change
Operating Activities
Net income b 3,833 3§ — L 1,707 A 5540 § 1,707
Adjustments applicable to
prior years — (1,160) 1,160 — —
Ttems not requiring
(providing) cash
Depreciation and
amortization 305 (28) — 277 (28)
Provision for loan losses 3418 (643) (2,684) 91 (3,327
Provision for
foreclosed assets — 290 —_ 290 290
Amortization of premiums
and discounts on
securitics — 217) 227 10 10
Amortization of loan-
servicing rights 222 —_ (133} 89 (133)
Deferred loan
origination fees 2) 2 — — 2
Deferred income taxes (4,697) 6,088 (1,162) 229 4.926
Net realized (gains)
loss on available- .
for-sale securities (10,756) 1,152 — '(9,604) 1,152
Net realized gains on
other stock — (1,148) —_ (1,148) (1,148)
Net realized loss on
salc of other real
estate owned — — 83 83 83
Loss on sale of premises
and equipment — 74 982 1,056 1,056
(ain on loan sales 611) 611 — —_ 611
Originations of loans
held for sale — — (28,532} (28,532) (28,532)
Proceeds from loans
held for sale 60 —_ 28,532 28,592 28,532
Changes in
Other assets (249) (2,957) 2,971 (235) 14
Interest payable and
other liabilities 30 (1,649) 1,414 (205) (235)
Net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities (8,578) 415 4,565 (3,598) 4,980
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Year Ended December 31, 2005

As Originally Error Effect of
Statement of Cash Flows Reported Reclassifications Corrections As Adjusted Change
Investing Activities
Federal funds sold, net ¥ (9000 3 — $ 9,000 3 — ¢ 9,000
Purchases of available-for-
sale securities {34,806) — (13,490) (48,296) (13,490)
Proceeds from maturitics of
and repayments on
avajlable-for-sale
securities 2,407 — 2,995 5,402 2,995
Proceeds from the sales of
available-for-sale
securities 10,818 — 9,055 19,873 9,055
Proceeds from the sales of
other stock — 1,438 — 1,438 1,438
Net change in loans 15,815 303 — 16,118 303
Loan originations AFS net
of principal payments on .
loans 6,419 (6,419) — — (6,419)
Purchase of premises and
equipment (1,646) 791 — (855) 791
Proceeds from sales of
premises and equipment — 135 — 135 135
Proceeds 